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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Meeting 
of the Members of the Singapore Cricket Club will be held at the Clubhouse 

on Tuesday, 25 April 2017 at 6.30pm
for the purpose of conducting the following business:

 1. To confirm the Minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on Thursday, 28 April 2016.

 2. To receive and, if approved, adopt the Committee’s Report and Audited Accounts for the year ended 31 December 
2016.

 3. To elect a President, Deputy President, Chairman of Games Control Board, Finance Member and eight other 
Members of the Committee.

 4. To elect Auditors and approve remuneration.

 5. To transact any other business brought forward in accordance with the Rules of the Club.

The Notice of Annual General Meeting will be dispatched to the Members of the Singapore Cricket Club in accordance with the 
provisions of Club Rule 57(a).  

By order of the Committee

ALAN JONES
GENERAL MANAGER / SECRETARY
SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB
1 April 2017

Nominations for election to the Committee must be completed on the prescribed form (in accordance with Rule 35) and must be 
received by the General Manager/Secretary no later than 5.00pm on Tuesday, 18 April 2017. 

Registration of Members will commence at 6.00pm on Tuesday, 25 April 2017.

Minutes of the 2016 Annual General Meeting will be made available to Members upon request by post and/or be available to 
attending Members at the Annual General Meeting on Tuesday, 25 April 2017. 
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Members of the General Committee
elected for 2016/2017 were:

President
Mohan J. Bhojwani

Deputy President
Zoher S. Motiwalla 

Chairman, Games Control Board
Sher Baljit Singh  

Finance Member
Hamish A. Christie

Committee Members
George V. Abraham

(Property Subcommittee – Chair)

Joyce Foster 
(Social Subcommittee – Chair)

Anwar Gaffoor
(Marketing & Communications Subcommittee – Chair)

David A. Jones
(Junior Sports Member Subcommittee – Member 

& Assisting Chairman, Games Control Board)

Ananda Kumar
(Establishment Subcommittee – Chair)

Paul A. Lawlass
(Food & Beverage Subcommittee – Chair) 

Jonathan Leow
(Junior Sports Member Subcommittee – Chair)

Matthew C. Streeton
(Rules & Membership Subcommittee – Chair)

On behalf of the General Committee, 
it is my privilege to present to you the 
Singapore Cricket Club’s Annual Report 
and Financial Statements for the year 
ending 31 December 2016.

I would like to convey my sincere appreciation and gratitude to 
the Members of the General Committee (GC) who have so ably 
represented the best interests of the membership throughout 

their term of office in 2016/2017. The GC’s singular commitment 
to the Club’s history, culture and ethos is greatly valued. I would 
further commend them for their dedicated service and for their 
valuable and voluntary time spent on the business affairs of the 
SCC.

President Mohan J. Bhojwani giving a 
speech at a New Members’ Election Night 
at the Gilmour Room

PRESIDENT’S
REPORT
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In accordance with established practice, portfolio responsibilities 
detailing specific objectives were assigned to GC Members, after 
which member volunteer subcommittees were formed providing a 
platform for dialogue with the wider membership at large. Standing 
Subcommittee Members were invited from multiple categories of 
membership and across a diverse range of professional disciplines 
to work closely with the GC as well as the Club Management to 
ensure the smooth and efficient operation of the SCC. 

The Club’s vision remains committed to its primary objective of 
sustaining its position as the “Premier Sports and Social Club in 
Singapore and the Region”. Our strong sporting sections and deep 
social ambience combine to make our Club a special place for 
members to enjoy and cherish the environment that we all create 
as a Prestigious Private Members Club. 

We must also maintain the traditions and values of the Club to 
recognise 165 years of history, at the same time we must do things 
differently and keep up with changes that impact us.  Members 
feedback is a valuable tool to help stay abreast of members’ needs, 
the GC and Management do listen and value greatly comments 
and suggestions in the interests of the Club and the benefit to the 
general membership. The GC keeps members posted through the 
Padang magazine, regular E-Blasts and the Club’s website and 
has communicated on major happenings, done via GC updates to 
inform members. 

Towards the end of 2016 a project has commenced to review 
the IT system for accounting, membership and a whole new 
approach to the F&B point of sale system; our current system 
is more than 10 years old and is in need of an upgrade. We are 
reviewing three shortlisted providers of systems specifically built 
for clubs and we plan to invest in an off-the-shelf system, rather 
than a more expensive custom built one. The new system, due for 
implantation by mid-2017, will provide productivity improvements 
and the investment cost to be justified on manpower savings and 
improved service to members. 

An organisation realignment project has commenced to streamline 
management and to mould an effective team of professionals with 
the objective of having “a well-run” professional management 
organisation. A number of cost cutting initiatives have begun 
where a number of full time positions have been combined and/or 
eliminated resulting in savings of around $200,000 for the full year 
of 2017. Existing policies and work flows have been revamped 
to improve productivity and efficiency across the Club. Most 
importantly, it is done to enhance members’ experiences at the 
Club. 

Even though the Club is not a profit driven entity, there is a bottom 
line to take care of and economic factors come into play as we 
run the operations. Revenue improvement measures are in place, 
such as the appointment of a full time Membership Sales Manager 
that has seen a welcome increase in new members joining the 
SCC family. F&B are taking new initiatives to offer members more 
attractive promotions and improved service levels at the outlets to 
enhance members’ experiences. Again a highly successful SCC 
Night Race Fiesta was held, generating much needed revenue and 
delighting members who experienced this spectacular event. 

Due to an unfortunate turn of events, we were without a General 
Manager for almost five months; on 1 August 2016 I was pleased 
to announce the interim appointment of Alan Jones as General 
Manager of the Club. Alan was a past GM of the Club for five 
years from 2007 to 2012; it was further felt that someone with 
prior involvement with the SCC be a useful consideration for this 
interim appointment. The incoming Committee will progress the 
appointment of a permanent General Manager. 

PRESIDENT’S REPORT

President Mohan J. Bhojwani welcoming new members at the monthly New Members’ Election Night
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For a number of years now, we have a temporary storage structure 
on the Padang, located next to the cricket practise nets and the 
compressor chillers. This storage is used to house the equipment 
needed to maintain our iconic Padang field. Members will have 
noticed the government’s investment and upgrade of the historic 
civic district over recent times. In keeping with the upgrade, The 
Urban Redevelopment Authority (URA) are collaborating with us 
to tear down the temporary tent structure and replace it with a 
permanent structure that is designed to be in harmony with the 
historic district. 

A Task Force was formed, chaired by CGCB, Sher Baljit Singh to 
engage URA and come up with a URA approved structure that will 
adequately service the Club’s needs as well. The project is at an 
advanced stage and the construction work is to be commenced 
and completed by mid-2017. 

Three major international tournaments were successfully held 
in 2016 – Hockey Sixes, Soccer Sixes and Rugby Sevens. The 
Cricket Twenty20 was deferred and will take place in 2017. It 
is pleasing to note that the three tournaments all made a small 
surplus. Congratulations must go to the Organising Committees 
who achieved this and we feel we have template in place to ensure 
tournaments in future do not incur a deficit.  

In closing, I again express my sincere appreciation and gratitude 
to my fellow volunteer GC Members, Subcommittee Members, 
Sports Convenors, Tournament Organising Committee Members, 
as well as to the SCC Management and Staff for their support, 
conscientiousness and industry over the past year. Lastly and 
most assuredly by no means least my very sincere ‘thanks’ also 
to all SCC members for your valued and continued patronage at 
the Club. 

Mohan J. Bhojwani
President
Singapore Cricket Club

PRESIDENT’S REPORT

President Mohan J Bhojwani at the 2016 SCC International Rugby Sevens with Ablitt Cup winners, England Academy
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President
Mohan J. Bhojwani

Deputy President
Zoher S. Motiwalla

Chairman, Games Control Board
Sher Baljit Singh

Finance Member
Hamish A. Christie

Committee Members
George V. Abraham

Joyce Foster
Anwar Gaffoor
David A. Jones
Ananda Kumar
Paul A. Lawlass
Jonathan Leow

Matthew C. Streeton

Back row/left: Alan Jones, Jonathan Leow, Ananda Kumar, Anwar Gaffoor, Joyce Foster, Paul A. Lawlass, George V. Abraham, David A. Jones, Matthew C. Streeton
Front row/left: Sher Baljit Singh, Mohan J. Bhojwani, Zoher S. Motiwalla, Hamish A. Christie

THE GENERAL 
COMMITTEE
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From left: Judy Ting, Gow Hui Yian, Jill Woo, Alan Jones, Janet Ng, Chovin Blix Ong, Jessica Ng

General Manager
Alan Jones

Executive Secretary
Jill Woo

Financial Controller
Gow Hui Yian

Head, Sports & Recreation
Janet Ng

Head, Operations
Chovin Blix Ong

Head, Property & Housekeeping
Judy Ting

Head, Human Resource
Jessica Ng

THE EXECUTIVE 
STAFF
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Back row/left: Stanley Goh, Olivia Law Geok Lian, Ken Ang, Wendy Foo, Eunicia Tan, Ganesh Ramanathan, Intekhab Khan, Samuel Sharpe, Thipa Mogan, Jason Teo, Sally 
Brenchley, Ronnie Smollet, Andrea Nicholas, Hugh Darwell, Janet Ng. Front row/left: Tony Fisher, Sadaf Whiskin, Sher Baljit Singh, Chionh Chye Hion, Wilfred Lim. Inset/left: 
Hamish A. Christie, Matthew C. Streeton, David A. Jones, Jonathan Leow. Not in photo: T. Q. Lim, Desmond Decker, Dominic Lane.

First and foremost, I would like to express my sincere thanks 
and heartfelt appreciation to the Games Control Board (GCB) 
members comprising Convenors from 13 Sports Sections 

and my fellow General Committee members – David A. Jones 
and Jonathan Leow. I am grateful for their robust efforts and 
continued dedication in their pursuit of making their respective 
sections as self-sufficient as possible with minimal reliance on 
SCC grants through various measures. None of the work that the 
GCB has done this year would have been possible without their 
involvement. I am also thankful to the GC that has been whole-
heartedly supporting our endeavours.

I am pleased to share that this year we have streamlined the budget 
for 2016 and are working progressively towards a leaner budget 
for 2017. The GCB is looking to make substantial and productive 
changes in our sports as well as sports budget.

Among the major changes put in place are:
 • All coaching is progressively self-funded.
 • All club tour subsidies have substantially been reduced 

and many eliminated.
 • The entertainment grant is now a fixed quantum per section 

to host visiting clubs/teams.
 • Sports insurance is increasingly being handled by the 

sections.

Chairman
Sher Baljit Singh

Subcommittee Members
Hamish A. Christie

Matthew C. Streeton
David A. Jones
Jonathan Leow

Tony Fisher
Desmond Decker

Olivia Law Geok Lian
T. Q. Lim

Hugh Darwell
Paul Murphy

Chionh Chye Hion
Intekhab Khan
Sadaf Whiskin
Samuel Sharpe
Dominic Lane

Andrea Nicholas
Wilfred Lim

 

GAMES CONTROL BOARD
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On the income side, positive steps have been taken to increase 
our revenues. This came in the form of commendable efforts 
by sections such as Hockey and Squash who increased their 
subscriptions. Rugby has also taken a remarkable step in raising 
theirs from $15 to $25. A move sincerely appreciated by the GCB. 

A wider range of beverage and snacks at Dempsey on cash-term 
basis is also being offered for better user experience. Substantially 
increasing rental revenue from Dempsey and Padang fields to 
cover the field maintenance expenses without affecting our 
sporting calendar is another move we are proud of.

We have also had a hugely successful and profitable Rugby 
Sevens, along with the Hockey Sixes and Soccer Sixes. These are 
tournaments that hugely lift the branding of our Club in the local 
and international sporting community. 

Going forward we are laying more emphasis on making our 
academies centres of sporting excellence. We hope to groom 
juniors who can go on to become full members of the Club. The 
academies will also provide a stream of revenue for the Club. In 
order to further attract the best juniors in the country we have 
started a Junior Sports Members scholarship. These steps will 
hopefully provide us with a steady stream of new members and 
lower the average age of membership, besides attracting the best 
junior sporting talent.

The sections have been encouraged not only to play but to also 
spend more social time at the Club. I urge all members to join 
a section not just for your chosen sport but also to immerse 
yourselves in various monthly social activities which would help 
grow your network of friends exponentially. On the social side, 
there has been a significant increase in sports functions and after-
match drinks. We are also starting new initiatives like Touch Rugby 
and summer academies for juniors to attract more members to the 
Club. There are more activities like Bridge Beginners Clinic, Social 
Croquet and Introduction to Lawn Bowls organised by the sections 
and are now open to all members to engage their interest. 

To further build our SCC brand name, the Sports Sections have 
organised various events. Billiards and Snooker invited World 
Ranked No. 3, Rob Hall and No. 23, Gary Norman for an exhibition 
game, Soccer organised a coaching camp with FC Porta and 
Cricket invited Brian Lara for a weekend at the Club.

The long established annual intersection tournaments and matches 
were re-initiated by the respective sections which have promoted 
camaraderie and friendship among the members.

Through the efforts made by the sections, SCC scored double 
whammy wins in the multi-sports games against the Singapore 
Recreation Club at the Padang Shield Games in July and The 
Tanglin Club at the Annual Pot Games in October. We also hosted 
the Melbourne Cricket Club for a multi-sports game in April and we 
won overall. What a feat for 2016! Great thanks to all participating 
members.

The GCB would like to thank all Club members for their great 
support in helping the Club as we face formidable challenges in 
the renewal of the Padang lease and managing our finances while 
constantly striving to uphold our sporting traditions and heritage.

Sher Baljit Singh
Chairman
Games Control Board

SCC SPORTS SECTION ACHIEVEMENTS SUMMARY 2016 

BALUT

Annual Balut Triangular Trophy (SCC-NUSS-IA)
SCC emerged champions. 

Balut Invitational Pairs Competition
1st place: Robin Tessensohn and Rosemary Tessensohn 
2nd place: Yasmin Gaffoor and Mohan Dadlani 
3rd place: Else Stokkmo and Rolv Stokkmo 

32nd Interclub Balut Tournament
SCC Team 5 (Jasmin Fisher, Ben Cunico, Else Stokkmo and 
Rosemary Tessensohn) emerged champions. Jasmin Fisher was 
also awarded ‘Baluteer of the Year’ trophy.

Indian Association Christmas Pairs Tournament
Yasmin Gaffoor and Fahmi Hassanbhai won the overall champion 
title.

3rd Invitational Inter-club Competition 
SCC Team (Joyce Foster and Rosemary Tessensohn) emerged 
second place.

BILLIARDS & SNOOKER 

RPDYC 1st Invitational Snooker Tournament
SCC emerged champions.

SCC Whiteball Handicap Volunteer Tournament
Champion: Jason Tan 
Runner-up: Michael Yeomans 

Royal Selangor Club Six-Red Invitational Snooker Tournament
The team consisting of Glenn Yeo, Peter Gilchrist, Matthew Lim, 
Gerard Ee, Victor Yeong, Jason Teo, Tan Bak Choon and Desmond 
Decker clinched the trophy for the first time since the inception of 
this tournament.

9th PSC Inter-Club Invitational Snooker Tournament
SCC emerged runners-up.

Interport with Penang Sports Club
SCC emerged champions.

IBSF World Billiards Championships 2016 & Other International 
Tournaments 
Peter Gilchrist: 4-time World Champion in the long-up format and 
runner-up in the 150-up format. He was also champion for the 
Australian and New Zealand Open and World Billiards LITEtask 
Borders Open.

BOWLS

Lawn Bowls Championships hosted by the Angeles Sports 
and Country Club
The SCC Bowls comprising Wong Hui Kai, Melvin Tan, Shermeen 
Lim and Chng Ming Li were runners-up in the Plate division. 

SUBCOMMITTEE GAMES CONTROL BOARD
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Bowls Singapore National Singles
Ladies’ Singles Champion: Virginia Longfellow
Men’s Singles Runner-up: Christian Huang

Bowls Singapore National Pairs Championship
2nd Place: S R Ganesh and Edmund Lin
3rd Place: Melvin Tan and Wong Hui Kai 

Bowls Singapore National Triples
Champions (Ladies’ Pairs): Shermeen Lim, Chng Ming Li and 
Candy Lai

Bowls Singapore National Fours
The team comprised of Shermeen Lim, Chng Ming Li, Amira Goh 
and Candy Lai emerged champions in the National Fours.

Bowls Singapore Singles League
2nd Place (Ladies’ Singles): Virginia Longfellow
3rd Place (Ladies’ Singles): Shermeen Lim
3rd Place (Men’s Singles): Christian Huang

Annual Triangular & Interport with KBGC
The SCC team emerged victorious in both competitions. 

Lion City Cup 
3rd Place: SCC B (Christian Huang, Edmund Lin, Amira Goh, Mary 
Lim and Candy Lai)

Asia Bowls Championship 
3rd Place (Men’s Event): Christian Huang

World Singles Champion of Champions
Joint Bronze medallist: Virginia Longfellow

BRIDGE

Premier Bridge League 
The Bridge Section had a successful league, ranking fifth out of 
eight teams. This is a huge improvement from last year’s results 
where SCC was placed last in their inaugural participation.

CRICKET

Singapore Cricket Association Clubs League 
3rd Place (Division 3): SCC Cheetahs
Best All-Rounder: Ajun Vijayan (SCC Lions)

Interport with Royal Bangkok Sports Club
SCC emerged champions.

23rd PSC International Cricket 6s Tournament
SCC emerged as Plate winners. 

SCC Masters League 2016
SCC Sphinx retained the title.

GOLF

SCC vs Changi Golf Club Annual Game
SCC emerged champions.

HOCKEY

SCC Hockey Team Performance 2016
Men’s Division 1  Bronze
Ladies’ Division 1  Bronze
Men’s Division 2 6th position
Ladies’ Division 2  5th position
Men’s Division 3 4th position
Men’s Division 5 Bronze

National Junior League 2016
Boys’ Under 19 Bronze
Girls’ Under 19 Gold

National Junior League 2016: Girls (Division 2) and Boys 
(Division 3) 
The SCC Girls team won gold and SCC Boys won bronze in the 
National Junior League 2016. The Girls’ team will be promoted to 
Division 1 next year.

NETBALL

SCC Ladies Netball League 
Division 1 Champions: SCC Hawks 

Silkpro National League – Mixed Division
Runners-up: SCC Falcons 

National League 
Division 3 Champions: SCC Eagles
Division 7 Runners-up: SCC Ospreys

Mission Foods Beach Netball Festival – Women’s Open
SCC emerged runners-up.

Bangkok Southerners Tournament 
SCC emerged runners-up in the Plate category.

3rd SCC Netball Schools Carnival organised by the Netball 
Section, 19 November 2016
U15 Champion: Sport Ready
U17 Champion: Anderson Secondary School

RUGBY

SRU National League 
SCC Tankards emerged champions for the fourth consecutive 
time.

SRU Club 7s Series 
SCC emerged champions.

Manila 10s Tournament 
SCC Growlers won the title for the Veterans competition on this 
self-funding tour.

Muddy Penny Cup
Runners-up: SCC Growlers

SUBCOMMITTEE GAMES CONTROL BOARD
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SOCCER

Cosmo League 2015/2016
SCC First XI Team emerged champions for the Cup (eighth 
consecutive year) and runners-up for the league. 

Equatorial Football League Cup 
SCC Strollers won the 2016 EFL Cup title. 

ESPZEN League 
SCC Tigers emerged runners-up.

Annual Trophy Games 
SCC Thirds retained the Tiger Cup (with Asia Pacific Breweries) 
and Deepavali Cup (with Singapore Indian Association).

SCC Lions won the Henrik Lorenz Cup (with German All-Stars).

SCC Pads won the Brietling Cup (with Singapore Coaches).

Interport with Royal Selangor Club
SCC won after a 13-year hiatus in the SCC vs RSC Interport Match 
– The Clements Trophy.

Anthony Michael Grice Memorial Cup Match: SCC vs Penang 
Sports Club (Interport)
SCC won the renamed inaugural Anthony Michael Grice Memorial 
Cup between SCC and PSC. 

SQUASH

National Squash League
1st Place: Men’s B, Men’s C and Ladies’ Division 1
2nd Place: Men’s Premier

National Squash Cup Challenge
1st Place: Men’s B, Men’s C and Ladies’ Division 1
2nd Place: Men’s Premier

TENNIS

Singapore Tennis Association Interclub Singles League 
The SCC Ladies’ A and Ladies’ B teams have emerged as Doubles 
champions in their respective divisions.

Interclub Doubles Knock-Out Tournament 2016
Ladies’ A team emerged runners-up.

ANNUAL INTER-CLUB TOURNAMENTS 

Melbourne Cricket Club Multi-Sports Visit, 5-10 April 2016
87 guests from MCC had an enjoyable time during their visit 
playing at the various venues in Singapore. SCC emerged as the 
overall winner in this third meeting of multi-sports section games. 

Cricket  SCC won
Golf  Draw
Hockey  SCC won
Netball  MCC won
Squash  SCC won
Tennis  SCC won

Annual Pot Games: SCC vs The Tanglin Club, 1 October 2016
SCC emerged as the overall winner at the 34th Annual Pot Games 
against The Tanglin Club. 121 SCC members including the GC 
attended the dinner hosted by The Tanglin Club at the Churchill 
Room that evening.

SPORTS RESULTS
Lawn Bowls 
Lawn Bowls Trophy

SCC won 4 - 1
SCC retained the Trophy

Cricket SCC won 156 - 6
SCC retained the Cup

Golf
The President’s Golf Challenge Trophy

TC won 7 - 2, 1 draw

Tennis TC won 4 - 3
Squash SCC won 9 - 2
Bridge TC won 246 - 92
Balut
Balut Trophy

SCC won 14032 - 13322

Billiards & Snooker 
Tony Church Snooker Trophy

SCC won 7 - 0

Darts SCC won 6 - 3

Bi-Annual Padang Shield Games: SCC vs SRC hosted by SCC, 
9 July 2016
SCC retained the Shield this year with six wins, four loses and one 
draw. The results for the respective games are as follows:

SPORTS RESULTS
Balut SCC won by 416 points

SCC - 9126 / SRC - 8710
Snooker SCC won 3 - 2
Bridge SCC won 66 - 54
Cricket SRC won by 106 runs
Darts SRC won 8 - 1
Golf Drawn (rained 0ff)
Ladies’ Hockey SRC won 3 - 0
Men’s Hockey SRC won 7 - 0
Netball SCC won 32 - 29
Soccer SCC won 1 - 0
Tennis SCC won 2 - 1

INTERSECTION TOURNAMENTS 

Darts Intersection Bull’s Eye Tournament, 12 August 2016
1st Place:  Squash 
2nd Place:  Tennis 
3rd Place:  Bowls 

Giles Roche Intersection Lawn Bowls Tournament, 15 October 
2016
A total of 12 teams from Balut, Bridge, Cricket, Golf, Hockey, 
Netball, Rugby, Soccer, Squash, Tennis, and the GC participated 
in the closely contested tournament.  

Final standings: 
1st Place: GC Team
2nd Place: Cricket
3rd Place: Balut

SUBCOMMITTEE GAMES CONTROL BOARD
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Netball Intersection Tournament, 19 November 2016
1st Place: Squash
2nd Place: Tennis
3rd Place: Bowls

SCC INTERNATIONAL TOURNAMENTS

22nd SCC International Hockey 6s, 5 & 6 March 2016 

Ladies’ Competition
Ladies’ Cup Winner: The Pink Ladies
Ladies’ Plate Winner: International Sports 
 Club Indonesia
Ladies’ Bowl Winner: Touring Lions

SCC Flamingos emerged Cup Runners-up for the Ladies’ Competition.

Men’s Competition
Men’s Cup Winner: Colombo Hockey &
 Football Club
Men’s Plate Winner: Anzai Japan
Men’s Bowl Winner: Gymkhana Club

Ladies’ Player of the Tournament: Rosalind Spink 
 (SCC Flamingos)
Men’s Player of the Tournament: Abraham Lomas 
 (Hollandse Club)

8th SCC International Soccer 6s, 4 & 5 June 2016

Open Tournament
Open Cup Winners:  Vikings Singapore
Open Plate Winner:  Tokyo Panthers 

SCC Firsts emerged Cup runners-up for the Open Tournament.

Top Goal Scorer:  Talgo Seki (Tokyo Panthers)

Masters Tournament
Masters Cup Winner:  Hong Kong FC
Masters Plate Winner:  Avenue FC

Legends Tournament
Legends Cup Winner:  Singapore Ex Internationals

Youth Tournament
Youth Cup Winner:  Phnom Penh Crown Club

SCC International Rugby 7s (69th Edition), 4-6 November 2016

Main Tournament
Cup Winner: England Academy
Shield Winner:  Daveta
Plate Winner: SCC
Bowl Winner:  Froggies Sevens Rugby Club

Player of the Final: Cam Cowell (England Academy)
Player of the Tournament: Iewan Bartels (SCC)

Schools & Colleges Tournament
Sithawalla Trophy (U18):  Tanglin Trust School
John Clark Shield (U16): Lycee Francais de Singapour
Len Foster Trophy (U14):  Lycee Francais de Singapour

9TH SPORTS AWARDS ACHIEVEMENTS, 15 APRIL 2016 

Spirit of Sport (Balut) Sunita Kapoor

Spirit of Sport (Billiards & Snooker) Glenn Yeo

Spirit of Sport (Bowls) T. Velu

Spirit of Sport (Bridge) Olivia Law Geok Lian

Spirit of Sport (Cricket) Riaz Altaff Hussein

Spirit of Sport (Darts) Shelia Nagiah

Spirit of Sport (Golf) Allan Muir 

Spirit of Sport (Hockey) Jamie Chambers

Spirit of Sport (Netball) Fiona Chesney

Spirit of Sport (Rugby) Marc Lansonneur

Spirit of Sports (Soccer) Glyn Vince

Spirit of Sport (Squash) Rahul Khare

Spirit of Sport (Tennis) Soenke Langhoff

Sports Initiative of the Year Netball JSM Carnival

Sports Feat of the Year Societe Generale 
SCC Tankards (Rugby)

Sports Girl of the Year Mao Shi Yuan (Squash)

Sports Boy of the Year Bryan Koh (Squash)

Sports Woman of the Year Catherine Wheeler 
(Hockey)

Sports Man of the Year Ken Forbes (Hockey)

Team of the Year SCC 1st XI 
– Men’s Division 1 (Hockey)

Section of the Year Hockey

Lifetime Achievement Award Zoher Motiwalla

SUBCOMMITTEE GAMES CONTROL BOARD
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Chairman
Hamish A. Christie

Subcommittee Members
Zoher S. Motiwalla
Sher Baljit Singh
Ananda Kumar

Jonathan M. E. Robinson
Thomas J. Monahan

In 2016, Gross Operating Revenue of S$18,729,000 was lower 
than 2015 by S$191,000.

The Operating Deficit for the year was S$1,112,000 compared with 
a Deficit of S$2,016,000 in 2015.

The Bottom Line Surplus was S$465,000, compared with a Deficit 
of S$352,000 in 2015.

OPERATING FINANCIAL POSITION

Operating Revenue

Operating Revenue of S$18,729,000 for 2016 was S$191,000 
lower than last year’s S$18,920,000. The slight decrease in 
Operating Revenue came mainly from lower Subscription fees and 
Sports & Recreation revenue, partially offset by an increase in F&B 
revenue and Other income.

Back row/left: Alan Jones, Zoher S. Motiwalla, Ananda Kumar, Hamish A. Christie, Jonathan M.E. Robinson, Sher Baljit Singh. 
Front row/left: Jolene Yam, Jesline Yeow, Gow Hui Yian, Doris Ng, Rachel Koh. Not in photo: Thomas J. Monahan.

FINANCE 
SUBCOMMITTEE
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SUBCOMMITTEE FINANCE

Operating Expenditure

The Operating Expenditure for 2016 was S$19,842,000, S$1,094,000 lower when compared with S$20,936,000 in 2015. 

Significant progress has been made in reducing operating costs in 2016. The lower expenditure was mainly due to lower Sports and 
Recreation Expenditure excluding manpower and depreciation of S$236,000, lower Property, Plant and Equipment written off of 
S$233,000, lower Repair and Maintenance cost of S$108,000, lower Manpower costs of S$167,000, lower Meeting and Election Night 
cost of S$102,000, lower Social Event costs of S$102,000, lower Professional Fees of S$62,000, lower Miscellaneous expenses of 
S$74,000, lower Night Race costs of S$67,000 and lower Utilities costs of S$62,000. The resulting decrease in Operating Expenditure 
was partially offset by the higher Property Tax expense of S$79,000 and higher F&B Cost of Sales of S$77,000.  

Operating Deficit

The Operating Deficit of S$1,112,000 for 2016 was S$904,000 lower than last year’s Operating Deficit of S$2,016,000. 

NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) 

After taking into account membership transfer fees of S$843,000, conversion fees of S$529,000, interest income of S$225,000 and 
income tax expense of S$20,000, there was a net surplus of S$465,000 for 2016, compared with a net deficit of S$352,000 in 2015.

After excluding non-recurring items from plant and equipment write-off resulting from the 2015 Clubhouse Redevelopment and the 
property tax recovery in 2015, the comparable bottom line results for 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

2016 (S$) 2015 (S$)

Net Bottom line Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 465,000 (352,000)

Less Non-Recurring items :
Prior Year Adjustments -   235,000
Property Tax Recovery -   (77,000)

Comparable Net Bottom line Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 465,000 (194,000)

There is an increase of S$659,000 in the comparable net bottom line mainly due to lower comparative operating expenses of S$936,000, 
partially set-off by lower comparative operating revenue of S$191,000 and lower non-operating income of S$69,000 and higher income 
tax of S$18,000.

CLUB’S OPERATING AND NET SURPLUS / (DEFICIT)
YEAR 2006 TO 2016
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HIGHLIGHTS OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR

Subscription and Fees

Subscription and fees, one of the Club’s main sources of income, 
decreased by 2% to S$5,722,000 in 2016, mainly due to a decrease 
in Subscription fees of S$93,000 as the active membership base 
reduces resulting from members going onto the absent members’ 
list. 

Food and Beverage (F&B) 

A significant improvement in F&B’s results was achieved in 2016.   
At net operating result level, F&B incurred a reduced deficit of 
S$394,000 compared with a deficit of S$840,000 in 2015.

F&B Revenue increased by 4% to S$8,967,000 in 2016 mainly due 
to the closure of the Padang field for seven months in 2015. The 
F&B Cost of Sales to Sales Ratio decreased by 0.9% to 43.2% 
in 2016 mainly due to sales mix change with a slightly higher 
proportion of food sales, higher supplier rebates and tighter cost 
controls. The resulting Gross Profit increased to S$5,089,000 in 
2016, compared with S$4,815,000 in 2015.

Sports and Recreation

Revenue from Sports and Recreation decreased by 12% 
or S$317,000 to S$2,252,000 in 2016, mainly due to lower 
Tournament Income of S$167,000 and lower Field Rental Income 
of S$219,000. The resulting lower revenues were partially offset 
by higher Sports Section Income of S$46,000 and higher Sports 
Membership Fees of S$19,000. The lower Tournament Income is 
mainly attributable to lower Sponsorship Income for the Rugby 7s. 
The lower Field Rental Income is mainly attributable to a one-off 
rental of S$415,000 for the Padang Field by the National Gallery 
Singapore in 2015.

Sports and Recreation Expenditure excluding manpower and 
depreciation has decreased by S$236,000 mainly due to lower 
Tournament Expenditure by S$318,000 due to lower Rugby 7s 
Tournament Expenditure and lower Ground Maintenance costs of 
S$21,000, partially offset by higher Sports Section Expenditure of 
S$100,000.

The Club’s main sports tournaments in 2016, Rugby, Soccer and 
Hockey, all made small surpluses.

Overall, Sports and Recreation had net expenditure of S$1,036,000 
in 2016, compared with S$1,041,000 in 2015. Initiatives have been 
put in place that will further reduce costs in the coming year.

Manpower Costs

Manpower costs decreased by S$167,000 from last year’s 
S$8,468,000 to S$8,301,000 mainly due to lower salaries and 
wages and higher wage credits of S$66,000. The lower Salaries 
and Wages are mainly due to some key positions being vacant for 
some of the months.

Sinking Fund

At the Annual General Meeting of the members of the Club held on 
28 April 2016, it was resolved that a Sinking Fund be established 
to set aside funds for the lease renewal for the Club and for capital 
expenditure as specifically authorised by the general body of 
members.
 
It was further resolved that S$10,800,000 be immediately 
transferred into the Sinking Fund, and that all payments received 
as membership transfer and conversion fees be paid into the 
Sinking Fund.
 
Pursuant to the above resolutions, a Sinking Fund was established 
in the Club’s accounting records. We have made an initial transfer 
of S$10,800,000 from the  Accumulated Funds to the Sinking Fund, 
followed by S$1,372,000 of Transfer Fees and Conversion Fees 
and S$170,000 of interest received on fixed deposits attributed to 
the Sinking Fund in 2016.

Prior Year Adjustments

Management has reviewed the expenditures capitalised following 
the Clubhouse renovation work carried out in 2015, and identified 
certain replaced items to be written off. Certain items have also 
been reclassified to more appropriate categories which have 
different estimated useful lives.

The replaced items written off as prior year adjustments in 2015 
and adjustments for depreciation costs, resulted in a restated loss 
of S$352,000 from the previously reported loss of S$117,000. 

Cash Position

As at the end of 2016, the Club had cash resources of S$20,114,000 
as compared to S$17,287,000 in 2015, reflecting a positive cash 
in-flow of S$2,828,000. This positive cash flow is after accounting 
for Depreciation expense of S$2,037,000, being a non-cash item.
 
The increase in cash flows is partly attributed to the receipt of 
reimbursements from the Government of expenditure incurred in 
2015 in the reinstatement of the Padang field of S$1,356,000.

The Club’s cash reserves need to be enhanced each year so that 
sufficient funds are available for the renewal of the Padang lease 
and for capital projects. 

SUBCOMMITTEE FINANCE
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THE YEAR AHEAD

Going forward, the Club continues to face pressures in cost 
increases especially in manpower, food and beverage and other 
operating expenses. As such, there will need to be continued efforts 
to focus on improvement in productivity and cost controls, and 
the Club will need to continue to achieve further cost reductions 
and identify additional sources of revenue to reduce the Operating 
Deficit as far as possible.

The last increase in Members’ subscriptions was in 2010 and 
whilst 2016 has been a better year for the Club from a financial 
standpoint, continued upward pressure on costs will at some 
point mean that the Club must again look at the level of Members’ 
subscriptions to more closely match Operating Revenue and 
Expenditure.

Social Events

Social Events

0%

Food and Beverage  

Food and Beverage  

S$8,967 ('16) VS S$8,615 ('15)
48%

Subscription and fees

Subscription and fees

S$5,722 ('16) VS S$5,820 ('15)
31%

Sundry Income

Sundry Income

S$821 ('16) VS S$961 ('15)

S$60 ('16) VS S$96 ('15)

4% Car Park fees

Car Park fees

S$784 ('16) VS S$684 ('15)
4%

Fruit Machines

Fruit Machines

S$124 ('16) VS S$176 ('15)
1%

Sports and Recreation

Sports and Recreation

S$2,252 ('16) VS S$2,569 ('15)
12% Office and Administration

S$321 ('16) VS S$363 ('15)
2%

3%

General Expenses
S$665 ('16) VS S$1,162 ('15)

Property (Maintenance and Tax)
S$1,148 ('16) VS S$1,233 ('15)

6%

Depreciation
S$2,037 ('16) VS S$2,066 ('15)

10%

Management & Other staff
S$2,922 ('16) VS S$2,904 ('15)

15%

Social Events

Sports and RecreationFood and Beverage
General ExpensesOffice and AdministrationProperty (Maintenance and Tax)
Management & Other staff

Depreciation

Social Events
S$286 ('16) VS S$385 ('15)

1%

Sports and Recreation
S$3,162 ('16) VS S$3,426 ('15)

16%

Food and Beverage
S$9,301 ('16) VS S$9,398 ('15)

47%

2016 OPERATING INCOME ($’000)
BASED ON TOTAL INCOME OF S$18,729 (’16) VS S$18,920 (’15)

2016 OPERATING EXPENDITURE ($’000)
BASED ON TOTAL EXPENDITURE OF S$19,842 (’16) VS S$20,936 (’15)

SUBCOMMITTEE FINANCE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all fellow members 
of the Finance Subcommittee who selflessly contributed their 
valuable time and expertise during the year.

I will also like to thank the Financial Controller and her team for 
their commitment and continued efforts.

Hamish A. Christie
Finance Member
Finance Subcommittee
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I felt honoured to be elected as a General Committee Member in 
April 2016 and was equally excited with the appointment as the 
Chairman of the Establishment Subcommittee (ESC).  

Over the one year term, I have worked closely with Management 
particularly on human resources related matters. This has helped 
me to gain better insights of the SCC members of staff who have 
contributed much to the growth of the Singapore Cricket Club 
and who have whole-heartedly served the SCC members all these 
years, working relentlessly to achieve the vision of the SCC to be 
the premier sports and social club in the region.

2016 was indeed a challenging year for the Club, having to cope 
with the changing demands of manpower and rising staff costs. In 
order to augment the manpower situation, the Club has embarked 
on various manpower strategies such as obtaining new sources of 
manpower, multi-skilling and multi-tasking.  

I am delighted to present some key information and highlights for 
2016 that serve as testimony to the strong policies and the high 
standards of human resource management practices at the Club. 

Chairman
Ananda Kumar

Subcommittee Members
V.P Jothi

Rajan Menon
Matthew C. Streeton
Leonard Thangavelu

From left: Matthew C. Streeton, Alan Jones, Ananda Kumar, Jessica Ng. Not in photo: V.P. Jothi, Rajan Menon, Leonard Thangavelu

ESTABLISHMENT 
SUBCOMMITTEE
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SUBCOMMITTEE ESTABLISHMENT 

HEADCOUNT
The year 2015 saw the Club’s total manpower reduced by four 
headcounts over the previous year (2014) but there was an overall 
increase of two headcounts in the year of 2016 over that of the 
year 2015.

DEPARTMENT 2015 2016

General Manager’s Office 2 2

Membership Admin 2 2

Membership Sales 0 1

Member Services 5 6

Marketing & Communications 2 3

Admin/IT/Purchasing 7 7

Finance 8 10

Fruit Machine 2 2

Human Resources 3 3

Food & Beverage 92 89

Housekeeping 12 13

Maintenance 8 8

Sports & Recreation 16 15

Total Headcount
(Permanent Full-time)

159 161

Arising from the review of the Club’s operations, a Membership 
Sales Manager was identified internally and appointed in 
September. Within a short period of three months, the membership 
sales revenue improved significantly. It has thus proven that 
dedicated sales attention is the key to success.

The Member Services as well as the Marketing & Communications 
(Marcom) Departments saw an increase of one headcount each 
in 2016 against that of 2015 due to the replacement of a Member 
Services Assistant and a Marcom Manager respectively.

The Finance and Administration Department comprising Finance 
& Admin, IT, Purchasing and Fruit Machine, also has two more 
headcounts in 2016 due to the replacement of the Accounts 
Executive that were vacant at the close of the year 2015.

The Food & Beverage (F&B) Department closed at three fewer 
headcounts in 2016 compared to 2015 due to the pending 
replacement of two kitchen staff and the vacant post for the Head 
of Food & Beverage.  

2016 Long Service Award recipients

2016 Staff Party Organising Committee
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The Medical Leave Policy was enhanced to recognise medical 
certificates issued by doctors in Malaysia effective June 2016. The 
Club also accepts reimbursement of dental expenses incurred in 
Malaysia.

The allowable claim for reimbursement of shoes purchased by 
uniformed staff for work purposes has also been increased as an 
enhancement to staff benefits.

In order to act in a fiscally more prudent manner, with effect from 
the year 2016, the Annual Leave Policy has been amended to 
limit the number of annual leave balance that an employee can 
carry forward for clearance in the following year. This change 
has presented remarkable results with a reduction of 27% and 
29% in the annual leave balance and leave provisions required 
respectively for the year 2016 vis-à-vis 2015.

To encourage a healthy lifestyle, the Club awards a tiered Stay Fit 
Incentive to employees who have taken an aggregate of no more 
than seven days of sick leave or no pay leave in a calendar year, 
ranging from S$100 to S$500 for employees with zero such leaves 
taken.

STAFF WELFARE
Monthly Staff Events are held at the Club to celebrate the birthdays 
of employees that fall in the same month and awards such as 
the Honesty Award and Long Service Award are presented to 
deserving employees at the same occasion.

With an aim to groom staff with potentials and embrace multi-
skilling, the Head of Sales & Marketing was re-designated as 
the Head of Operations to oversee the F&B Services in addition 
to Banquet & Events and Member Services whilst the Executive 
Chef oversees the F&B Kitchen – both of them handle the F&B 
Department under the charge of the General Manager.  

The Property & Housekeeping (Housekeeping and Maintenance) 
Department saw an increase of one headcount in 2016 due to the 
recruitment of one Housekeeping Assistant whereas the Sports 
& Recreation Departments has one fewer headcount due to the 
transfer of one staff to the Marcom Department in 2016.  

MANPOWER TURNOVER
The Club’s average monthly Staff Turnover Rate for the year of 
2016 has been maintained at a healthy range of below 2% and 
that clearly proves that the Club’s Employee Retention Policy has 
made a most positive impact on staff retention.

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
Following a lengthy and tedious negotiation process, I am 
extremely proud to announce the successful renewal of the 
Collective Agreement between the Singapore Catering Services, 
Staffs & Workers Trade Union and the Singapore Cricket Club 
for a further three-year term. This has also strengthened the 
harmonious industrial relationship between the two parties as they 
work together to create a conducive work environment for all the 
employees.  

COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS
The Club constantly endeavours to maintain its competitiveness in 
terms of compensation and benefits that includes both monetary 
and non-monetary rewards and recognitions in order to retain 
good employees.

On behalf of the SCC members of staff, I take this opportunity to 
thank all SCC members who have contributed to the Staff Ang 
Pow Fund which was distributed to all SCC members of staff as 
an appreciation of their hard work and dedication of services to the 
Club and its members.

2016 Excellent Service Award recipients

Monthly staff birthday celebration

SUBCOMMITTEE ESTABLISHMENT 
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Following four memorable Staff Parties held outside the Club 
premises since 2012, the Club has organised yet another 
magnificent Staff Party at the Grand Copthorne Waterfront Hotel in 
April 2016 with the theme of ‘Splash of Colours’. The staff not only 
get to immerse themselves in the ambience and hospitality of the 
hotel, they also enjoyed the scrumptious spread of buffet dinner 
as well as the fun, games and lucky draw prizes specially arranged 
for them in appreciation of their hard work and dedication to the 
Club.

STAFF SURVEY
A Staff Survey was conducted in September to gauge the ‘health’ 
of staff satisfaction club-wide. 82% of the staff participated with 
an overall satisfaction result of 95%. It was a heartening and 
positive feedback. Comments and suggestions made by staff on 
the survey form are progressively being attended to.

‘DO IT BETTER!’ PROGRAMME
Staff have been encouraged to review current processes, offerings, 
etc. and to make suggestions on how to improve working 
conditions for staff and/or enhance member experience at the 
SCC. Staff have generally been pro-active and several initiatives 
received have been implemented. In return, participants of the 
programme have received a small reward for their effort.

‘BRUNCH WITH GM’
The monthly ‘Brunch with GM’ session provides a platform for staff 
to express their thoughts and offer feedback on various aspects of 
Club organisation which impacts on them. Head of Departments 
have been requested to review and follow-up on the feedback 
received.

STAFF COHESION FUND
A new programme to enhance staff bonding and build team rapport 
and cohesiveness amongst the staff within each department as well 
as inter-department was implemented. Each Head of Department 
is allocated with S$50.00 per full-time staff per calendar year to 
organise social and recreational activities for his/her department, 
outside normal working hours.

EXCELLENT SERVICE AWARD 
This is the third year that the Club has nominated its well-deserving 
employees for the Excellent Service Award – a National award that 
recognises individuals who have delivered outstanding service 
and for the first time, the Club has five Star Award recipients and 
also the most number of award recipients – 24 in total including 
seven Gold and 12 Silver Awards and an ‘Outstanding Star’ 
award nominee.  

STAFF TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT
As part of employee development, the Club has organised 
service and leadership trainings for its employees, in 
addition to the usual on-the-job trainings.

The Club has also participated in the ‘P-Max Place and Train 
Programme’ and is eligible for a one-off assistance grant of 
S$5,000 from the government that is claimable in May 2017.

Health talk for staff

CONCLUSION
I wish to thank the General Committee, Members of the 
Establishment Subcommittee as well as the Management for their 
excellent support, commitment and relentless effort and to all SCC 
members of staff for their continued hard work and dedication to 
the Club.  

I am encouraged and confident that the Club led by the General 
Manager, Mr Alan Jones and together with his wonderful team will 
make continuous improvement and elevate the Club’s premier 
status as a sports and social club.  I would like to congratulate 
them all for a job well done. 

Thank you and kudos to all!

Ananda Kumar
Chairman
Establishment Subcommittee

Participants of a staff training with the training facilitator

SUBCOMMITTEE ESTABLISHMENT 
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Chairman
Paul A. Lawlass

Subcommittee Members
Joyce Foster

Margaret Cunico
Tracy Jones

Tony Richardson
Cynthia Robless

Nalini Willets

From left: Raymond Lee, Margaret Cunico, Gow Hui Yian, Alan Jones, Paul A. Lawlass, Tony Richardson, Cynthia Robless, Sally Heng, Simon Tay. Not in photo: Joyce Foster, 
Tracy Jones, Nalini Willets, Chovin Blix Ong.

The SCC’s Food & Beverage (F&B) Department has completed 
a positive and thriving year despite being a tough one. The 
Committee has been focusing on new initiatives to ensure 

continuous enhancement of the F&B department to match the 
market.  

The F&B Subcommittee and SCC Management aim to create new 
direction and new dining concepts to enhance member’s dining 
experience at the Club. The main focus is generally to improve 
food quality and ensure it is value for money whilst ensuring cost 
efficiency throughout the department. 

FOOD & BEVERAGE 
SUBCOMMITTEE
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NEW FOOD INITIATIVES
A wide variety of F&B promotions were introduced in 2016 and 
some had garnered very good responses from our Members 
and their guests. These initiatives include new Padang Menu 
with ‘Brasserie Old Classics’, ‘Tapas Thursday’, the ever popular 
‘Wagyu Beef Promotion’ and ‘Dover Fish’ dish, just to name a few. 

BARS
The F&B Subcommittee aims to introduce high quality wines 
and liquors at the most affordable ‘Can’t Get in 
Town’ prices. Promotions such as ‘Bucket 
of Beers’, ‘Wine Down Thursday’ and 
‘Festive Promotions’ were generously 
introduced to Members. The Club 
introduced a wide selection of 
fine wines from all over the 
world to suit the preference of 
our Members – all offered by 
the glass.

RESTAURANTS
With the appointment of our new 
Chef De Cuisine Vik, The Padang 
Restaurant continues to receive good 
support from the regular and new patrons. 
Chef Vik has introduced new menu concepts to the 
Club, constantly surprising Members and guests with delicious 
wholesome food. 

Wine dinners offered during the year continue to be a sold-out 
event and our chefs do an excellent job of pairing the wines with 
the food menu. 

The Oval & Verandah continues to offer a full range of SCC 
signature dishes as well as a wide variety of local and western 
specials. Popular monthly specials are introduced into our menu 
which continues to be well-received. 

Our Friday fortnightly ‘Hawker Fare’ at the Courtyard has become 
a firm favourite for dining on balmy evenings for Members, their 
families and friends. Favourites such as ‘Satay’, ‘Mee Goreng’, 
‘Oyster Omelette’, ‘Chinese Rojak’ and ‘Chendol’ as well as Chef 
Arfin’s much sought after specialty dishes of ‘Soup Kambing’, 
‘Soto Ayam’, ‘Indian Mee Goreng’, ‘Rojak’, ‘Roti Prata’ and 
‘Thosai’. 

TRAINING
Staff training remains an important area of focus for continuous 
improvement in service standards and product knowledge. We 
will continue to invest in these trainings in aid of the development 
of our staff’s skills which ultimately uplifts the overall service 
quality of the Club. In 2016, several of our staff received Excellent 
Service Awards in recognition of their outstanding service. This 
is very encouraging and the Management will continue to give 

acknowledgement to staff with good performance in their 
area of work. 

  
EVENTS

The SCC Night Race Fiesta 
welcomes a diversity of Members 

and their guests from all around 
the world. The general feedback 
on our F&B was most inspiring. 
Our club-wide events such as 
the festive celebrations and the 

New Year’s Eve ball continued 
to generate and improve F&B 

revenues and definitely keep the 
Club ‘alive’! 

BANQUET 
With the wonderful selection of F&B and stunning 

views from the Padang restaurant, Gilmour Room & Terrace, 
our banquet services remained abuzz throughout the year with 
Members’ social and corporate private events. The new addition 
of the ‘Victoria Room’ gives our Members another alternative to 
hold more intimate and smaller functions at a more affordable 
minimum spending. 

GOOD HYGIENE PRACTICES
The F&B department emphasises 
on the highest standard of food and 
hygiene. Regular sanitation in our 
kitchen is essential and all of our F&B 
outlets are awarded an ‘A’ Grade 
by the National Environment 
Agency. Ensuring good hygiene 
practice will continue to be 
the F&B Subcommittee’s 
and Management’s utmost 
priority. 

Chef VikIndian Mee Goreng

SUBCOMMITTEE FOOD & BEVERAGE
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FINANCIALS
In line with other clubs and hospitality industry based businesses, 
the SCC is not immune from rising costs of raw food materials and 
new policies and levies implemented by the Ministry of Manpower 
on foreign F&B staff and S-Pass holders.

The F&B Sales Revenue was $8,967,000 in 2016 with an Operating 
Deficit of $394,079.

The F&B Cost of Sales as a percentage of revenue remained almost 
the same as 2015 at 43% despite rising costs due to prudent cost 
control measures.

The Operating Deficit for 2016 was S$394,079 which is lower by 
S$446,000 compared to last years’ S$840,000. This is mainly due 
to higher F&B revenue and lower manpower costs.  

CONCLUSION
Last but not least, I would like to thank the members of the F&B 
Subcommittee for their time and significant contributions to the 
success of 2016. I further express my sincere appreciation to all 
F&B Department staff. Ms Chovin Blix Ong who is currently Head of 
Operations will continue to work hand in hand with Chef Raymond 
and the F&B team to achieve ‘Service Beyond Expectations’.

Finally, I thank members for their support and kind words to our 
F&B Staff and Management. Your feedback and comments are 
important to us and you can be assured that we will continue 
to strive to offer the best food, the best beverages and the best 
service quality possible as well as ‘value-for-money’ for members 
to enjoy.

Paul A. Lawlass
Chairman
Food & Beverage Subcommittee

The Victoria Room

SUBCOMMITTEE FOOD & BEVERAGE
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Chairman
Anwar Gaffoor

Subcommittee Members
Stafford Bagot

Daniel Fitzpatrick
Jonathan Leow

K. U. Menon

Back row/left: K. U. Menon, Stafford Bagot, Anwar Gaffoor, Daniel Fitzpatrick, Jonathan Leow. 
Front row/left: Yani Saaban, Sharon Francis, Chovin Blix Ong, Gow Hui Yian, Hazel Mok

The past year has been a largely fruitful and positive one for 
the Marketing & Communications Subcommittee (MSC). In 
essence, the work of the MSC involves effective marketing 

of the Club and timely communications to members through 
the bi-monthly magazine, annual report, weekly e-mail blasts 
covering sports, social events and F&B, sports updates and Club 
announcements. Among other things, it also includes the frequent 
updating of the Club’s website to reflect ongoing changes and 
promotions. We also handle a wide variety of souvenirs which are 
exclusive to SCC. 

MARKETING & COMMUNICATIONS 
SUBCOMMITTEE
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The Subcommittee is pleased to note that marketing driven 
initiatives and strategies have met with encouraging success and 
overall positive response from the membership. 

Our readership base of ‘The Padang’ magazine has been 
expanding. This has, in turn, resulted in a steady influx of 
advertising revenue with the highest reported advertising revenue 
amounting to $9,066. Our aim is to eventually make the magazine 
self-funding through advertising revenues and sales of souvenirs. 

We have actively strived to enhance members’ reading pleasure of 
the magazine by refreshing the layout of the pages with a focused 
effort in the F&B and Social Events sections. Notably, food styling 
and photography of dishes prepared by our skilled chefs have 
been one of the main areas that have undergone a much needed 
makeover. Design elements including font, colour scheme and 
visuals are also carefully selected for maximum effect. The covers 
of the magazines have also been spruced up to make them eye-
catching and appealing. 

In line with the Club’s aim at adopting effective cost-saving 
measures, a one-year printing contract with our current vendor 
Grenadier Press has been secured and the Club can expect 
cost savings of $9,613 for the printing of the 2017 issues of ‘The 
Padang’ as well as the publication of this Annual Report. 

On the souvenirs front, we are pleased to report that revenue from 
monthly souvenir sales in the past year was averaging just above 
$6,000 with the best sales recorded in the month of December – 
capping the year off at $9,958. The introduction of new cotton polo 
shirts in navy and green have been well-received by members with 
calls for other colours to be added to the range. For the first time, 
we have these shirts in children’s sizes to cater for the young ones. 
Also new at the SCC Souvenir ‘Store’ are teddy bears wearing a 
smart jacket with the SCC logo. Back by popular demand are the 
corkboard coasters and placemats with historical images of the 
Club printed on them. All these make for ideal gifts to loved ones, 
guests and visiting members of reciprocal clubs. 

SUBCOMMITTEE MARKETING & COMMUNICATIONS

Behind the scene of the SCC Video production
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Recently, we commissioned a video production of the Club with 
the objective of employing it as a useful marketing tool. Its focal 
points include showcasing our facilities, sporting activities and 
interviews with long-serving and established members with an 
aim of encouraging potential members to join this historic and 
prestigious Club. 

In the cards for the future is an interactive touch screen 
display that would allow members to gather information 
and activities of the Club at terminals installed in strategic 
places within the Clubhouse. 

This is meant to complement our existing website and 
would be useful for members present in the Club without 
access to a computer. This display also aims to function as a 
tool to record, preserve and archive historical material. 

I would like to thank my fellow MSC members, K. U. Menon, 
Stafford Bagot, Daniel Fitzpatrick and Jonathan Leow who have 
lent their expertise and invaluable guidance to the team. We are 
fortunate to have a talented Marcom team formerly headed by 
Chovin Blix Ong. Recently appointed Financial Controller, Gow Hui 
Yian, now heads the team of three ladies – Yani Saaban, Hazel 
Mok and Sharon Francis.

We thank you for your continued support as we persevere to bring 
you enhanced marketing and communications strategies and 
plans. 

Anwar Gaffoor
Chairman
Marketing & Communications Subcommittee

Souvenir sale at the SCC Night Race Fiesta New SCC teddy bears

New SCC cotton polo shirts in navy and green

SCC placemats and coasters featuring historical images of the Clubhouse 

SUBCOMMITTEE MARKETING & COMMUNICATIONS 
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Back row/left: Retna Sabapathy, Parasuram Krishnan, Andrew Anthony Moore. Front row/left: Andrea Nicholas, George V. Abraham, Judy Ting, Ong Chin Leong, 
Norliah Soyoeti, Alan Jones.

Chairman
George V. Abraham

Subcommittee Members
Parasuram Krishnan

Andrew Anthony Moore
Andrea Nicholas
Ong Chin Leong
Retna Sabapathy

The task of maintaining the heritage Clubhouse is vested on 
the Property Subcommittee which undertakes maintenance 
and upgrading of facilities throughout the year to ensure 

that our facilities meet and exceed members’ expectations. In 
addition to ensuring a high standard of maintenance of the Club’s 
premises and facilities, the Property Subcommittee oversees the 
management of redevelopment and upgrading projects of the 
Club. Over the course of the year, several new initiatives were 
undertaken to enhance and upgrade the ageing facilities.

Rectification work for improvement to the air-conditioning 
system serving the Main Lounge, including installation of a new 
variable refrigerant volume system was carried out to optimize 
and maintain ambient room temperature to ensure comfort whilst 
delivering significant energy efficiencies. With the completion of 
this rectification work, we have received positive feedback from 
members as the Main Lounge is now much cooler and offers a 
more pleasant environment for members.

PROPERTY 
SUBCOMMITTEE
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To address concerns for player safety in a dimly-lit Multipurpose 
Court (MPC) with poor visibility, the Property Subcommittee 
undertook to introduce additional lighting fixtures and increased 
the height of the lamp poles from 6m to 10m to enhance the 
lighting conditions and provide sufficient lighting. As part of an 
energy saving initiative, the high-energy consumption conventional 
floodlights, with non-uniform illumination were replaced with more 
energy-efficient LED lighting. The Cricket Nets area also has non-
uniform lighting with dark patches down the middle of the nets 
and following the replacement of lighting at the MPC, one of the 
old flood lights for the MPC near the Cricket Nets was rewired and 
turnover to shine on the Cricket Nets to improve brightness at the 
centre of the Nets.

The deteriorated timber decking at the Stumps Terrace, which is a 
very popular ‘hang-out’ venue was replaced with Chengal timber 
that has high durability and natural appeal.

To enhance the Club’s aesthetics, the worn carpet at the Members’ 
Services Desk and staircases leading to the Padang Restaurant 
was replaced. At the time of writing this report, I am happy to report 
that the Property Subcommittee is working on replacing the dining 
chairs and carpeting at the Padang Restaurant to ensure that the 
facilities are in keeping with the standards of a Club of our stature. 
Another enhancement project carried out was the installation of 
flora and fauna for improved landscaping of the walkway from the 
gate near the Lawn Bowls Green to the gate at the MPC to create 
a better ambience for outdoor dining. Other enhancement works 
included the installation of carpet tiles and sports plaques on the 
dull and drab walls at the basement corridor outside the Men’s 
Bar, which helped to create a stylish and contemporary look to 
the area.

Some of the enhancement works completed in 2016 include:

 • Replacement of garden lamp poles for the Courtyard.
 • Replacement of lightning protection system.
 • Replacement of damaged metal fencing along Connaught 

Drive and the chiller plant.
 • Replacement of wicker chairs for the Courtyard and 

Stumps Terrace.
 • Installation of decorative lanterns at the main entrance and 

the walls outside the auto doors.

We are committed to create and maintain a safe and secure 
environment for our members and staff. Over the last year, we 
increased the number of CCTV cameras to provide better security 
and surveillance efforts. Following feedback from members on 
unauthorized usage of the Club facilities, further enhancement to 
upgrade CCTV coverage and security Club-wide is in the pipeline 
and a company with security expertise was engaged to audit the 
Club and recommend corrective action for CCTV coverage and 
security access locks on rear/side gates.

Over the year, we installed an automated external defibrillator at the 
Deli Verandah to be closer to the sports facilities in preparation of 
medical emergencies. Staff were trained to use the AED effectively. 
To enhance safety for our senior members and guests, we have 
installed stainless steel grab bars in one of the shower and toilet 
cubicles for the men’s and ladies’ changing rooms. We installed six 
oscillating fans at the smoking area and Oval Verandah to improve 
air circulation and provide more comfort and relief from the heat.

Post renovation, dampness in the concrete floor of the Gymnasium 
was noted, caused by rising damp. In addition, there are signs of 
mould growth indicating dampness behind some of the mirrors 
on the wall. The Gymnasium was closed for 10 days to facilitate 
rectification works.

As Connaught Drive comes under the Civic/Heritage district 
development initiative, the exit to Connaught Drive is permanently 
blocked and road works carried out under the auspices of the URA 
has resulted in water ponding at our carpark. The water ponding 
issue was resolved after the URA contractor dug a drain of about 
250mm depth at the closed egress and rainwater collected at the 
drain will be conveyed to the sea via an underground pipe. Eugenia 
plants in black planters are installed at the closed egress for 
enhancement and to prevent unauthorised entry to the Clubhouse.

Pruning of trees and the trimming of tree top crowns was carried 
out on a six-month routine to maintain trees in a safe manner. The 
last tree pruning exercise was conducted shortly before the SCC 
Night Race Fiesta to prevent tree canopies at the carparks from 
obscuring the race lighting. Management of the rain trees along 
Connaught Drive was formally handed over to NParks effective 
May 2016.

GymnasiumStumps Terrace overlooking National Gallery Singapore

SUBCOMMITTEE PROPERTY



28 SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

Fire safety is of paramount importance and a safety inspection 
to the Club’s premises is conducted once a month to ensure fire 
safety is maintained and compliant to fire safety regulations. The 
Club conducts two fire drills a year. The annual exercises are part 
of our ongoing efforts to ensure everyone is familiar with activation 
procedures and their roles and responsibilities. Our fire protection 
system is tested and inspected on a monthly basis and defects 
are immediately rectified. Having a safety culture in place assures 
our staff that their personal safety and well-being is being taken 
care of.

As an ongoing review of staff welfare, two oscillating fans were 
installed at the canopies for the carpark attendants’ stations and 
the staff rest area was given a fresh coat of paint. In addition, high-
back resin chairs of better quality were purchased for the staff rest 
area.
 
Our energy conservation initiatives and efforts in 2016 include 
replacing the conventional light bulbs with energy-saving or 
LEDs. The Club managed to keep its utilities bill the same despite 
the addition of electrical kitchen equipment and the Property & 
Housekeeping team has in the last year reviewed and renegotiated 
its service agreements with various vendors and with that, 
managed to achieve some cost savings.

We will continue with our efforts and strive to achieve better 
savings in the year ahead, especially in light of the rising costs.

The Club is challenged by way of available storage space and in 
order to optimize this use of space, minor alteration and addition 
work was carried out for conversion of the smaller meeting room 
adjacent to the Committee Room to the General Manager’s and 
Secretary/PA offices.

In addition to the above works, a number of less visible initiatives 
have also been completed including:

 • Replacement of sump pumps for the Courtyard.
 • Replacement of faulty fan coil units for the Victoria Room 

and Men’s Changing Room.
 • Rectification works for the air-handling unit serving the 

Padang Restaurant.
 • Installation of car stoppers at the carpark near the Lawn 

Bowls Green.
 • Structural loading checks on the open terraces.
 • Refurbishment of SCC Plaque at the St Andrew’s walkway.
 • Annual shut-down of air-con chillers for servicing and 

maintenance.

I am very thankful for the understanding and patience of our 
members for any inconvenience resulting from the various 
projects undertaken. My appreciation also goes out to the Property 
Subcommittee members who have given much of their time and 
contributed in many ways to make possible the achievements of 
this year. I also record my sincere thanks to the Maintenance and 
Housekeeping staff for their hard work and dedication.

George V. Abraham
Chairman
Property Subcommittee

Connaught Drive exit

SCC’s main entrance Carpark attendant’s station
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Chairman
Matthew C. Streeton

Subcommittee Members
Sher Baljit Singh
Anwar Gaffoor

Lim Khoon
Moiz H. Sithawalla

Back row/left: Gow Hui Yian, Serene Chew, Jeny                                                         
Front row/left: Moiz H. Sithawalla, Anwar Gaffoor, Matthew C. Streeton, Lim Khoon, Sher Baljit Singh, Alan Jones

I t has been a positive year for the Rules & Membership 
Subcommittee (RMSC). Firstly, we were honoured that long 
standing, distinguished members, Intekhab Khan, Lim Khoon, 

and Moiz H. Sithawalla agreed to be part of the Committee. Their 
legal opinions and experience were extremely useful. Intekhab 
had to resign from RMSC upon being appointed Hockey Section 
Convenor.

Fellow General Committee Members, Sher Baljit Singh and Anwar 
Gaffoor made up the Committee.

CLUB MEMBERSHIP
251 new members were welcomed to the Club in 2016: 77 new 
Ordinary (Transferable) Members (OTM), 47 new Term Members 
(TM), 39 new Sports Members (SM), and 88 new Junior Sports 
Members (JSM). 

25 JSMs and 26 SMs were converted to OTMs. 100 TMs and 92 
SMs renewed their memberships.

RULES & MEMBERSHIP
SUBCOMMITTEE
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At the end of 2016, the total Active Membership stood at 3,977:

Corporate Members 8
Honorary Life Members 2
Honorary Members 59
Junior Sports Members 283
Life Members 11
Ordinary (Non-Transferable) Members 150
Ordinary (Transferable) Members 3,184
Sports Members 141
Term Members 139

CLUB MEMBERSHIP SALES MANAGER
The appointment of Valerie Ong on 5 September 2016 as the Club’s 
Membership Sales Manager saw an immediate positive effect.  In 
total, 84 OTMs (77 new and 7 upgrades) were sold last year. 

DISCIPLINARY CASES
Inevitably, we had to deal with some disciplinary cases.  The Club 
has a process to follow in such cases which ensures fair hearing 
and consistency in outcome.  Overall, such cases were few.  

CHANGES TO BYE LAWS
RMSC reviewed the Bye Laws pertaining to Members’ attire, 
abuse of staff, use of electronic equipment including taking of 
photographs and reciprocal rights.  Recommendations were made 
to the General Committee and amendments were posted on the 
Club’s notice board as stipulated in the Rules.

• BYE LAW A.3.(i) – Attire
 This Bye Law was amended to provide more detailed 

descriptions of what can and cannot be worn when using the 
Club and its facilities.

• BYE LAW A.3.(l).(a) – Reciprocal Rights
 This Bye Law was strengthened to ensure that Reciprocal 

Members showed proof of entry date into Singapore together 
with the proper introductory letter from their Home Club.

• BYE LAW A.3.(k).(iv) – Electronic Equipment – Photograph 
Taking

 This Bye Law was updated to reflect modern usage of social 
media whilst continuing to protect Members’ rights and the 
Club’s image.    

• BYE LAW A.4.(c) – Club Employees
 This Bye Law was enhanced to indicate what constitutes 

abuse of Club employees.

• BYE LAW F.2 – Hockey
 This Bye Law as amended at the Hockey Section’s request to 

increase the monthly section subscription fee to SGD15.

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE RULES
During the course of the year, it became apparent that some of the 
Rules needed updating.  These will be tabled for consideration at 
the next Annual General Meeting.

SUBCOMMITTEE RULES & MEMBERSHIP

Junior Sports Members’ Election, 20 August 2016
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• RULE 51 - CLUB EMPLOYEES AND COMPLAINTS
 In keeping with changes to the relevant Bye Laws above, this 

Rule needs to be strengthened. The Club’s staff need to be 
able to go about their business without fear.

• RULE 15 - JUNIOR SPORTS MEMBERS
 This Rule needs some clarification to indicate that it is at the 

Committee’s sole discretion to offer conversion to OTM upon 
the JSM reaching their 26th birthday and having met other 
conditions.

• RULE 13 - FAMILY MEMBERS
 Following representation from a member, RMSC considered 

whether it would be to the Club’s advantage to extend the age 
of Family Member (unmarried children) to 26 years old. It was 
deemed that it would be to the Club’s advantage so to do.

TEAM EFFORT
I would like to thank my fellow Subcommittee Members, the 
General Committee Members, General Manager and Membership 
Department for all their support and hard work. All of us approached 
the tasks we were set with good will, humour and common sense. 
The best interests of the Club, its members and staff were at the 
forefront of everything we did.

Matthew C. Streeton
Chairman
Rules & Membership Subcommittee

Annual General Meeting, 28 April 2016 Annual General Meeting, 28 April 2016

New Members’ Election Night, 9 May 2016
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MEMBERSHIP PROFILE

VOTING 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Honorary Life 
Members

2 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Ordinary Members 3334 3301 3291 3178 3121 3110 3076 2998 2921 2909 2876 2855 2877 2877 2827 2927

Corporate Members 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8 8

Life Members 11 11 12 12 13 15 13 13 12 12 12 11 9 8 9 9

Total Active Voting 
Members 3355 3323 3314 3201 3145 3136 3100 3022 2944 2932 2899 2877 2897 2896 2847 2947

OTHER CATEGORIES 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Honorary Members 59 61 63 64 60 61 59 53 60 59 57 60 58 54 52 58

Family Members 1807 1778 1829 1797 1736 1721 1646 1630 2055 1506 1461 1473 1525 1565 1646 1798

Sports Members 141 162 226 270 286 290 314 266 223 212 151 152 91 99 90 104

Term Members 139 166 179 184 182 180 187 172 130 23 6 3 2 0 0 0

Junior Sports 
Members

283 315 328 338 345 366 372 394 417 550 553 566 320 256 183 111

Total Active Other 
Members 2429 2482 2625 2653 2609 2618 2578 2515 2885 2350 2228 2254 1996 1974 1971 2071

TOTAL MEMBERSHIP 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Active Voting 
Members

3355 3323 3314 3201 3145 3136 3100 3022 2944 2932 2899 2877 2897 2896 2847 2947

Active Other 
Categories

2429 2482 2625 2653 2609 2618 2578 2515 2885 2350 2228 2254 1996 1974 1971 2071

Sub-Total 5784 5805 5939 5854 5754 5754 5678 5537 5829 5282 5127 5131 4893 4870 4818 5018

Absent Members 1880 1845 1814 1919 1959 1964 1925 1916 2792 2892 2917 2949 2920 2926 2872 2820

Total Membership 7664 7650 7753 7773 7713 7718 7603 7453 8621 8174 8044 8080 7813 7796 7690 7838

SPORTS SECTION 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Balut 127 128 143 152 164 169 190 230 125 132 131 184 150 153 149 158

Billiards & Snooker 232 211 204 196 206 206 201 189 188 188 200 222 206 199 204 221

Cricket 328 366 344 322 336 308 301 295 281 279 262 257 223 198 180 182

Darts 113 106 108 113 118 97 73 71 75 65 67 89 84 82 95 109

Golf 452 476 491 509 546 559 551 539 498 538 541 603 561 574 575 593

Hockey 223 226 244 214 245 234 216 L Hockey 49 60 73 84 95 60 45 51 48

M Hockey 190 163 230 226 265 126 137 147 134

Bridge 66 61 56 53 52

Lawn Bowls 118 121 119 123 137 142 135 130 109 130 124 149 122 138 122 144

Netball 69 51 60 54 66 58 52 34 5 19 23 42 45 56 55 62

Rugby 263 269 278 274 287 273 281 265 250 264 230 247 206 199 186 151

Soccer 212 215 234 229 232 273 225 224 222 238 221 202 205 194 184 206

Squash 351 361 379 376 393 379 361 351 311 316 317 361 352 383 406 440

Tennis 503 511 524 493 501 463 443 430 334 373 389 454 440 443 476 506

Total Membership of 
Sport Sections 3057 3102 3184 3108 3283 3161 3029 2997 2621 2845 2815 3170 2780 2801 2830 2954

Membership as at 31 Dec 2016

SUBCOMMITTEE RULES & MEMBERSHIP
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Chairlady
Joyce Foster

Subcommittee Members
Preeti Dubey

Sunita Kapoor
Shelia Nagiah

Vikraman Raman
Capt E.R. Raymond Ambrose

From left: Capt E.R. Raymond Ambrose, Shelia Nagiah, Preeti Dubey, Joyce Foster, Sunita Kapoor, Vikraman Raman

The Social Subcommittee strives each year to organise 
many exciting events for the Club and its members and 
2016 had been a blast. The first event kicked off in January 

with the last one ending on a high note during the New Year’s Eve 
Countdown Ball.

Quiz Night each month continues to gain popularity, while Bingo 
Nights have been roaring since the Subcommittee changed it to 
be held every first Friday of the month. SCC’s signature Wine and 
Cheese parties held on 11 March, 19 August and 25 November 
were a success.

Local bands continue to entertain members during the ever popular 
‘Buzz from the Bar’ and ‘One Night Only’ sessions.

SOCIAL 
SUBCOMMITTEE
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YEAR OF THE FIRE MONKEY FENG SHUI & ASTROLOGY 
TALK
22 January 2016
The Year of Fire Monkey turned out to be an exciting and fulfilling 
one correctly predicted by Feng Shui consultant Esther Teh who 
conducted a highly informative session with members on 22 
January at the Gilmour Room.  It was an engaging talk for those 
interested in identifying the various auspicious energies both at 
home and at the office to maximise prosperity. Insights into the 
12 Chinese astrological animal signs for the year were also shared 
with those present and everyone benefitted from the wealth of 
information arising from the question and answer session at the 
end of the talk.

CHINESE NEW YEAR CELEBRATION
19 February 2016
Adorned in oriental splendour, SCC celebrated Chinese New 
Year with an enticing line-up of festive performances such as the 
traditional lion dance which, as always, had members looking on in 
awe as the lions pranced around the Club ushering in an abundance 
of prosperity and good fortune. The traditional Chinese ‘Face-
Changing’ performance at the Main Lounge proved yet again to be 
a crowd favourite drawing gasps of amazement at the theatrical 
showmanship on display. Those interested for some personal 
insight took to the palm reading booth while others enjoyed an 
inviting spread of festive delights at The Oval & Verandah prepared 
by our chefs.

LOOK WHO’S COOKING
27 February & 23 July 2016
This is a relatively new event which continues to garner interest. 
Members are treated to a culinary adventure with our very own 
SCC chefs in an interactive cooking session, demonstrating 
various cooking techniques which they can apply in their own 
kitchens.

EASTER KIDS PARTY
27 March 2016
The Easter Kids Party was a sold-out event. Enthused by the 
variety of rabbits such as the French Lop, American Fuzzy Lop, 
Netherland Dwarf and Holland Lop, kids learned many interesting 
facts on how to care for them. During the DIY Art and Craft 
session, the kids made a rabbit house. Easter themed cake pops 
were presented to each child at the end of the event.

HUNGARIAN WINE TASTING
14 April 2016
The Singapore Cricket Club and the Hungarian Embassy jointly 
presented a Hungarian Wine Tasting event for members. Several 
labels of fine Hungarian wines kindly sponsored by the Embassy 
alongside delicious food accompaniments were enjoyed by all 
present. The event allowed all to appreciate not only the elegant 
taste of Hungarian wines but also the rich history that Hungary 
has to offer.

INTRODUCTION TO YOGA
13 July 2016
Newly joined member, Ms. Katherine Sarah Mountain hosted the 
first ‘Introduction to Yoga’ class for members and guests on 13 
July. The yoga class was held at sunrise on a breezy morning at the 
Gilmour Terrace. Participants explored several basic connecting 
postures and breathing techniques while focusing on relaxation, 
stress release and stretching just before a long day ahead at work.

Hungarian Wine Dinner

Introduction to Yoga

SUBCOMMITTEE SOCIAL
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KAMPONG NIGHT
15 July 2016
In the festive spirit of Hari Raya, SCC celebrated ‘Kampong Night’ 
where members and guests were treated to a Malay dance or 
‘joget’ as it is commonly known. Dressed in brightly coloured and 
intricately embroidered ethnic costumes, the dancers showcased 
graceful moves to the beat of traditional Malay orchestra. 
Members also had an opportunity to engage in an interactive 
dance item and they even learned the fine art of draping a sarong. 
The event capped off with plentiful offerings of specialty hawker 
fare prepared by our chefs.

SCC CELEBRATES NATIONAL DAY
9 August 2016
The Club commemorated Singapore’s 51st birthday with a fun 
‘Family Day’ picnic at the Padang. Members and guests spent a 
relaxing afternoon soaking up the sunshine while the kids enjoyed 
a myriad of activities such as the incredibly popular foam pool, 
bouncy castle, face painting and balloon sculpting. Members also 
caught the ‘Live’ screening of the National Day Parade at the Main 
Lounge and capped off the evening with scrumptious hawker food 
fare featuring local delights.

SCC NIGHT RACE FIESTA
16 to 18 September 2016
It was a thrilling high octane weekend at the Club during its Night 
Race Fiesta. With big screens strategically placed around the 
Club members caught all the highlights of the 2016 Formula 1 
Singapore Airlines Singapore Grand Prix street race. Within the 
Club, there was plenty to be enjoyed with the extensive buffet 
spread at various locations. Members were also entertained by 
the friendly table-top ambassadors. They also had plenty of fun 
posing for photos in the photo booth modelled after a vintage 
Volkswagen van. With endless entertainment, delicious food and 
beverages all around, it was an exhilarating weekend to remember. 

COMEDY NIGHT
21 October 2016
The Club was honoured to once again welcome the vivacious 
Kumar to bring laughter (and tears) to members and guests with 
his witty humour and rib-tickling antics.

REMEMBRANCE DAY
11 November 2016
Remembrance Day was observed by the Club and a simple 
ceremony was held at the Cenotaph located at Esplanade Park 
where tribute was paid to the fallen men and women who had 
selflessly served and defended the Nation with dignity and pride 
during the First World War. In attendance at the ceremony were 
the Club’s General Committee, members, guests and staff. Special 
thanks to Professor Brian Farrell as well as distinguished Defence 
Advisors from the United Kingdom, Australia, New Zealand and 
the United States who were present at the commemoration.

DEEPAVALI CELEBRATION
11 November 2016
Members and guests celebrated Deepavali which commenced with 
the auspicious lighting of the lamp by President Mohan Bhojwani. 
Also gracing this ceremony alongside our SCC President were 
Social Events Chairlady Joyce Foster, Ex-President Mr Haider 
Sithawalla and his wife as well as Mr and Mrs Samtani Ishwar. The 
evening was packed with plenty of vibrant performances such as 
the wildly popular Bhangra dance which drew thundering applause 
for its spectacular dance movements and the entertaining peacock 
and belly dances. Dressed in sequined and colourful ethnic wear, 
members and guests feasted on a decadent spread of authentic 
North and South Indian delights prepared by our chefs and danced 
into the night with the DJ spinning popular tunes.

Remembrance Day

SUBCOMMITTEE SOCIAL
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Once upon a santa - A Christmas Pantomime

VIVA MEXICO SCC COUNTDOWN BALL
31 December 2016
The Club ushered in the New Year with a bang at the Viva Mexico 
Countdown Ball. Members and guests came to the party in their 
elegant dresses and stylish suits, accessorised to the vibrant and 
festive theme. As the clock struck midnight, the tune of Auld Lang 
Syne by the Gurkha Pipers resounded, coupled with fireworks in 
the background of the Civic District, marking the start of 2017. 
With well wishes all around, everyone had a great time and danced 
to the powerhouse performance by ‘comeback’ band, Jellybean 
Jam from Australia.

IN CLOSING
My most sincere appreciation to my Social Subcommittee 
members for the many great ideas and participation that makes 
all our events a success. Not forgetting the SCC Management and 
Events Team that never failed to deliver quality social events each 
time. Thanks to all that took part in the social survey as we gather 
results to plan a better 2017!

Joyce Foster
Chairlady
Social Subcommittee

ONCE UPON A SANTA – A CHRISTMAS PANTOMIME
17 December 2016
Jointly presented by SCC and Evolve Arts, a Christmas pantomime 
– ‘Once Upon A Santa’ was held.  Children and adults alike re-
discovered the joy of reading, the gift of giving and the magic 
of the Christmas spirit through a fun and interactive story-telling 
session with songs and dances. All in attendance had a merry time 
playing games and the lucky children also received a present from 
Santa himself!

X’MAS EVE LUCKY DRAW
24 December 2016
$4,888 CASH, LG Styler and 43” 4K Ultra HD Smart TV were the 
top prizes of the 2016 X’Mas Eve Lucky Draw. With a total of 30 
attractive prizes, the Main Lounge was bustling with members 
and guests, all joining in to immerse in the festive spirit. Tania 
entertained everyone throughout the afternoon with their renditions 
of classic hits.

Viva Mexico SCC Countdown Ball

SUBCOMMITTEE SOCIAL
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CHINESE NEW YEAR 
CELEBRATION
19 Feb 2016

EASTER
KIDS
PARTY
27 Mar 2016
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KAMPONG
NIGHT
15 Jul 2016

SCC CELEBRATES 
NATIONAL DAY
9 Aug 2016
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SCC NIGHT RACE 
FIESTA
16 to 18 Sep 2016

SOCIAL EVENTS
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DEEPAVALI 
CELEBRATION
11 Nov 2016

INTERSECTION 
SOCIAL NIGHT
9 Dec 2016

SOCIAL EVENTS
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SOCIAL EVENTS

ONCE UPON
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VIVA MEXICO SCC 
COUNTDOWN BALL
31 Dec 2016

SOCIAL EVENTS
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I f success can be measured by high attendance, unbounded 
enthusiasm, camaraderie and performance in competitions – 
then the Balut Section had a stellar year indeed. The SCC won 

all six local competitions available to us in Singapore.

 • The Annual Triangular Trophy was hosted by the SCC on 
4 June between us, the National University of Singapore 
Society (NUSS) and the Indian Association (IA). SCC 
stretched to cross the finish line first with 9365 points, 
closely followed by IA and NUSS with 9318 and 9277 
points respectively. On the individual front, SCC produced 
the top three players:

  1. Vashi Sajnani 912 points
  2. Tony Fisher 850 points
  3. Raj Kumar 636 points

 • The Padang Shield, a bi-annual contest, was fought on 9 
July between Singapore Recreation Club (SRC) and SCC. 
At half-time the omens were not good as we had only a 
slim 14-point lead. Amazingly this was converted into a 
crushing 416 point advantage for the SCC by the time the 
match was over. SCC’s Jasmin Fisher and SRC’s Andrew 
Goh shared the prize for the highest accumulated points 
total.

 • The Invitational Pairs Competition was hosted by SCC on 
30 July. Our own ‘pair’ Rosemary and Robin Tessensohn 
fought off stiff competition against 42 other players from 
SCC, IA, NUSS and SRC to win impressive trophies each.

 • The Annual Pot Games is a multi-section battle between 
the Tanglin Club (TC) and the SCC, with each club hosting 
the event in turn. On 1 October SCC’s 18 Baluteers fought 
hard to support the other sports sections at the TC by 
winning rather convincingly. Jasmin Fisher and John 
Taylor were the top two scorers with 862 and 840 points 
respectively.

Balut Committee 2016-17. Back row/left: John L. Taylor, Tony Fisher, Raj Kumar. Front row/left: Else Stokkmo, Yasmin Gaffoor, Sunita Kapoor.

BALUT

Elected 24 May 2016

Convenor
Tony Fisher

Captain
Raj Kumar

Secretary
John L. Taylor

Treasurer
Else Stokkmo

Committee Members
Sunita Kapoor
Yasmin Gaffoor

Top points scorer Sunita Kapoor receives bottle of Chivas Regal from GC Member 
Joyce Foster and convenor, Tony Fisher at the In-house Balut Night.

BALUTSPORTS SECTION
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 • SCC entered five teams in the 32nd Annual Inter-Club 
League which commenced in May, joining IA, NUSS, 
Eurasian Association (EA), SRC and TC. After six rounds, 
the final match was held at IA on 26 October and the 
winners were declared to be SCC Team 5 (Jasmin Fisher, 
Ben Cunico, Else Stokkmo, and Rosemary Tessensohn). 
Jasmin was also awarded the coveted ‘Baluteer of the 
Year’ trophy.

 • The Indian Association Christmas Pairs Tournament was 
held on 21 December and organised by the IA Convenor 
Prekash Singh and his team. There was great “makan” 
and a convivial atmosphere which was topped off by 
SCC’s Yasmin Gaffoor and Fahmi Hassanbhai winning the 
impressive trophy!

Tours are an integral part of the attraction of belonging to the SCC 
Balut Section. In 2016 there were three excellent tours.

 • The first was to the Kinabalu Club’s 6th Annual Balut 
Tournament on 5 March, attended by 104 players from 
around the region. SCC’s John Taylor (still the Balut 
Section Convenor then), took top honours in this 8-game 
event with 902 points total, averaging 112.75 points per 
game.

 • The next tour was to Kuching on 10 September to 
participate in the 3rd Invitational Inter-Club Competition 
which was hosted by the Sarawak Club. Joyce Foster 
and Rosemary Tessensohn kept the SCC flag flying by 
achieving second place in the Pairs competition among 84 
players.

 • The final tour was to the Kinabalu Yacht Club on 25 
November to participate in the 36th STC Chivas Regal 
Interport. This was a huge event, attracting 144 players 
belonging to 36 teams. Singapore was well represented by 
four teams from SCC, NUSS, IA, TC and SRC. Teams came 
from all over Sabah, including Sandakan, Miri, Tawau and 
Sarawak. The Manila Yacht Club also participated. NUSS 
were the worthy winners. This was a great social event 
and in addition to the food and drink, all participants were 
treated to local dancing and games provided under the 
auspices of the Sabah Ministry of Tourism.

SCC has received an exclusive invitation to participate in the 
British Club Bangkok (BCB) vs SCC “TeamBalut Challenge 2017” 
on 21 to 23 July. Also, we are advised the 37th STC Chivas Regal 
Interport will be hosted by the Sarawak Club on 17th and 18th 
November.

The Section lynchpin is the monthly in-house event, normally 
held on the third Tuesday of each month. Due to demand, this 
was augmented by two Saturday afternoon sessions in April and 
October, a number likely to be exceeded in 2017. The average 
attendance was above 30 persons. Leading by example, the 2016 
In-house winner was our Captain Raj Kumar, followed by last 
year’s winner Mohan Balagopal and Anwar Gaffoor in second and 
third place respectively. 

All In-house events are preceded by a delicious buffet and drinks 
are available throughout from our exclusive Gilmour Room bar. At 
the end of each session, several prizes are awarded – bottles of 
wine courtesy of our generous sponsor Rajan Menon of Pernod 
Ricard and a bottle of Chivas Regal Scotch Whisky goes to the 
player having the highest points aggregate total. 

By most accounts, the SCC Balut Section Christmas Party, held 
in the Padang Restaurant on 16 December was one of the best 
ever. Meticulously organised by our Section Committee member 
Sunita Kapoor, this great event enabled lucky attendees to enjoy 
delicious festive food, drinks galore, gifts and superb music. This 
reminds me how much of the Balut Section’s continuing success is 
down to team effort from the oft ‘behind the scenes management’ 
of John ‘Mr. Balut’ Taylor, to the team selection problem-solving 
skills of Raj Kumar, to the photographic interventions of Else. Not 
forgetting the talents of Thipa, Eunicia, Ken and Becky – without 
whom our in-house events would not function as smoothly as they 
do. Let’s continue this spirit of camaraderie and achievement in 
2017 as befits being proud members of this prestigious Club.

Tony Fisher
Balut Convenor

July 30th Balut Pairs Winners Tony receiving the Balut Cup from Yvonne Pereira, SRC’s Balut Convenor

SPORTS SECTION BALUT
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BILLIARDS & SNOOKERSPORTS SECTION

BILLIARDS & SNOOKER

Elected 22 September 2016

Convenor
Desmond Decker

Captain
Jason Teo

Secretary
Tan Bak Choon

Treasurer
David Yim

Committee Members
Victor Yeong
Matthew Lim
Peter Gilchrist

CNY celebration

I t has been an eventful and blessed year for the Billiards & 
Snooker Section – what a winning streak we had in the past year. 
From the tournaments played in Royal Port Dickson Yacht Club, 

Padang Shield, to the newly formed ex-Tri-Nations tournament, 
we have won all of them!

At the end of the league season in March, we finished at the top 
half of the division 1 table. This year we also have a team playing 
in Division 5 league games.

Padang Shield game was held on the 9 July and we fielded our 
best possible team of five singles. This is the first time in the last 16 
years of Padang Shield where we finally won SRC. Congratulations 
to all the players. Well done indeed!

Royal Selangor Club hosted the ex-Tri-Nations tournament on 30 
July, which is the second cycle now in its eighth year since it first 
started. We arrived a day earlier to play our Interport game with 
Royal Selangor Club and won with a 7-1 score. Came the next day 
of the intense tournament, where we met with five other strong 
teams from Thailand (Royal Bangkok Sports Club and Assumption 
Association) and Malaysia (Penang Sports Club, Royal Lake Club 
and Royal Selangor Club). Our team did extremely well and finally 
emerge champions. This is also the first time in the last eight years 
since the tournament started that we won. Splendid effort to the 
team!

The month of September was a fairly busy month for us. We were 
honoured by the visits of two world ranking players – Rob Hall 
(World No.3) and Gary Norman (World no.23) on 15 September. 
We had wonderful exhibition games with them against some of our 
finest players. Having witnessed them play, I have to admit that, 
more than any other sports, snooker suffers from the problem of 
the pros making it look easy.

Billiards & Snooker Committee 2016/17 with other section members and guests at the 9th SCC Sports Awards. From left: Peter Gilchrist, Alexandra Mytton-Mills, 
Matthew Lim, Desmond Decker, Glenn Yeo, Jason Teo, Victor Yeong, Patricia Tan, Tan Bak Choon. Not in photo: David Yim.
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The following day had us making our way to the much anticipated 
visit to Penang to participate in the mother of all Inter-club Snooker 
Tournament. 12 players made the trip to Penang. On the day of 
arrival, we played our Interport game with Penang Club. We played 
a couple of good games, which also served us a warm-up and 
preparation for the tournament proper the next day. 

The next day, 17 September, saw us joining the 9th PSC (Penang 
Sports Club) Inter-club Snooker Tournament. The tournament 
consisted of 16 teams – the clubs participating were from 
Thailand, Singapore, East Malaysia and West Malaysia. They 
were Old Xavarian Association, Old Frees Association, Penang 
Club, Sitiawan Recreation Club, Royal Port Dickson Yacht Club, 
Royal Selangor Club, The Raintree Club, Royal Lake Club, Royal 
Bangkok Sports Club, RBSC Polo Club, Negri Sembilan CRC, 
Tawau Recreation Club, Kuala Muda CRC, Penang Sports Club 
(two teams) and Singapore Cricket Club.

We fielded Glenn Yeo, Gerard Ee, Jason Tan, Matthew Lim and 
Victor Yeong for both the singles and doubles. The competition 
took two days to complete. Our gallant players made it all the 
way to the finals. Our final games were played against RBSC Polo 
Club. Both finalists uniquely designed the games to ratchet up 
the pressure. We returned with the runners up silverware of the 
tournament – marking another milestone. 

On 22 September we had our AGM. Everyone was pleased with 
the management of the section and no issues were raised during 
the meeting. I was returned unopposed. Jason Teo picked up 
the Captain’s cap. We have David Yim as our new Treasurer and 
veteran Tan Bak Choon as Secretary. Though David might be a 
new face in the committee, he is no stranger to the section and 
great supporter of our tours. The rest of the Committee comprises 
of Peter Gilchrist, Victor Yeong and Matthew Lim. Shortest and 
friendliest AGM I have ever witnessed. 

Our member Peter Gilchrist represented Singapore in the World 
Billiards Championship in December. We are proud and glad to 
announce that Peter has once again earned glory for Singapore 
by winning his fourth World Title. Congratulations Peter! Peter 
followed up this victory by being the first runner-up in the 150-Up 
billiards tournament. Peter achieved the following victories.

 • Crowned Billiards World Champion at IBSF Championship 
(December 2016)

 • Crowned Champion at the Australian Open (September 2016)

 • Crowned Champion at the New Zealand Open (September 2016)

 • Crowned Champion at the World Billiards LITEtask Borders 
Open (December 2016)

I’m proud to report that our section members – Peter Gilchrist 
and Glenn Yeo have been selected to represent Singapore for the 
upcoming SEA Games. We are planning a trip to travel up to KL 
to support them.

We had a great Christmas Dinner and Lunar Dinner for our 
members with great food, great bonding and excellent turnouts.

We had a visit from Penang Sports Club for their Interport games 
with us in February. At the same occasion we combined our social 
evening with the Golf Section. It was a great party and a great 
atmosphere with both section members enjoying themselves.

I must also report that the section has also grown. When I started 
as Convenor we had 195 members and at the last count we had 
225 members. We hope to work hard and continue to grow the 
section so that we can organise more activities for our members.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all my fellow committee 
members for all the hard work and dedication they have put it in to 
achieve what has never been achieved before.

Desmond Decker
Billiards & Snooker Convenor

Inter-club Six-Red at the PSC Hosting an exhibition match with Robert Hall and Gary Norman

SPORTS SECTION BILLIARDS & SNOOKER
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Elected 21 January 2016

Convenor
T. Q. Lim

Captain
Ganesh Ramanathan

Secretary
Ron Pereira (till July 2016)
Chng Ming Li (elected July 2016)

Treasurer
Edmund Lin

JSM Representative
Shermeen Lim

Committee Members
Christian Huang
Bob Gattie

THE DUST HAS SETTLED
Losing the bowling green for a year since May 2015 was difficult for 
many die-hard section members but it was all for good measure, 
with the Club supporting the Nation in her celebration towards 50 
years of independence. The green was officially handed back to 
the Bowls Section in May 2016, looking extremely…green! While 
many of us would have loved for such lush greenery in our own 
homes, such vegetation was unwelcomed for even the strongest 
bowlers, with the green running below ten seconds for the initial 
two months. Work has to be done to make play enjoyable, but it 
would take a year or two for the green to be running pre-SG50 
celebrations.

BUSINESS AS USUAL
Our bowlers were not handicapped by the lack of bowling 
facilities. Social bowling continued at Tanglin Club, whom we 
need to thank for extending their bowling facilities to us while our 
green was unavailable. On the National front, our SCC bowlers 
continued their good stead, medalling in all National tournaments 
in 2016. Virginia Longfellow won the Women’s Singles and 
qualified for the World Champion of Champions last November. 
Unfortunately, the chance for a double did not happen as 
Christian Huang came in second best in the Men’s Singles finals.

Bowls Committee 2016/17. Back row/left: Ganesh Ramanathan, Edmund Lin. Front row/left: Bob Gattie, T. Q. Lim, Ron Pereira. 
Not in photo: Chng Ming Li, Shermeen Lim, Christian Huang.

SCC Bowler Christian Huang (first from right) at the World Championships 
2016 in Christchurch

BOWLSSPORTS SECTION
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The highlight of the year was no doubt Virginia’s bronze medal 
showing at the World Champion of Champions in Gold Coast. 
In a tournament where only champions of their respective 
countries can enter, she maintained a steady level of play to 
claim Singapore’s first Ladies’ medal in the event. We could not 
be happier for her. 

To cap 2016 off, Singapore was represented by bowlers 
Christian Huang and Josephine Lim in the quadrennial World 
Bowls Championships held in Christchurch, New Zealand. It 
was the first time ever that any team from Singapore qualified 
for the tournament. Though wins were few and far between, the 
Singapore team did pull out some shocking results such as the 
Ladies’ Fours win over host nations New Zealand and the Men’s 
Pairs’ stunning win over eventual champions Australia.

SCC Bowlers at the Annual Triangular Interport Tournament in Hong Kong

Chng Ming Li and Shermeen Lim at the Hong Kong Classics

In the National Men’s Pairs, SCC brought home the silver 
(Edmund Lin and Ganesh SR) and Bronze (Melvin Tan and Wong 
Hui Kai) medals. Our SCC Ladies went on to claim two more titles, 
winning the National Triples and Fours in convincing fashion. 
The year got even better when Melvin Tan came out victorious 
in the National Singles League to qualify for the World Indoor 
Cup in Australia in 2017. Virginia ensured her year ended on a 
high with a silver medal in the Ladies’ event. Christian Huang 
and Shermeen Lim also claimed bronze. The year culminated 
with Shermeen being crowned the Bowler of the Year by Bowls 
Singapore for her outstanding achievements. In 2016, we had 
nine bowlers (four men, five ladies) who were members of the 
National squad. They represented the country with distinction in 
many overseas tournaments.

BRINGING GLORY TO THE NATION
SCC bowlers also had a wonderful year on the international front. 
At the Asia Bowls Championships held in Brunei in January, 
Christian Huang partnered national team-mate Chia Tee Chiak to 
capture the bronze in the Pairs event. By virtue of his win in the 
National Singles League in 2015, Christian was also at the World 
Indoor Cup in March where he finished the tournament ranked 
11th out of 21 countries.

Singapore hosted the Lion City Cup in July where SCC entered 
two teams in this Pairs team event which featured local clubs and 
countries from Asia. Both SCC teams reached the quarterfinals 
after their dominant display in the group stages. Unfortunately, 
SCC A consisting of Melvin Tan, Wong Hui Kai, Shermeen Lim 
and Chng Ming Li fell short against a rampant Malaysian team in 
the quarter-finals. SCC B, consisting of Christian Huang, Edmund 
Lin, Amira Goh, Mary Lim and Candy Lai went one better when 
they won their quarter-final clash against local club, Singtel. They 
then came up against another rampant Malaysian team in the 
semis which ended their campaign. They claimed a bronze, being 
the only local team to medal.

In November, Shermeen Lim and Chng Ming Li were invited 
by Hong Kong Lawn Bowls Association (HKLBA) to participate 
in the prestigious Hong Kong Classic Pairs tournament. This 
invitational-only tournament features top bowling nations and 
bowlers with long list of accolades. In their group, they claimed 
the scalps of Scotland, New Zealand and Wales, showing they 
were no pushovers. They were unlucky to finish fifth out of 12th 
in their group, narrowly missing out on the knockout stages by a 
mere three points.

SPORTS SECTION BOWLS
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SCC ON TOUR
In April, a group of 16 embarked on a tour to Broadbeach, 
Queensland for the annual Tatts. Although the team put up a 
good showing in various matches, they did not garner enough 
points for the overall title. 

In December, there was the big event of the 15th Annual Triangular 
Tournament between SCC, Kowloon Bowling Green Club (KBGC) 
and Royal Bangkok Sports Club (RBSC). It was Hong Kong’s turn 
to host the event and the hospitality extended to us by our friends 
in Hong Kong were top class. Results wise, there were much to 
cheer about as we beat KBGC in the Interport by a score of 97 
to 94 shots. In the main Triangular tournament, SCC won both 
their games to win the overall event. The last time SCC captured 
the Triangular was back in 2005! Well done to all players! The 
section hopes to retain the trophy in the next Triangular where 
SCC would be hosting.

BACK AT HOME
The return of the Green allowed for some Club tournaments to be 
played. The Mixed Drawn Pairs was first up with 10 teams vying 
for the title. After weeks of intense matches, the experienced 
pairing of Chai H.Y. and Ee Chong Beng came out tops in the 
finals against Mary Lim and Anwar Gaffoor. The team of Rodger 
Kimpton and Ben Cunico came in third.

Next up was the highly anticipated SCC Singles. 18 men 
competed and Euan Wong, our newest section member walked 
away with the title, beating Melvin Tan in the finals. Edmund Lin 
was third after a hard fought win against K.U. Menon in the third-
place playoffs. In the Ladies’ event, Shermeen Lim avenged her 
defeat against Amira in the group stages by beating her in the 
finals to take home the Rose Bowl.

In the 39th Pot Games, the Bowls Section continued their good 
showing by winning the game 4-1 against Tanglin. The well-
received Giles Roche inter-sectional event continued its run and 
attracted a good crowd with Team GC winning the trophy.

The last event of the year was the themed closing carnival in 
December. Social bowls was followed by a wonderful dinner at 
the Gilmour Room, putting a fitting end to the 2016 season.

VISION FOR 2017
As curtains close on a stellar 2016, 2017 promises to be an even 
more exciting year for the section. We will host the 16th edition 
of the Triangular tournament here in SCC. The SEA Games 
looms and we expect some SCC bowlers to be involved in the 
Games. Most importantly, we have a youthful Section Committee 
that would seek to invigorate bowls in the Club and attract new 
bowlers. 

Christian Huang
Bowls Convenor 2017

SCC Bowlers at Tatts 2016, Broadbeach Bowls Club SCC Bowlers representing the Section at National Tournaments
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Elected 12 September 2016

Convenor
Olivia Law Geok Lian

Captain
Soma Devi

Secretary
Trevor William Chapman

Treasurer
Richard Holloway

Committee Members
Chitra Varaprasad
Patricia M. Jasudasen

Christmas game

Bridge Committee 2016/17. From left: Richard Holloway, Patricia M. Jasudasen, Olivia Law Geok Lian, Trevor William Chapman.
Not in photo: Soma Devi, Chitra Varaprasad.

BRIDGE

This has been an eventful year for the Bridge Section. Firstly, 
the Bridge Section’s membership continues to grow in its 
fifth full year as a Sports Section under the auspices of the 

Games Control Board. The section now has about 70 members 
of which two-thirds are actively playing bridge at our weekly 
Monday sessions. The Monday duplicate bridge sessions are 
now held in the Victoria Room.  The section holds more than 
40 weekly Bridge sessions annually since 2014. Mr Carl Parker, 
a certified bridge trainer by both the SCBA and the American 
Contract Bridge League (“ACBL”), has continued to support the 
section as Bridge Director.

The section has continued to be part of the Premier Bridge 
League. This league is a conglomeration of eight bridge clubs 
in Singapore. Last year (our second year in the league) saw us 
improve significantly in our standing in the league – we moved 
from eighth to fifth position after a series of games in the second 
quarter of the year. 

For the first time in 2016, bridge was included in the in Padang 
Shield. The section made history as it won the event, which 
helped SCC clinch the Padang Shield. The section has also 
agreed to play friendly games with SRC, Keppel and Kembangan 
CC Bridge Club on a quarterly basis. This will encourage more 
members to take part in external competitions by providing the 
necessary practice. 

SPORTS SECTION BRIDGE
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The section was also delighted to have been invited by Tanglin 
Club to a friendly game on 10 May. Eight pairs from SCC took 
part and were hosted to a delightful dinner and games. The section 
will reciprocate in the first quarter of 2017.

Other inter-club competitions that our members also took part 
in were the Open-Pairs competitions organized by Tanglin Club, 
Singapore Swimming Club and SRC. The Bridge Section continues 
to be part of the Annual Pot Games with Tanglin Club.

The section continues to hold Beginners’ Bridge Courses. We 
had a very good response so far and an equally heartening one 
this year. We seem to be the only club apart from the Singapore 
Contract Bridge Association to hold such courses. Mr Carl Parker, 
our Bridge Director will still continue as our trainer/instructor. 

For the first time too, an Intermediate Bridge Course was held 
in May 2016. Again, the response to this course was great – 16 
participants. Mr Carl Parker conducted four lessons based on 
what participants wanted to know in order to improve their play. 
Participants were so enthusiastic that they have requested for 
some more lessons, which the section will organise in 2017.

Besides our weekly regular games, the section also holds special 
events to celebrate the multi-ethnic festivals here in Singapore. 
During these ‘festive’ bridge sessions, the competition heightens 
as special prizes are awarded to the Best Pair/Pairs of the session. 
The two most significant events of the year are the National Day 
and the Christmas events. At the Christmas event, the Bridge 
Section presented its Annual Award for Best Individual Player and 
Best Championship Pair for the year. 2016’s Best Championship 
Pair was Mr Lee Cheong Seng and Ms Soundarya Iyer and the 
Best Individual Player was Ms Seah Beng Tee, who also won the 
same award in 2015.

The Club staff continues to support the section in an efficient and 
friendly manner. Again, the section would like to commend the 
F&B staff for looking after us so well in the Victoria Room. The 
section also holds ‘special’ bridge events in the Gilmour Room 
occasionally. 

Finally, the section would also like to thank the Sports Section for 
making it so easy to play bridge in the Club.

Olivia Law Geok Lian
Bridge Convenor

Premier Bridge League – SCC hosted the finals and Geylang Bridge Club won the league.

National Day game
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Elected 11 November 2016

Convenor
Hugh Darwell

Captain
Dene Border

Secretary
Arjun Kakar

Treasurer
Will Tipping

Tours, Fixtures & Events Secretary
Joe Windscheffel

Secretary of Social Cricket
Vijay Jeyaratnam

Secretary of Cricket Youth Development
Andy Williams

Cricket Committee 2016/17. From left: Joe Windscheffel, Dene Border, Will Tipping, Hugh Darwell, Arjun Kakar, Vijay Jeyaratnam. 
Not in photo: Andy Williams.

INTRODUCTION
The 2016 season was one of change. The first team, Lions lost six 
players from the 2015 season, which meant new talent coming 
into the Club and players from our Division 2, namely Cougars 
and Tigers had to step up to the next level of cricket in Singapore. 
We are pleased to report that many of them acquitted themselves 
admirably and the experience gained this year will hold them in 
good stead for the 2017 season. It was a year of change on the 
Section Committee as well with David Jones needing to step down 
after two and a half years as Convenor due to his election to the 
General Committee of the Club in April. 

Across the leagues, our teams played 85 games with a winning 
percentage of 52%. This was a slightly lower than our performance 
in 2015 (54%). 105 players represented the Club in League cricket 
in 2016 with a further 54 players turning out for the Sat XI. 

The best performing team in the Club in 2016 was the Cheetahs, 
who finished second in Division 3. The reward for that excellent 
performance is promotion to Division 2 and 40 over cricket next 
year. In Division 2, the Tigers finished in fourth place, as did the 
Lions in Division 1. 

We did win some silverware during the year with the SCC Sphinxes, 
our over 40s side again winning the Singapore Masters League to 
defend the title won in 2015. Again, they went through the five-
match competition undefeated. We also sent a team to the Penang 
Sixes in September and won the Plate competition.

CRICKET

SCC Sphinxes victorious again

SPORTS SECTION CRICKET
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Further representative honours were awarded to a veteran of the 
section Sukanti Sen who was selected in the Singapore over 40s 
indoor cricket side that played in the world championships in 
Birmingham in October.

In September, we hosted a team of Disabled Cricketers from India. 
As a mid-week game, we struggled to put a team together, but due 
to the hard work of Dene Border and Joe Windscheffel, eventually 
put a team out. Those that played remarked on what an uplifting, 
inspirational experience it was playing against guys who, despite 
their disabilities, possessed a passion for the game that had to 
be seen to be believed. Thanks to Santosh, the game received 
coverage in the Straits Times, which painted the Club in a fantastic 
light. 

The Club XI continued in 2016 and provided a great opportunity for 
League players and JSMs alike, particularly during those ‘down’ 
periods of the season caused by the League draw. 

INTERPORTS 
In 2016, we hosted both the Royal Bangkok Sports Club and 
the Royal Selangor Club. In both Interports, we were beaten in 
the social game but won the cup. Both weekends were a great 
opportunity to renew friendships with members of both clubs and 
enjoyed thoroughly by all who participated. 

Melbourne Cricket Club visited us in April as part of the first multi-
section tour since we visited Melbourne in 2007. Our thanks go to 
Richard Stapley-Oh, who as our Chairman, Games Control Board 
at the time, was instrumental in making this happen and Tracy 
Jones who was the event co-ordinator between the two clubs. We 
had two competitive matches and won the trophy match for the 
first time in many years. The highlight of this was a fluent 77 by Arit 
Dutta against a bowling attack that included Chris Tremain, who 
recently made his ODI debut for Australia against South Africa. 

CHALLENGES IN THE YEAR AHEAD 
The primary challenge that we and cricket in Singapore generally 
face is the availability of grounds on which to conduct our 
matches. Next year, the Yorker ground will not be available for 
SCA cricket. At SCC, we are fortunate to have the Padang and 
Dempsey. However, the current lease of Dempsey expires at the 
end of August 2017. Without Dempsey, scheduling for all of the 
current teams in the Club will become extremely challenging. Quite 

SECTION HIGHLIGHTS DURING THE YEAR 
With the return of the Padang in 2016, training was able to take 
place regularly throughout the year. As has been the pattern in prior 
years, training numbers were strong at the start of the season, but 
then dropped off as the season progressed. Although this is not 
surprising given the disjointed nature of the League draws during 
the year (when 14 games are spread out over 25-30 weeks, with 
some long breaks between games), we must make a better effort 
to attend training when games are upcoming. It is not surprising 
that the most regular trainers during the year put in, by and large, 
the best performances on the field. 

Ricky Anderson, in his first full year as coach was very effective 
in improving the skills of all players, as well as putting in some 
great work on the mental side of the game. We are grateful for the 
continuing support of the Club to allow us to have a coach such 
as Ricky who is fantastically dedicated to his craft. However, but 
going forward we will need to fund this through a combination of 
sponsorship and growing our junior programme, which is a major 
challenge for the year ahead. 

Junior Cricket continued to develop under the tutelage of Ricky, 
ably assisted by Riaz Hussien and Arun Vijayan. The quality of 
youngsters coming through the system is testament to their 
work. 28 JSMs played league cricket during the year. One of 
the highlights of the year was 15 year old Sean Aggarwal being 
selected in the Singapore U19 team that played in the Asian U19 
World Cup qualifiers. Sean performed very well in the tournament 
and was instrumental in the team finishing second and qualifying 
for the U19 Youth Asia Cup in Sri Lanka which will see the 
Singapore side play India, Pakistan, Sri Lanka, Bangladesh, Nepal 
and Afghanistan. Sean was selected in the Singapore U19 team 
for that tournament along with another JSM, Brigu Iyer.

In an initiative to develop our JSMs, the Panthers team during 
the year was comprised of a mix of veterans, ably led by former 
Singapore captain Graham Wilson and JSMs. The opportunity for 
the youngsters to play with some of the wizened hardheads of 
the section was grasped with both hands by many of the younger 
players. The wisdom and advice passed on to Sean, for example, 
played a not insignificant part in his development this year where 
he ended up playing for Tigers and Lions in the later games in the 
season leading to his selection for Singapore. 

Charlie Russell and Arit Dutta take on Australian international Chris Tremain in the SCC 
victory over Melbourne CC

Sean was part of the Singapore U19 team that qualified for the Asia Cup
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2017 T20 TOURNAMENT 
As you all know, we postponed the 2016 T20 tournament to 2017 
and this will be held from 11 to 13 August. We have brought it 
forward to avoid conflict with the SEA games in KL from 19-31 
August, where cricket is one of the sports. 

We have some fresh ideas about the tournament, including 
television coverage over Youtube, a TV highlights package that will 
air on ELEVEN SPORTS and a blanket social media coverage. I’m 
pleased to advise that Push Sharma has agreed to be Tournament 
Chairman for 2017. He will be looking for volunteers for his 
committee and I would urge you to step forward and help. 

Hugh Darwell
Cricket Convenor

rightly, the Club’s General Committee has shone the spotlight on 
the costs of maintaining Dempsey as a second ground. We, as a 
section have addressed the issue by being instrumental in placing 
the hiring of the cricket field at Dempsey on a more commercial 
and community footing. Clubs using Dempsey now pay affiliation 
or hiring fees when they have games there. 

Another initiative that had been approved by GC was the cash 
bar at Dempsey. Visitors can now purchase drinks as well as a 
limited food menu. When the bidding process opens up for the 
lease post-August 2017, we need to be in a position to mount a 
strong case. No one is saying Dempsey must be profitable. We are 
simply seeking to put the ground on a more commercial footing, 
which is in the interests of all members of the Club. 

Another key challenge is spreading the workload of the section. 
Currently, the committee does 90% of the heavy lifting in ensuring 
that we keep a vibrant section alive. And this is what we are 
elected to do. There are times when we seek your support and 
really appreciate the section members who stick their hands up to 
do so. What I would ask all of you is to consider helping out. We 
are all busy with work and family life, but with a little bit of effort 
comes great reward. If we share the load, we can ensure that the 
section continues to grow and be successful into the future.

BRIAN LARA AT SCC
One of the major achievements of the section was to bring Brian 
Lara to visit us and share his experiences with SCC members. 
The Gala Dinner was well attended by more than 200 people and 
we opened the event to the cricketing community in Singapore 
at large. The master class session for senior and junior cricketers 
and a round of golf with the maestro were well attended. A great 
initiative by the section that spanned over three days and was well 
supported by the cricketing fraternity in the country as well. We 
were also able to position ourselves well with some key sponsors 
like American Express which should hold us in good stead for 
similar events in the near future. 

Brian Lara with Unmish Parthasarthi at the Gala Dinner

SPORTS SECTION CRICKET
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Elected 21 April 2016

Convenor
Paul Murphy

Captain
Laurence O’Donovan

Secretary
Sally Brenchley

Treasurer
Soma Devi

Committee Members
Lynn Wilson
Mohietheen Fathima

Co-opted
Raymond Ambrose
Genevieve Chase
Mohan Balagopal

Darts Committee 2016/17 with other section members. From left: Sunder Ramchandani, Retna Sabapathy, Mohietheen Fathima, Rod Murchison, Soma Devi, Shelia Nagiah, 
Lynn Wilson, Mohan Balagopal, George V. Abraham, Kelvin Teo. Not in photo: Paul Murphy, Laurence O’Donovan, Sally Brenchley, Raymond Ambrose, Genevieve Chase. 

DARTS ACTIVITIES
The section’s Darts Night at The Oval is held on the second 
Thursday of each month. Aside to this, we do have many other 
impromptu darting sessions at the Men’s Bar where we are 
equipped with two dart boards.

FRIENDLY GAME WITH BRITISH HIGH COMMISSION
Darts members were off to the British High Commission for some 
friendly games which we organised yearly. I would like to thank 
Raymond Ambrose who made this possible making it a breeze to 
have friendlies with the staff of British High Commission darters, 
making it a memorable event for us. There were lots of games and 
we ended the session with karaoke. It was truly a day to remember 
with both teams fostering great camaraderie.

LADIES DARTS NIGHT
2 June was a night remembered by most ladies at SCC as we held 
our Annual Ladies Darts Night. We had an overwhelming response 
this year with close to 60 ladies participating in 16 teams. Tennis 
fielded three teams, Netball and Squash fielded two teams each, 
Balut, Bridge and Cricket fielded one team each and there was also 
a team from the SCC Staff. The guest teams are: Darts Virgins, Get 
Set, Dulwich Damsels, Deft Darters, Flying High and Lorna Lasses.

We also had great support on chalking and scoring from our male 
players – Mohan Balagopal, Kelvin Tan and Laurence O’Donovan.

GC Member Joyce Foster throwing the first darts of the Annual Bullseye Tournament

DARTSSPORTS SECTION
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Congratulations to the following winners: 
 • 1st Prize – Squash Crashers: Shelia Nagiah, Maheswary 

V and Andrea Nicholas; unbeatable so far winning three 
years in a row! 

 • 2nd Prize – Genevieve Chase, Lynn Wilson and Fathima 
who moved up from third position last year.

 • 3rd Prize – Netball: Nanthini, Jacqueline Ann and Erin

We would like to thank our generous sponsors immensely for the 
prizes and treats and all section convenors and participants for 
making this event successful. 

SOCIAL DARTS WITH MELBOURNE CRICKET CLUB
It was a great turnout by members of the Melbourne Cricket Club 
and the Singapore Cricket Club on 10 April 2016. We had more 
than 50 members from MCC turning up for Social Darts. It was an 
evening filled with loads of camaraderie and laughter. Everyone 
present had a good game. Initially, we had only 12 players who 
had registered for Social Darts but we were surprised with the 
overwhelming attendance and awesome support given by the 
MCC members.

We had a good mix of SCC and MCC team members in each group. 
The MCC team had strong darters who were highly competitive. 
Many of them even trained at our Men’s Bar since their arrival at 
SCC.  

Most of the MCC members returned home on 11 April 2016 so this 
was a great and memorable way to end their sports journey with 
SCC. Everyone who had attended informed us that they would 
definitely consider including darts as part of their sports at MCC 
and they truly enjoyed the event organised by SCC.

Many thanks to the MCC members – Steven McCooke, Tim 
Herringshaw and Linden Clarke for making this event a success in 
getting as many teams from MCC to play the game. We were very 
glad that the SCC Members played a good host and made this a 
successful event. Thank you, Philip for organising series of 301s 
and 201s.

ANNUAL DARTS INTERSECTION
13 August saw the various sports sections ready for battle in the 
Annual Bullseye Tournament organised by the Darts Section.

The teams played the ‘best of three’. Games were keenly contested 
with sections demonstrating a healthy combination of competitive 
play and sportsmanship – exactly what the SCC is all about!

The final result: 1st – Squash; 2nd – Tennis; 3rd – Bowls

We were fortunate to have members of the GC present to award 
the prizes and the Len Foster trophy went to the Squash Section, 
together with a special prize of Night Race tickets.

Special thanks to Raymond for helping to arrange this and for his 
generous contribution of champagne for the ‘Best Dressed Team’ 
which went to the Tennis Section with the theme “Where’s Wally”. 
The highest score of the day went to Boardy from Cricket 1, who 
received a bottle of wine generously contributed by Soma, our 
wonderful Treasurer. A huge thank you to the Darts Committee for 
their efforts and to those co-opted to help organise the day. We 
look forward to the continued support of all Sports Sections in 
SCC!

POT GAMES 2016
It was a triumphant moment when SCC won the darts game with 
Tanglin Club on 3 October.  It was indeed a competitive afternoon 
for most SCC darters as they represented our section to ‘play-to-
win’. The participants had been training conscientiously and they 
brought back the trophy.

It was a nail biting game and TC were leading in their Men’s 
Singles. Our darters came back on track and we won a series of 
the following games.

1) Men’s Singles – Sebastian (SCC-1, TC-2)
2)  Ladies’ Singles – Lynn Wilson and Shelia Nagiah (SCC-2, TC-0)
3)  Men’s Doubles – Graham Wilson and Sebastian (SCC-1, TC-1)
4)  Mixed Doubles – Team 1 Mo Yasin and Fathima; Team 2 Paul 

Murphy and Sally Brenchley (SCC-2, TC-0)

Wonderful turnout at the Ladies’ Darts Night in June

SPORTS SECTION DARTS
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The SCC darters wrapped it up with a turkey win, which gave us 
an overall victory with a 15-8 score. 

Thank you to all players for taking their precious time to compete 
and represent the section. We would like to also thank our 
supporters from the section for their presence.

The team worked really hard for this win, practicing almost every 
other day at the Men’s Bar. Determined to win, we came back 
strong with an overall win for the Pot Games trophy. 

DARTS SECTION YEAR END PARTY 
A time for get together for the entire Darts Section, the Year End 
Party was held at the Gilmour Room with a Hawaiian theme. The 
entire venue was decorated vibrantly with coconut trees, leaves 
and colourful orchids. We are indeed fortunate to have President 
Manu Bhojwani attending as well as Games Control Board 
Chairman Mr Sher Baljit Singh and GC Member Mr Anwar Gaffoor.

We had lots of games lined up and everyone had a ball of time. 
Since it was a Hawaiian Night, we had to look out for the ‘Best 
Hula’ sway. The entire room was filled with laughter and happiness 
as everyone had a role to participate in the games.

We had great lucky draw prizes such as travel vouchers to Bali, 
Krabi and Bintan, as well as spa vouchers. Everyone was delighted 
as most of them walked away with prizes.

Our dance floor was taken away with live band, Trevor who rocked 
the dance floor and entertained all of us with his great voice and 
music. Thank you, Trevor!

CONCLUSION
Darts Section is blessed with a fantastic committee who are 
continuously working hard for the section and ensuring all the 
planned events goes on smoothly. 

The section committee would like to place on record its gratitude 
to all section members who have in one way or other contributed 
to the continued success of the section. Special Mention must 
also be made to the Club’s F&B staff – Razi, Muthu and Vicky. 
Special gratitude to Chovin Ong and Becky Xu and the Sports 
Department for their contribution to the successful activities the 
section had organised. 

Mohietheen Fathima
Darts Convenor 2017

SCC and MCC darters

A triumphant moment for the Darters at Pot Games 2016
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Elected 14 October 2016

Convenor
Chionh Chye Hion

Captain
Alvin Khoo

Secretary
Bala Supramaniam

Treasurer
Vincent Ho

Committee Members
Richard Loo
Jagateesen Krishna
Jenny Chong

Annual game with Changi Golf Club

Golf Committee 2016/17 with other section members. From left: Alvin Khoo, Jagateesen Krishna, Richard Loo, Chionh Chye Hion, Vincent Ho, Steven Keane, 
Bala Supramaniam. Not in photo: Jenny Chong.

INTER-CLUB WITH CHANGI GOLF CLUB – 24 JANUARY

We started 2016 with an inter-club match with Changi Golf 
Club, which has always been more fun than competition, 
though on this occasion, we scored a rare win with the 

help of many Changi members who are also section members.

LO-HEI GAME – 17 FEBRUARY
This traditional CNY game and dinner was held at the Jurong 
Country Club and a good turnout of 48 players had a good round 
of golf followed by a Yu Sheng dinner at JCC’s function room.

MCC VISIT – 8 APRIL
Some eight golfers accompanied the main contingent from 
Melbourne Cricket Club and we hosted them to a game at Seletar 
Country Club followed with a barbecue meal at the club’s Tavern. 
There is a good likelihood that the section will pay a return visit to 
Melbourne in August 2017 for a few games of golf.

MAJOR TOUR TO NANJING, CHINA – 17 TO 21 MAY
16 members of the section, some accompanied by their spouses, 
visited the ancient city of Nanjing in eastern China for five days 
of golf and fine dining. Three games of golf were played and the 
weather was particularly cooperative – cool and dry, till the last 
day of the trip.

GOLF
SPORTS SECTION GOLF
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INTER-SECTION SOCIAL GAME – 17 JUNE
This annual event was held at the SICC Old Course and the 
turnout was good with some 44 participants from the Golf and 
various sections. Unfortunately, inclement weather prevented the 
completion of the game, though the players did not let it dampen 
their spirits and an evening of dining and drinking ensued.

PADANG SHIELD – 1 JULY
The match against SRC was also marred by inclement weather 
stoppages and all the players from both sides resigned themselves 
to drowning their ‘sorrows’ with copious amounts of beers. This 
biennial event will be next hosted by SRC.

SOCIAL NIGHT – 5 AUGUST
This social event is meant to be a quarterly meet up for members 
who are too busy to spend a whole day golfing and dining. As 
usual, it was held at SCC’s Gilmour Room and some 50 members 
attended.

BATAM TRIP – 19 & 20 AUGUST
An overnight trip with two golf games were organised jointly with 
the Cricket Section and 16 members from both sections took part 
in this golf holiday to the nearby southern island.

SCC ANNUAL GOLF TOURNAMENT – 9 SEPTEMBER
This is the marquee event in the golfing calendar and for the 
first time it was held at Seletar Country Club. Unfortunately, a 
champion could not emerge as the tournament was cut short by 
a thunderstorm. However, all was not lost, as most of the players 
returned to the Padang Restaurant for a great dinner and a long 
night of reverie.

ANNUAL POT GAMES – 29 SEPTEMBER
Hosted by Tanglin Club at the SICC Island Course, SCC fielded a 
weakened team as most of our stronger players could not make 
it for the match. It was a long time since we last conceded the 
President’s Golf Challenge Trophy to Tanglin.

Pot games with Tanglin ClubChristmas Golf Game at TMCC

SCC Annual Golf Tournament at Seletar Country Club
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SECTION AGM – 20 OCTOBER
The AGM was held at the Gilmour Room, and a team of office 
bearers were elected uncontested to form the new committee.

KL INTERPORT TOUR – 10 TO 12 NOVEMBER
19 section members travelled up to KL to play Royal Selangor Club 
at the Glenmarie Golf Club. Though the match was interrupted by 
inclement weather most of the golfers managed to finish the game. 
RSC hosted the contingent to a dinner at their Kiara clubhouse. 
The team played another two social games before heading home.

SOCIAL GAME – 25 NOVEMBER
47 players took part in this social golf game at JCC, knowing that it 
would be their last opportunity to play on an iconic course that was 
to be returned to the authorities at the end of the year. A dinner 
was held at their clubhouse.

CHRISTMAS GOLF – 15 DECEMBER
A total of 65 participants took part in the year-end major event 
held at TMCC’s Tampines Course. The golf game was followed by 
an evening of good dining and drinking, entertained by the group, 
Heart & Souls.

As at the end of 2016, there were a total of 452 members in the 
Golf Section.

Chionh Chye Hion
Golf Convenor

Interport game with Royal Selangor Country Club

Golf game at Seletar Golf Club

SPORTS SECTION GOLF
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HOCKEY

Elected 12 November 2016

Convenor
Intekhab Khan

Ladies’ Captain
Rhian Frizler

Men’s Captain
Chris Jones

Treasurer
Mathavan Devadas

Secretary
Martijn de Blauwe

Ladies’ Social Secretary
Pauline Cassidy Appleyard

Men’s Social Secretary
Sean Chen

Committee Members
Katherine Mountain
Patrick Meredith
Subhas Nathan
Jamal Siddique Peer

JSM Representative
Liu Shiying 

Hockey Committee 2016/17. Back row/left: Patrick Meredith, Rhian Frizler, Martijn de Blauwe, Sean Chen, Jamal Siddique Peer. Front row/left: Liu Shiying, 
Pauline Cassidy Appleyard, Intekhab Khan, Chris Jones, Mathavan Devadas. Not in photo: Katherine Mountain, Subhas Nathan.

2016 was another outstanding year for the section. After 
the resounding success of the 22nd Hockey Sixes in 
March, which featured up to 64 Men’s and Ladies’ teams 

participating in the two-day tournament at the Padang and 
whose prize presentation was graced by Mr. Baey Yam Keng, the 
Parliamentary Secretary of the Ministry of Culture, Community and 
Youth, the SCC Hockey Section went on to accomplish positive 
results and good rankings. 

Our youthful counterparts, especially, did us proud, with the Girls’ 
Under 19 achieving a Gold and the Boys’ Under 19 achieving a 
Bronze, in the National Junior League. 

SCC Special Recognition Award winner, Mathavan Devadas

HOCKEYSPORTS SECTION



62 SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

The Hockey Section was elated on winning numerous accolades at 
the 9th SCC Annual Sports Awards held on 15 April 2016, namely:
 
 • Section of the Year Hockey Section
 • Team of the Year Hockey Section’s 
   Men’s 1st XI Team
 • Sports Woman of the Year Catherine Wheeler
 • Sports Man of the Year Ken Forbes

The rest of the section similarly demonstrated their capabilities, 
winning several key tournaments and competitions, with: 
 
 • Both the Men’s and Ladies’ Division 1 teams emerging with 

a Bronze; 
 • The Men’s Division 2 team emerging in 6th position;
 • The Ladies’ Division 2 team emerging in 5th position;
 • The Men’s Division 3 team emerging in 4th position; and
 • The Men’s Division 5 team emerging with a Bronze. 

In August 2016, we were visited by the MCC (Australia) Team, 
on their tour. Our teams played two exciting matches against the 
visiting team and won one of them, thanks to the outstanding 
sportsmanship and determination displayed by our players. The 
experience was a memorable one for all the players involved, 
both in terms of the friendships forged and the tips and tricks 
exchanged in respect of the sport. 

2016 was also a good year for the section in terms of intersection 
bonding. Our section members had a wonderful time participating 
in the Giles Roche Intersection Bowl Trophy, as well as the 
Intersection Netball Tournament. 

The section also organised “Social Hockey” on the Padang, 
on every last Friday of each month, to facilitate interaction and 
bonding amongst both the active and non-active members of the 
SCC Hockey Section and to remind everyone of the social aspect 
of the game. 

To this end, the section even got the seniors involved, to remind 
everyone that you are never too old to showcase your talents on 
the field. Between March to November 2016, the section organised 
up to six hockey trainings and friendly matches for section seniors’ 
at the Padang. 

SCC’s hockey home at the Padang, a venue with no equal!

22nd SCC International Hockey 6s – SCC Ladies’ versus The Pink Ladies from 
Australia 

SPORTS SECTION HOCKEY
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A particular focus of the section in 2016 was to groom young 
players for hockey development in the Club and eventually set up 
an integrated Hockey Academy. We are pleased to announce that 
we have since been joined by nearly 36 energetic children / young 
adults between the ages of 5 to 16, who are training diligently 
with Chief Coach Kanan. We hope to make youth participation a 
permanent feature of the section. Trainings are currently conducted 
every Saturday at Delta Hockey Stadium from 11am. 

As the year came to a close, the section was excited to celebrate 
the achievements of one of their very own, namely the Section 
Treasurer, Mathavan Devadas, who had officiated as a Technical 
Official at the Rio Olympics Brazil in July 2016. This was  
Mathavan’s 4th consecutive Technical Official Appointment in the 
Olympic Games. Prior to the same, he had also been appointed as 
a Technical Official in the Athens (2004), Beijing (2008) and London 
(2012) Olympic Games. Mathavan was honoured at a special 
event dedicated to outstanding Club Members led by the Club 
President Mr. Mohan Bhojwani on 12 December 2016, during the 
New Members election night.

Moving forward, the section hopes to continue its tradition of 
excellence and celebrating a diversity of members, both young 
and old. We would also like to thank everyone who has made the 
year such a memorable one. 

Intekhab Khan
Hockey Convenor

SCC Hockey Section jubilation on being awarded the prestigious ‘Section of the Year’ award

Girls’ NJL 2 Champions

SCC Men’s Team (SHF NHL 1 Champion 2015) voted ‘Team of the Year’ at the 9th SCC 
Sports Awards
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Elected 28 July 2016

Convenor
Sadaf Whiskin

Captain
Alice Harkness

Secretary
Carol Hartopp

Treasurer
Fiona Chesney

JSM Liaison
Nanthini Visvalingam

Committee Member
Mads Greenly

Co-opted Members
Penny Hands
Jaqueline-Ann Phua
Camillia Pratt
Alicina Tan

Netball Committee 2016/17. Back row/left: Camillia Pratt, Alice Harkness, Carol Hartopp, Penny Hands, Mads Greenly, Sadaf Whiskin. Front row/left: Fiona Chesney, 
Jaqueline-Ann Phua, Nanthini Visvalingam, Alicina Tan.

NETBALL

A triumphant year for the Netball Section would be the apt 
way to describe 2016. We have enjoyed the fruits of our 
labour with the most successful year in terms of netball 

performance. The committee adjusted our strategy in challenging 
situations carried forward from 2015, expanding our pool of 
JSMs in the face of declining sports membership uptakes and 
this paid off with the teams achieving podium finishes across all 
competitions we participated in. 

The core committee extended their duties into a second term 
which allowed for continuity in executing against our plan of 
building a winning section. For the first time since netball was 
introduced in the Padang Shield seven years ago, Team SCC 
triumphed over SRC in a hard fought match, etching the moment 
in history. 

The Hawks had a stellar year, starting the year off by emerging 
champions in the SCC league. This was a feat in itself, coming 
up against teams an SCC team has clinched the trophy and a 
sweet victory to bring back the trophy. Another first and history-
making moment was during the National League where the team 
emerged champions, a title that SCC has never been able to 
claim since the sections revival eight years ago. A team that’s 
pushing those boundaries of performance, we’re confident in 
another year of outstanding performance in 2017. 

SPORTS SECTION NETBALL
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The Eagles also had a great year, adding to the medal tally for 
the section, as they came into the National League stronger 
and more determined. The team took second place in their 
division, nipped slightly at the finish line by another team. The 
Eagles demonstrated performance of a team on the upward 
trend with the potential to clinch the title in 2017. 

The Falcons, our mixed team also saw a couple of firsts – our 
first two male JSMs, joining the section to don the black and 
yellow colours on the netball court. Proving assets to the team 
and with the increasing interest and participation of men and 
women in the mixed format of the game, the team clinched 
second place in the National League. 

Beyond the winning streak, our focus on youth development 
saw a concerted effort in 2016. The Netball JSM Carnival 
returned to the SCC courts for another successful edition 
with participation of over 10 teams. To sustain the 
momentum of interest from 
these annual JSM carnivals 
and to further our objective 
of expanding the numbers 
of youth in the Netball 
Section, we launched 
a youth development 
programme towards 
the end of 2016 that 
has already seen two 
players move into 
playing with the adult 
team. 

The SCC league, a league set up by the Netball Section to 
supplement a short Netball Singapore-organised playing 
season for club teams also continues to grow with every year 
– this year, with the most significant change of increasing the 
divisions from three to four and subsequently the number of 
teams to 22. The overwhelming popularity in the league is 
attributed to the league being run the most professional manner 
possible by our star Section Member, Nan, whose relentless 
focus on ensuring every bit of organisation from the courts to 
the fixtures and umpires are on point.

The Netball Section had the pleasure of forging new 
relationships with long-term affiliate Melbourne Cricket Club 
as they came down for a Multi-Sport Tour in April. We did get 
taught a lesson or two on court by the MCC girls but at the 
same time it was a great experience for the SCC players in the 
lead up to our National League. Hosting teams also hosted a 
visiting HK team early in 2016 where we organised a round 
robin tournament for our visitors in another lesson for the SCC 

team on court!

Apart from hosting teams in 
Singapore, the netball girls 
took part in what is now a 
regular fixture in our netball 

calendar, the Annual Bangkok 
Southerners Tournament in 

May. Our touring team, the 
SCC Flamingos emerged 

second in the Plate 
category, one of the 

best results that 
we’ve achieved so 

far in this annual 
tournament. 

MCC visit The Hawks

Annual Bangkok 
Southerners Tournament - 
Tour virgins donning their 

eye-catching outfits
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With half the team consisting of tour virgins, the team had 
nothing short of fun since the moment we stepped into the 
airport and through this tournament, the team managed to 
further bond with one another, stepping stones for an impactful 
year. 

In September, the Flamingos flew on to Hong Kong – a touring 
destination we have just revived, for a friendly match against 
the Hong Kong Football Club team. ‘Learning’ from the 
matches with HK and MCC, the team displayed grit and some 
excellent performance to win the match with a score of 31 - 
24. Adding to the flurry of netball activities, the section also 
participated in the annual Beach Netball tournament, walking 
away as runners-up in the Women’s Open category!

Keeping the spirit of camaraderie through sports alive, we 
also revived events to involve other sections this year with 
our courts back finally back. We re-started the Kilbee Cup, 
contested between the Cricket and Netball Sections. Having a 
number of the cricket boys join our mixed team proved to work 
against the Netball Section’s favour as we graciously handed 
the Kilbee Cup to the Cricket Section in a convincing 11-point 
win.

Towards the end of the year, we also revived the Netball 
Intersection, seeing an enthusiastic turnout from the Cricket boys 
yet again and two team from Squash, sending in their army of 
young players to participate in this social but competitive event. 
Once again we conceded defeat to the cricketers who lifted the 
Intersection trophy at the end of the day. 

Kilbee Cup

While we continue to push the boundaries of netball performance 
and raise the profile of SCC in the netball circuit, Intersection 
events have proven to be an important part of the sporting 
community within the SCC to bring the Club together through the 
love of sports. We hope to continue with these activities as we 
enter into another exciting year for the section.  

A young and relatively small section, the work never stops in the 
organisation of all the activities and we’d like to extend a big thank 
you to our SCC Sports Department especially Thipa and Janet 
for the assistance provided to the section. Having the support of 
Baljit, the Chairman of Games Control Board and the rest of the 
GC has allowed the section to thrive in challenging times and we’d 
like to extend our gratitude to them.

High on the fumes of victory in 2016, we look forward to a stronger 
year for the section both on and off the court, made possible by 
the infrastructure we are privileged to have at the SCC and support 
from the staff and GC. 

Sadaf Whiskin
Netball Convenor

SPORTS SECTION NETBALL



67ANNUAL REPORT 2016

SCC Academy Head Coach Bryan Lim runs a rugby introductory session for kids, 
supported by Beyond Social Services and Sport Cares

RUGBY

Elected 14 March 2016

Convenor
Samuel Sharpe

Captain
Rishi Chandiok

Secretary
Terence Noe

Treasurer
Stuart Watson

Social Secretary
Joshua Sims

JSM Representative
Bryan Lim

Rugby Committee 2016/17 with other section members. From left: Jonathan Leow, Mike Cosnett, Bryan Lim, Rick Watkins, Rishi Chandiok, Marc Lansonneur, 
Samuel Sharpe, Terence Noe, Stuart Watson, David Griffiths, Nick Passi. Not in photo: Joshua Sims.

One of the questions which the Rugby Section has been 
contemplating for some time is what sort of rugby club the 
SCC is. Rugby in Asia is becoming more professional and 

better funded. Rugby 7s has become an Olympic sport and the 
popularity of the game is increasing in the region. Clubs which the 
SCC in the past used to play and beat, such as those in Japan and 
Hong Kong, are now semi-professional, with major sponsors and 
teams which can compete at an international level. 

Historically, the SCC has been the home of rugby in Singapore. It 
was where the first rugby matches were played in Singapore and 
the SCC was instrumental in nurturing Singaporean rugby talent, 
supplying many, if not most of the national team. So the question 
is, should the SCC still strive to live up to its past glory? Can we 
compete with our fellow clubs in the region? Can we develop 
the best National players and foster Singaporean rugby talent – 
perhaps even help build towards a SEA Games gold medal for 
Singapore in Rugby 7s?

We think we can. We also think we can achieve this and reduce the 
cost of rugby to the SCC. But how?

There are three strands to the section’s strategy, which we have 
been developing in 2016. I discuss each (in no particular order of 
importance) below.

The first strand is the Rugby Academy.

RUGBYSPORTS SECTION
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In July 2016, the Rugby Academy was reorganised as a not-
for-profit entity, with all profits being directed to coaching and 
developing talent. The Academy currently has over 450 kids (boy 
and girls) from the ages of 4 to 16 training on Thursdays, Saturdays 
and Sundays (Touch Rugby) at Dempsey. The Rugby Academy 
supports the section in two critical aspects. First, it allows certain 
costs of the section to be covered by the Academy, reducing the 
cost to the Club (for example the cost of coaches and common 
equipment). Second, it allows the development of local Singapore 
talent for the senior teams. The SCC is now one of the few rugby 
clubs in Southeast Asia where you can join as a young child and 
play until you are 60 or more (which some do). 

Thanks to the hard work of Academy President Richard Cook, 
Head Coaches Suhaimi Amran and Bryan Lim and Manager Sarah 
Finley and others, the Academy had a fantastic season in 2016, 
with some impressive wins at the SCC’s very own Robert Walters 
7s and Touch Tournament (held the week before the SCC 7s). 
Particular congratulations went to the SCC Tigers (U8 and U12, 
who won their age groups), as well as the SCC U14 Gold team 
who also took home silverware.

In addition to success on the field, the Academy has been working 
with Beyond Social Services to introduce disadvantaged kids in 
Singapore to the game and provide rugby training. The Academy is 
also working with a number of neighbourhood schools to provide 
rugby training to students. Those kids with talent will also be 
offered a rugby scholarship (paid for by the Academy) to join the 
SCC as junior sports members. 

The second strand is fostering success on the field across all 
grades.

Success on the field encourages the best talent to come and 
play for us (notwithstanding the expense) and encourages new 
members to join the SCC and play rugby.
 
The section fields four competitive teams: a First (the Prems), 
Second (the Tankards) and Third (the Lions) XV as well as our over 
35s team, the Growlers.

2016 and 2017 (so far) has been very successful for the senior 
teams. The SCC Tankards have won the 2016/2017 Championship 
and are preparing to retain the Shield trophy. If the Tankards can 
do the double again, it will be the fifth year running for Captain 
Shane Dewar’s men.

The SCC Lions, who played up in the Championship (with the 
Tankards) this year have gone from strength to strength after a 
difficult couple of opening matches in the league. Under new 
captain Jack Whiskin, the Lions finished the season in fifth place in 
the Championship league.

The real focus this year has been the SCC Prems and our 
continuing campaign to finally win the Cup. Under Coach Will 
Skinner, the Prems have performed well, beating all Premiership 
sides consistently, with the exception of Wanderers and Bucks 
(in a shock defeat in the semi-final). Given Wanderers dominance 
of the Premiership over the last few years, the SCC will remain 
underdogs in the 2017/2018 competition. But although the SCC 
sometimes struggles to match the depth of the Wanderers first XV, 
the black and gold have some exceptional players in the likes of 
Mikey Oliver, Taylor Hayes as well as National Team Players Adam 
Vine, Xavier and Alex Ducourneau and Declan Martens (among 
others). 

SCC Academy U6s

SPORTS SECTION RUGBY
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The third strand is the SCC 7s.

The SCC 7s is the oldest Rugby 7s tournament in the region and 
one of the oldest in the world. Starting on the Padang back in 
1947, the tournament will be in its 70th year in 2017 and promises 
the best of top international and club rugby 7s in our very own 
club.

Despite a difficult start, the 2016 Rugby 7s was a resounding 
success, with close to 2500 tickets sold and a healthy surplus 
being achieved by the tournament. Although scaled down from 
previous years in terms of size, the new layout including the new 
open plan public stands and extensive kids and family area added 
a great atmosphere to the tournament, which also complemented 
the world class rugby on the pitch. The 2016 SCC 7s was also 
special because of the historic achievement of the SCC 7s squad, 
coached by the Club’s very own Suhaimi Amran. As 2016 Plate 
winners, the SCC achieved the best result since 1972, when the 
Club last won the Ablitt Cup.

A high quality but sustainable SCC 7s is essential to the 
development of rugby at the Club. It not only maintains the Club’s 
standing and prestige in world rugby, but if properly managed it 
can be an important revenue source to support rugby at the Club.

The section intends to build on the achievements of 2016 in line 
with the current strategy.

In addition to the above, the section will be introducing a new 
Touch Rugby team and training programme open to both men and 
women. Touch Rugby is a non-contact code of rugby, which is a 
fast growing sport in Singapore. We hope that this new initiative 
will encourage more SCC members to get involved in the Rugby 
Section, as well as encouraging more sportsmen and women 
to join the SCC to play Touch Rugby. The Touch Rugby team 
will build on the very successful girls Touch Rugby programme 
currently being run by the Rugby Academy. 

Samuel Sharpe
Rugby Convenor

SCC Prems take on Bedok Kings

SCC Academy Girls’ Touch Rugby U10s prize giving
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Elected 2 February 2016

Convenor
Dominic Lane

Captain
Owen Monaghan

Secretary
Gordon Deas

Treasurer
Ronnie Smollet

JSM Representative
Ravi Krishnan

Committee Members
Glyn Vince
Amos Boon
Jas Bhens

Soccer Committee 2016/17. From left: Amos Boon, Ravi Krishnan, Dominic Lane, Glyn Vince, Gordon Deas. Not in photo: Owen Monaghan, Jas Bhens, Ronnie Smollet.

SOCCER

Historically the ‘over achievers’ of the SCC, 2016 could be 
described as something of a mixed bag by our section’s 
exceptionally high standards.

The Firsts and Strollers both recorded league cup wins whilst the 
Pads and Thirds were our two most successful teams, raking in 
seven more trophies between them. Sadly, however there were 
no league titles for our section this year. That said the section 
continues to go from strength to strength both on and off the pitch. 

The Pads and Thirds are again competing strongly when it comes 
to the highest bar bills. Meanwhile, on the pitch we now have four 
highly competitive midweek teams in the First Team, Lions, Thirds 
and Pads; whilst the weekends see three more teams competing 
for honours, with the Firsts, Strollers (Saturdays) and Tigers 
(Sundays) all playing.

Before we delve in to the respective team’s summaries, as 
Convenor, I would like to take this opportunity to thank all of the 
people, both SCC staff members and also the section volunteers 
such as the captains and managers, who make every game and 
social occasion possible. 

Dominic Lane
Soccer Convenor

SPORTS SECTION SOCCER
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SCC FIRSTS 2015/16 SEASON – COSMO LEAGUE
Silverware: Cosmo Cup winners; Cosmo League runners-up
Golden Boot Winners: Andrew Hutcheon and John Spackman
Player of the Season: John Spackman

The First Team retained the Cosmo Cup for the eighth consecutive 
year. Captain John Spackman, in his last game for the Club, made 
sure our winning streak didn’t end by providing a last-minute 
header, in extra time, against our old foes, the Casuals. 

The final score (after extra time) was 3-3, sending the game 
towards penalties once the opposing fans had decided to end 
their premature celebratory pitch invasion. The Firsts then went on 
to hold their nerve in the shootout, with some well-taken penalties 
and ‘Spacks’ duly lifted the trophy. A fitting send off for a Club 
stalwart, before he jetted off to the Middle East.

Sadly, the First Team’s league position was not what we would 
have liked; finishing second for the first time in eight years. 
Congratulations to TGA Rangers who had an outstanding season, 
pipping us to the title by just two points. Despite the disappointment 
of finishing second, the team still performed admirably throughout 
the season. Special mentions should go to Danny Hammond who 
decided to hang up his boots after four highly successful years 
for the Club, whilst debutants Tim Walter and Anthony Garreau 
both had assured first seasons for the team too. Meanwhile the 
effervescent Ronnie Smollet continued to perform regular heroics, 
between the sticks too.

In the managerial dugout, the SCC’s answer to Bill Shankly, 
Owen Monaghan decided to take a breather, as he announced 
his retirement as First Team Manager. Owen has been without 
question the most successful manager the Club has seen. His 
first league title as ‘The Gaffer’ came in 2008/2009 and he then 
followed that up with six more Cosmo league titles. With regards 
to the Cosmo Cup he has now won the trophy 10 times (as a player 
and manager), resulting in an unprecedented six league and Cup 
doubles. Before we even begin to discuss his SingTel Cup and 
Windmill cup hauls, it’s fair to say that the Club has been incredibly 
lucky to have him as our manager. 

Seven league titles, seven Cups and six doubles in just eight years 
will be a managerial record that should go unbroken for a long time 
to come. A huge thank you to Owen for everything that he has 
done for the First Team.

Fortunately, Owen’s winning legacy lives on and the Firsts sit top 
of the league and have racked up some impressive winning scores 
under our new coach, Anthony Houlahan. In fact, the Firsts last 
four matches have finished: 10-0, 6-1, 6-1 and 8-1. That’s 30 goals 
for and just three goals conceded. At the same time the Firsts have 
maintained this strong form in the Cosmo cup, reaching the semi-
finals. The future looks very bright indeed.

Management: Owen Monaghan – 2015/16

SCC STROLLERS 2015/16 SEASON – EQUATORIAL FOOTBALL 
LEAGUE
Silverware: Equatorial League Cup – Winners 2016; defeated 
British Club in final league, 0-2.
League: Finished 7th – 30 points (11 points behind the league 
winners)
Golden Boot Winner:  Jake McFarlane
Player of Season: Mo Yasin 

The Stroller’s season ended on a very upbeat note after winning 
the Equatorial cup final and playing some great football in the 
second half of the league.

The season started relatively slowly as we tried a new approach of 
blending older experience players, with youth team players to try 
and achieve a good progressive style of football in a strong and 
competitive league.

Frustratingly it took a little longer to gel and recruit a core group of 
players, but once this was achieved the results started to improve 
and the season finished well which culminated with the Cup win.

This upward curve has continued this season, where Strollers 
sit top of the table, albeit on games played, but a good sign of 
improvement and relevance in developing players for the first team 
and familiarity within the Club.

The team will also be fiercely defending the Cup again which we 
hope will result in end of season silverware once more!

Management: Bruce Loggie and Piers Bourke – 2015/16

SCC TIGERS 2015/16 SEASON – ESPZEN FOOTBALL LEAGUE
12 months ago the SCC Tigers started the new ESPZEN 
Sunday League season with a fresh squad of young players 
from the academy led by coach, Luke Diaz. Midway through the 
season, Luke left Singapore for a semester and handed over the 
management of the team to the older players Yossi Azran, Aaron 
Jones and Etienne Van den Bogaert. SCC Tigers also saw a few 
players move on to the SCC First Team and some others left 
Singapore for their studies overseas, we wish them well in their 
studies. 

With a strong fresh batch of SCC Youth Academy players joining 
the SCC Tigers team, we went on to finish second in the league 
that finished on the 18 September 2016 and ready to start the new 
season. 

We have now four games left until the end of the season, we are 
first in the ranking, six points ahead of Purple Monkeys FC but 
they have three games in hand. It will be a tight finish and we 
are looking forward to win with Coach Luke just back from his 
overseas trip.

Our great new additions over the last 12 months have been Lauritz 
Ritter, Rory Anderson and Joshua Brimblecombe and we see 
Lauritz and Rory already moving on to play with SCC First or the 
SCC NFL team. 

Management: Luke Diaz, Yossi Azran, Aaron Jones and Etienne 
Van den Bogaert – 2015/16

SCC THIRDS 2015/16 SEASON – MIDWEEK WEDNESDAYS
Silverware: Forex Cup, Tiger Cup, Devil’s Advocate Cup and 
Deepavali Cup
Golden Boot Winner: Lloyd Branson
Player of Season: Lloyd Branson

The Thirds had a good season in 2016. They are a social team 
with a wide age span from 30 years to 63 years. Playing a total of 
45 games over the year, the Thirds won 24, lost 16 and drew five. 
With a goal haul of 113 goals with 19 players sharing the spoils and 
average a match day squad size of typically 16 players per game.
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The Thirds played a number of Cup games and were successful 
in retaining the Forex Cup, the Tiger Cup, the Devil’s Advocate 
Cup and also the Deepavali Cup. Sadly they lost the National 
Day Cup to the Referees. These bilateral Cup games have been 
going on for a long time with some as far back as 12 years. Cup 
games are generally followed by makan sessions at the Courtyard 
where friendly banter and fellowship takes place. It’s also the 
Thirds’ tradition to have celebrations to mark the major festivals 
in Singapore – Chinese New Year, Hari Raya, Deepavali and 
Christmas and an Annual Thirds party to cap off each season.

Special mention goes to Lloyd Branson, who was the Thirds Golden 
Boot and Player of the Year winner. Lloyd scored 44 goals in 2016 
and was an exemplary player participating in the fellowship and 
social events of the Thirds. Unfortunately, we will miss him sorely 
this season as he has gone to Sydney with his family.

Management: Vincent Lawrence – 2015/16

SCC LIONS 2015/16 SEASON – MIDWEEK THURSDAYS
Silverware: Henrik Lorenz Cup
Golden Boot Winner:  Foo Yong Seng

The Lions had a good season of football. With Tony ‘Cafu’ Moore 
getting the fixtures sorted, the players just had to turn up on 
Thursday evenings and enjoy the football played on both the 
Padang and Dempsey. We had two annual Cup games in 2016 
and they were played in a good competitive spirit. We lost narrowly 
against the Indian Association (in the Hindu New Year Cup), but 
recovered a few weeks later to win the Henrik Lorenz Cup against 
the German All-Stars.  

Golden Boot winner, Foo ‘Ibra’ Yong Seng banged in plenty of 
goals for the team and there have been some whispers of him 
bagging the ‘Player of the Year’ award. Also in the running is Piers 
‘Giggs’ Bourke who also had a very good season with the team. 
Other consistent performers in the team include John ‘Terry’ Keh 
(consistently inconsistent), Bryan ‘Joey Barton’ Bai (consistently 
explosive), Godwin ‘Tony Adams’ Campos (consistently nursing a 
hangover) and Bruce ‘Rose’ Loggie (consistently late). The team 
also welcomes a few new additions – Lourdes, George, Lakesh, 
Paras and a couple of others. 

The team is now led by player-manager Terk ‘Klinsmann’ Yang 
and assisted by Jeremy ‘Xavi’ Lim. The team had its annual team 
dinner at Essad’s Boat Quay restaurant earlier in January and 
already have a couple of games at Dempsey under its belt. We are 
now all primed and looking forward to the new season ahead on 
the Padang.   

Management: Tony Moore and Terk Lee – 2015/16

SCC PADS 2015/16 SEASON – MIDWEEK FRIDAYS
Silverware: Breitling Cup, Padang Shield and Muddy Pads Cup
Golden Boot Winner: Yossi Azran

2016 was a step up for the Pads as we raised the bar somewhat 
playing tougher opposition more regularly and continuing with 
mid-week training. 

Playing 40 matches for the season spread over The Padang and 
Dempsey, we won 25 and lost only nine, scoring 125 goals on the 
way and keeping 12 clean sheets – a very successful season.

Along the way we picked up the Breitling Cup, the Padang Shield 
and the Muddy Pads Cup. We unfortunately lost two other Cup 
finals, losing in the last kick of the match to a strong HIBS side in 
the El Classico 1-2 and losing to Hong Kong FC 1-3 in the Henrik 
Lorenz memorial trophy after dominating the second half.

Leading goal scorer for the season was Yossi (we lost count how 
many he scored) and most games played belonged to Charles 
Ransford and Sir John Fernandez.

We had to say goodbye to Brian Lavelle (sent to the marmalade 
mines in New Zealand), Andy Liza Minellas (returned to Jocland), 
Peter Halliday (sent to Switzerland) and Jim Redfern (returning to 
work in Philly and living in London?). We had a 40 strong squad 
for the season with 36 regular players and the season was marred 
with the career threatening injury to Pads legend, Peter Schott. 

So many players put in tremendous performances throughout the 
season that this year’s ‘Player of the Season’ will be contested by 
most of the squad. 

A pleasure to play for, alongside and captain, the Pads are certainly, 
more than just football.

Management: Glyn Vince – 2015/16

SCC NFL 2016 SEASON REPORT CARD
MVP: Jonathan Huang
Top Goal Scorer: Hamza Gharfane
Players’ Player of the Year: Chang Guo Guang
 
SCC was represented in the twelve team, Division 1, National 
Football League last season.
 
We started off the season in fiery form keeping within the top three 
positions throughout the season. The NFL team eventually finished 
up in fourth overall with 30 points, 10 wins, five losses and scored 
a total of 24 goals and 19 against us.
 
In the FA Cup the team managed to reach the quarter-finals after 
some swashbuckling displays.

SCC Strollers, EFL Cup Winners

SPORTS SECTION SOCCER
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Elected 12 August 2016

Convenor
Andrea Nicholas

Men’s Captain
Manmindar Singh

Ladies’ Captain
Eleanor Tan

Secretary
Brian Van Ginkel

Treasurer
Ben Chandler

Committee Members
Mageswari Velupillai
Bryden Yong
Genevieve Gay

Squash Committee 2016/17. From left: Mageswari Velupillai, Eleanor Tan, Brian Van Ginkel, Andrea Nicholas, Ben Chandler, Manmindar Singh. 
Not in photo: Bryden Yong, Genevieve Gay.

SQUASH

NATIONAL SQUASH LEAGUES
The leagues were played from February through June and 
culminated in the Challenge Cup where the top four teams in each 
league play-off for the ultimate winner.

In 2016, we won the Men’s B and C grades and the Ladies’ 
Division 1 titles, but could only finish third in the Men’s Premier 
competition. Challenge Cup winners  B, C and Ladies Div 1 and 
the A team lost narrowly to UCSC to come second. 

Sometimes we are a ‘victim’ of having too many good players and 
trying to give everyone some game time. But we are a sporting 
club and want not only to encourage sporting excellence, but 
also sporting participation. We fielded teams in all grades except 
Veteran’s 2, which meant a total of 10 teams, down from 11 in 
2015. This year we only had two A grade teams and combined 
the Veteran’s 1 and 2 teams. With only two courts, some league 
nights, where two and even three teams are playing, requires some 
skilful organising to ensure all matches get played.

JUNIORS
We continue to nurture our juniors both boys and girls from 13 up 
to 26 years. It is important to us as a section and a sport that we 
are able to bring in juniors. We ensure they are fully utilised during 
league, as well as committing to weekend training with Coach 
Allan Chang.

The winning Men’s B and C teams had a strong and enthusiastic 
core of juniors and the Ladies’ Division 1 was comprised totally of 
juniors.

Ladies Div 1 Champions with Zoher Motiwalla, Deputy President 

SQUASHSPORTS SECTION
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We sent four players up to the Penang Junior Open AJSS Platinum 
event in August with Coach Allan. Rutvik Rau was the most 
successful losing in the quarter-finals to the eventual winner and 
finishing sixth in the Boys U17 out of 64-player draw. 

Current Singapore Junior Rankings:

Boys U17 
1st – Rutvik Rau
2nd – Anders Ong
4th – Regan Tan
5th – Clement Hung

Boys U15
2nd – Ong Zheng Ting

Girls U19
2nd – Michelle Tay
4th – Bernyce Tay

Girls U15
1st – Nicole Tong

OUR COURTS
In December we closed the courts for two weeks for major repair 
and cleaning works. The floors were sanded down and lines 
repainted, the plaster walls patched where there were holes and 
cracks and then cleaned. Then in early January 2017 we installed 
new and improved LED lighting on both courts. Previously the 
lights, which had been unchanged since at least 2006, were 
fluorescent tubes, which only gave us an average of 300 lux. The 
WSF recommended average lux is 500, which we now achieve. 
The difference to our courts has been amazing and we take great 
pride in the state of the courts and wish all players would respect 
them by playing in squash shoes only.

SOCIAL EVENTS
We were part of the MCC multi-sports tour that took place in 2016. 
We played 11 matches and came out on top with a 6-5 win. It 
was a very enjoyable afternoon of squash followed by the dinner, 
which was well-supported by squash players. Thanks to Mahes 
for taking care of F&B and Nick for assisting with the organising. 

We played our annual friendlies against the Hollandse, American 
and British Clubs. This year we hosted the British and American 
Clubs and played away to the Hollandse Club. Matching players is 
always a delicate task and its one which Nick Cochrane does very 
well. Matches are always followed by very convivial dinners. This 
year we won against British Club, but lost against the Hollandse 
and American Clubs with the American Club score line being 
very close. Final results against Hollandse, we lost 5-11; against 
American Club, we lost 5-6; and against British Club, we won 9-7.

Cosmo league started in August and ended in late December. This 
year we had new captains Sarat Chandran and Patrick Meredith, 
taking over from Terry Scott and Tim Howard who both left 
Singapore during the year. Sarat and Paddy with the support of 
their squad did an excellent job and we finished second behind 
SICC.

CLUB & INTERSECTION EVENTS
The section participated in all the intersection events over the last 
year.
 • Intersection Darts Tournament – 1st 
 • Ladies’ Darts Tournament – 1st
 • Giles Roche Lawn Bowls Trophy – 4th
 • Netball
 • Intersection Quiz Night – we had two teams lined up prior 

to the cancellation of the event.
 • Cricket match vs Cricket Saturday X1 – we won. Thanks to 

Suresh Prabhu for organising this. 
 • Annual Pot Games vs The Tanglin Club – we had a 

convincing win against a strong Tanglin team.

AGM, FRIDAY 12 AUGUST 
A new Treasurer was elected – Ben Chandler, who replaced Ashley 
Nicholas. Genevieve Gay replaced Rahul Khare as a co-opted 
member. Ashley and Rahul stepped down due to increased work 
commitments. Convenor and both captains remain the same for 
another year.

The section finances remained steady, but we had seen a reduction 
in section membership over the year and it was mentioned that we 
are finding it harder to recruit new sports members. We need new 
sports members otherwise we are depending on the same handful 
of players who are not getting any younger. 

Terry Scott and Tim Howard who left Singapore in 2016Members of Champion B Grade team – Rutvik Rau, Regan Tan, Yap Kim Wee and 
(far left) Chew Kok Wye

SPORTS SECTION SQUASH
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The main item of business was to vote on increasing our monthly 
section fees from $5 to $7. We had not increased the fees since 
2006. This motion was passed. 

After the AGM, we held our End-of-League Dinner and for that we 
had almost a full house of 80 people. Mahes and the F&B staff 
did a fantastic job as usual and we were treated to a lovely three-
course meal. Our winning teams in this year’s National Squash 
Leagues were on hand to collect their medals and prize vouchers.

TOURS
In February a team headed to Kolkata for the annual Triangular 
Tournament involving teams from Calcutta Rackets Club and 
Madras Cricket Club. While advertised as a social event, the 
socialising was mostly off-court. On court – it’s very serious.

Our team comprised a number of A-graders as well as three 
juniors, but we still got pipped at the post in both our matches. We 
stayed at the Tollygunge Club, which was a lovely place to stay, 
especially if you are a golfer.

In August we travelled up to Kuala Lumpur to play the Royal 
Selangor Club in our Interport for the Chiam Tow San trophy. As 
we were not able to bring up a very strong team, we got soundly 
beaten, 7-0. RSC were very good hosts and we had a lovely dinner 
there.

The A Graders came out to play at Anders Yeo’s farewellMCC Match – Bill & Eleanor Tan

At the 2016 Squash 
Triangular hosted by 
Calcutta Racket Club

CLUB CHAMPIONSHIPS 
Held in November over two weekends and even though we were 
missing some of our top players, there were some very entertaining 
matches in the earlier rounds, especially in the Men’s. The Men’s 
final was between Chua Man Chin and Ben Sim both juniors, with 
Man Chin winning 3-0 and the Ladies’ match was between Andrea 
Nicholas and junior, Nicole Tong. Andrea won eventually in a tough 
4-set match. Men’s Plate winners were Ashish Jain and Ladies’, 
Genevieve Gay. Thanks to Robbie Lyons and Brian Van Ginkel for 
organising.

NATIONAL HONOURS
SCC is represented in the National team and training squads by 
the following senior and junior players: Vivian Rhamanan, Ben Sim, 
Anders Ong, Clement Hung, Regan Tan, Chua Man Tong, Chua 
Man Chin, Tim Leong, Mao Shi Hui, Sherilyn Yang and Bernyce 
Tay. 

The Squash Committee would like to thank the Sports Department 
especially Ken Ang, the Games Control Board and the General 
Committee who have supported us through the last 12 months.

Andrea Nicholas
Squash Convenor
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Tennis clinic by WTA’s (and SCC member) Melissa Pine and company

TENNIS

Elected 28 November 2016

Convenor
Wilfred Lim

Men’s Captain
Soenke Langhoff

Ladies’ Captain
Nilma Missir-Boissac

Secretary
Sophie Mougel

Treasurer
Vishal Vijay

Committee Members
Gilbert Ng

JSM Representative
Martin Goerojo

Tennis Committee 2016/2017.  From left: Martin Goerojo, Soenke Langhoff, Sophie Mougel, Gilbert Ng, Wilfred Lim, Nilma Missir-Boissac, Vishal Vijay

The Tennis Section had a good 2016, the highlight of which 
was the successful conversion and installation of the Astro turf 
(synthetic grass) tennis courts. The new courts have enabled more 
playing hours on the court, faster return to playability even after a 
downpour and a better playing experience. We are thankful for the 
Club’s support and efforts and my predecessor, Kevin Cumbers for 
making this happen. 

In addition to that, the multi-purpose courts, fitted with better 
lighting, allows for additional courts for more tennis when available. 

TENNIS SECTION STATS AT A GLANCE
 • 503 section members
 • 41 new section members in 2016
 • 2 major interclub titles won in 2016

FRIENDLY MATCHES & INTERNATIONAL MISSIONS
Tennis is a great social sport and what better way to enjoy it more 
than to play with different players, either in Singapore or overseas. 
We had the pleasure of hosting Keppel Club in September for a 
busy Friday evening of tennis and not to forget, the club-wide visit 
by the Melbourne Cricket Club earlier in the year. 

Also, the section organised tours to Hong Kong in May and 
Bangkok in November. We would like to thank the Hong Kong 
Cricket Club, Kowloon Sports Club, Royal Bangkok Sports Club 
and British Club (Bangkok) for their hospitality – giving us the 
opportunities for more social and competitive tennis. The off-court 
fellowship was also amazing, with promises made to take us on 
our home grounds which we are looking forward to! 

SPORTS SECTION TENNIS
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SCC visits the Kowloon Sports Club

SCC Fun Day in 2016

JUNIOR ACTIVITIES 
SCC has a tennis academy run by resident coach Lukas Pluta of 
Coaching Developments which offers group tennis sessions on 
weekends for young juniors, up to 12 years old. We also welcomed 
more Junior Sports Members (JSM) to the Club. All of them 
represent their respective schools in competitions and also take 
part in National and international tournaments – we want to make 
the SCC a place where they can further hone their skills through 
match play sessions and interacting with other players at the Club 
who also played tennis at a high level. 

COMPETITIONS 
The interclub singles and doubles organised by the Singapore 
Tennis Association are a regular fixture for us. Last year, the 
Ladies’ teams did very well, capturing the team singles title both 
in the A and B categories. The Ladies’ B team consisted mainly 
of our JSM. Also, the Men’s A were semi-finalists in September’s 
inter-club doubles league. The rest of the teams continue to fight 
on in their respective divisions. I would like to take this opportunity 
to thank all players for the commitment, passion and efforts on 
and off court. 

COACHING & TENNIS FITNESS ACTIVITIES 
Apart from private coaching sessions, Coach Lukas has also 
introduced cardio tennis sessions, a new activity in the tennis 
world, where participants are put through rigorous fitness drills 
interspersed with tennis drills. This takes place three times a week, 
including Monday evenings. Guests are welcomed to this session 
and this has attracted some to take up membership at SCC. 

SCC has always been active in the Singapore tennis scene – 
playing host to regional tournaments in the 1980s. Over the years, 
things have evolved, however, we hope members will continue to 
have the same passion for the sport and build the camaraderie at 
the Club. 

Wilfred Lim
Tennis Convenor
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SCC FUN DAY
@ THE PADANG
30 Jan & 31 Jul 2016

SPORTS EVENTS
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22nd SCC INTERNATIONAL 
HOCKEY SIXES
5 & 6 Mar 2016

SPORTS EVENTS
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MELBOURNE 
CRICKET CLUB 
MULTI-SPORTS 
VISIT
6 to 10 Apr 2016

SPORTS EVENTS
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9TH SCC 
SPORTS 
AWARDS
15 Apr 2016

SPORTS EVENTS



82 SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

8TH SCC 
INTERNATIONAL 
SOCCER 
SIXES
4&5 Jun 2016

SPORTS EVENTS
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PADANG SHIELD 
GAMES
9 Jul 2016

SPORTS EVENTS
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COMMUNITY
CRICKET 
GAME:
SCC XI VS 
SHANGHAI 
CHONG KEE 
FURNITURE & 
CONSTRUCTION 
PTE LTD 
(Foreign workers on-site 
around the Civic District)
7 August 2016

SPORTS EVENTS
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ANNUAL GOLF 
TOURNAMENT
9 Sep 2016

SPORTS EVENTS
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39TH ANNUAL 
POT GAMES
1 Oct 2016

SPORTS EVENTS
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SPORTS EVENTS

69TH SCC 
INTERNATIONAL 
RUGBY 
SEVENS
4 to 6 Nov 2016
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BRIAN LARA 
VISITS SCC
12 & 13 Nov 2016

SPORTS EVENTS
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STATEMENT BY THE GENERAL COMMITTEE TO THE MEMBERS OF 
 
SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB 
 
 
 

1 
 
 

 

In accordance with a resolution of the General Committee and in the opinion of the General Committee, 

the financial statements set out on pages FS5 to FS32 are drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of 

the financial position of the Club as at December 31, 2016, and the financial performance, changes in 

funds and cash flows of the Club for the financial year then ended, and at the date of this statement, there 

are reasonable grounds to believe that the Club will be able to pay its debts when they fall due. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 
 
…………………………………………………………………… 
MOHANDAS JAMNADAS BHOJWANI 
President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
…………………………………………………………………… 
HAMISH ALEXANDER CHRISTIE 
Finance Member 
 
 
 
March 15, 2017 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF 
 
SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB 
 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Singapore Cricket Club (the “Club”) which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2016, and the statement of profit or loss 
and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in funds and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies, 
as set out on pages FS5 to FS32. 
 
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements are properly drawn up in accordance with the 
provisions of the Societies Act (the “Act”) and Financial Reporting Standards in Singapore (“FRSs”) so as to 
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Club as at December 31, 2016 and of the financial 
performance, changes in funds and cash flows of the Club for the year ended on that date. 
 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conduct our audit in accordance with Singapore Standards on Auditing (“SSAs”). Our responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Club in accordance with the Accounting and 
Corporate Regulatory Authority (“ACRA”) Code of Professional Conduct and Ethics for Public Accountants 
and Accounting Entities (“ACRA Code”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the financial statements in Singapore, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in 
accordance with these requirements and the ACRA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
 
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
 
The General Committee is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
Annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Other than 
the Statement by the General Committee, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, the 
other sections included in the Annual report are expected to be made available to us after that date. 
 
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is 
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated.  
 
If, based on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of 
this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is material misstatement of this other information, we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

Responsibilities of General Committee for the Financial Statements

The General Committee is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair 
view in accordance with the provisions of the Act and FRSs, and for devising and maintaining a system of 
internal accounting controls sufficient to provide a reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded 
against loss from unauthorised use or disposition; and transactions are properly authorised and that they 
are recorded as necessary to permit the preparation of true and fair financial statements and to maintain 
accountability of assets.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Committee is responsible for assessing the Club’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless the General Committee either intends to liquidate the Club or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The General Committee’s responsibilities include overseeing the Club’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with SSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Club’s internal control.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the General Committee.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the General Committee’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related 
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Club’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Club to cease 
to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the General Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In our opinion, the accounting and other records required by the Regulations enacted under the Societies 
Act to be kept by the Club have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Regulations.

Public Accountants and
Chartered Accountants
Singapore

March 15, 2017
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
December 31, 2016 
 
 
 Note 2016 2015 
  $ $ 
   (restated) 
ASSETS    
    
Current assets    
Cash and bank balances 5 20,114,358  

 
17,286,803  

Members’ accounts 6 1,977,211 
 

1,921,067  
Other receivables 7 577,604  2,312,184 
Inventories 8 433,872  

 
470,230  

Total current assets  23,103,045 
 

21,990,284 
    
Non-current asset    
Property, plant and equipment 9 22,240,210 

 
23,962,790  

    
Total assets  45,343,255 45,953,074 
    
    
LIABILITIES    
    
Current liabilities    
Trade and other payables 10 4,363,434 

 
5,456,603 

Members’ deposits 11 1,268,899  
 

1,256,940  
Income tax payable  14,437  

 
16,715  

Deferred tax liability 12 20,070  
 

11,461  
Total current liabilities  5,666,840 

 
6,741,719  

    
Funds    
Accumulated fund 13 27,334,368 39,211,355 
Sinking fund 14 12,342,047 - 
Total funds  39,676,415 39,211,355 
    
Total liabilities and fund  45,343,255 45,953,074 
 
 
See accompanying notes to financial statements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
………………………………………………………………                           ……………………………………………………………… 
MOHANDAS JAMNADAS BHOJWANI       HAMISH ALEXANDER CHRISTIE 
President                                                                       Finance Member 
 
 
 
March 15, 2017 
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Year ended December 31, 2016

Note 2016 2015
$ $

(restated)
Operating revenue
Subscriptions fees 5,721,608 5,819,733 
Food and beverage 15 8,966,649 8,615,360 
Social events 16 60,017 95,875 
Sports and recreation 17 2,252,063 2,568,571
Fruit machines 124,350 175,840 
Carpark 783,612 683,569 
Other income 18 821,060 960,945
Total operating revenue 18,729,359 18,919,893

Less: Operating expenditure
Food and beverage
- Cost of sales 15 (3,877,983) (3,800,486)
- Staff costs and other operating costs 15 (5,423,009) (5,597,125)
Social events 16 (286,350) (384,882)
Sports and recreation 17 (3,161,829) (3,425,631)
Management and other staff costs 19 (2,922,226) (2,904,272)
Depreciation 9 (2,036,640) (2,066,077)
Property maintenance 20 (902,287) (1,066,023)
Property tax expense 21 (245,600) (166,858)
Office and administration 22 (321,134) (362,782)
General expenses 23 (664,535) (1,161,734)
Total operating expenditure (19,841,593) (20,935,870)

Operating deficit (1,112,234) (2,015,977)

Add: Non-operating income

Membership transfer fees 843,000 923,000 
Conversion fees 529,029 552,790 
Interest from deposits 225,484 190,446 

1,597,513 1,666,236 

Profit (Deficit) for the year before income tax 485,279 (349,741)
Less: Income tax expense 24 (20,219) (2,377)
Profit (Deficit) for the year representing

total comprehensive income (loss) for the year 465,060 (352,118)

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

7

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS
Year ended December 31, 2016

Accumulated Sinking
fund fund Total

$ $ $

Balance at January 1, 2015 39,563,473 - 39,563,473 

Deficit for the year, representing
total comprehensive loss for the year (117,506) - (117,506)

Effect of prior year adjustments (Note 27) (234,612) - (234,612)

Deficit for the year, representing
total comprehensive loss for the year (restated) (352,118) - (352,118)

Balance at December 31, 2015 (restated) 39,211,355 - 39,211,355

Balance at January 1, 2016 39,445,967 - 39,445,967

Effect of prior year adjustments (Note 27) (234,612) - (234,612)

Balance at January 1, 2016 (restated) 39,211,355 - 39,211,355

Transfer from Accumulated fund to Sinking fund (12,342,047) 12,342,047 -

Profit for the year, representing
total comprehensive income for the year 465,060 - 465,060

Balance at December 31, 2016 27,334,368 12,342,047 39,676,415
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Year ended December 31, 2016

2016 2015
$ $

(restated)
Operating activities

Operating deficit (1,112,234) (2,015,977)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,036,640 2,066,077
Allowance for doubtful debts 2,488 15,542
Write off of property, plant and equipment 21,181 254,103

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 948,075 319,745

Members’ accounts (58,632) (180,969)
Inventories 36,358 27,271
Other receivables 1,785,222 (1,824,099)
Trade and other payables (1,093,169) 999,115

Cash generated from (used in) operations 1,617,854 (658,937)

Income tax paid (13,888) (11,119)
Net cash from (used in) operating activities 1,603,966 (670,056)

Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (365,741) (1,977,729)
Restricted cash (4,422,460) (73,063)
Interest received 174,842 168,399 

Net cash used in investing activities (4,613,359) (1,882,393)

Financing activities
Members’ deposits received 11,959 4,962 
Membership transfer fees 843,000 923,000 
Conversion fees 529,029 552,790 
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 30,500 7,375 

Net cash from financing activities 1,414,488 1,488,127 

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,594,905) (1,064,322)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 11,807,448 12,871,770 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 10,212,543 11,807,448 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following:

Cash and bank balances (Note 5) 20,114,358 17,286,803 
Less: Fixed deposits with maturities exceeding three months

classified as restricted cash (9,901,815) (5,479,355)
Cash and cash equivalents 10,212,543 11,807,448 
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FRS 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

In November 2014, FRS 115 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model for entities 
to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. FRS 115 will supersede the 
current revenue recognition guidance including FRS 18 Revenue, FRS 11 Construction Contracts and 
the related interpretations when it becomes effective. Further clarifications to FRS 115 were also 
issued in June 2016.

The core principle of FRS 115 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of 
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the 
entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard 
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

(a) Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

(b) Step 2: Identify the separate performance obligations in the contract.

(c) Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

(d) Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.

(e) Step 5: Recognise the revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies each performance obligation.

Under FRS 115, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, 
i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is 
transferred to the customer. More prescriptive guidance has been added in FRS 115 to deal with 
specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by FRS 115.

The Club is still in process of assessing the full impact of the application of FRS 115 on its financial 
statements and it is not practical to provide a reasonable financial estimate of the effect until it
completes the detailed review. 

FRS 116 Leases

FRS 116 was issued in June 2016 and will supersede FRS 17 Leases and its associated interpretative 
guidance.

The Standard provides a comprehensive model for the identification of lease arrangements and their 
treatment in the financial statements of both lessees and lessors. The identification of leases, 
distinguishing between leases and service contracts, are determined on the basis of whether there is 
an identified asset controlled by the customer.

Significant changes to lessee accounting are introduced, with the distinction between operating and 
finance leases removed and assets and liabilities recognised in respect of all leases (subject to 
limited exceptions for short-term leases and leases of low value assets). The Standard maintains 
substantially the lessor accounting approach under the predecessor FRS 17. 

The Club may have to recognise right-of-use assets and a corresponding liability from its operating 
lease arrangements, the commitments of which are disclosed in Note 25.
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Amendments to FRS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative

The amendments required an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements 
to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from 
cash flows and non-cash changes.

The Club does not anticipate the application of these amendments will have a material impact on its
financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Club’s 
statement of financial position when the Club becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instrument.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument 
and of allocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is 
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments through the expected life 
of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period. Income and expense is 
recognised on an effective interest rate basis for debt instruments other than those financial 
instruments “at fair value through profit or loss”.

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognised and de-recognised on a trade date where the purchase or sale of 
an investment is under a contract whose terms require delivery of the investment within the 
timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus 
transaction costs except for those financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss which 
are initially measured at fair value.
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Loans and receivables

Members’ account and other receivables which have fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market are classified as “loans and receivables”. Loans and receivables are 
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method less impairment. Interest is 
recognised by applying the effective interest method, except for short-term receivables when the 
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair value through profit or loss, are assessed for indicators of 
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is 
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition 
of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

• significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

• default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

• it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation

For certain categories of financial assets, such as members’ account receivables and other 
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for 
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables 
could include the Club’s past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of 
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 30 days, as well as observable 
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference 
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, 
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the financial asset is 
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of members’ 
account and other receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an 
allowance account. When a member’s account or other receivable is uncollectible, it is written off 
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited 
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are 
recognised in profit or loss.
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Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at bank and deposits with financial 
institutions that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant 
risk of changes in value.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Club derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 
asset expire, or it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Club neither transfers nor retains substantially all the 
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Club recognises 
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the 
Club retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the 
Club continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the 
proceeds received.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Club becomes a party to the contractual agreements of 
the instrument.

The Club’s financial liabilities include members’ deposits and trade and other payables.

Trade and other payables, which represent the fair value of consideration for goods and services to 
be paid in the future, whether or not billed to the Club, are recognised initially at their fair value, net 
of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest 
method, except for short-term payables, where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Club derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Club’s obligations are 
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

INVENTORIES - Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is 
calculated using the weighted average cost basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated 
selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and 
distribution.
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LEASES - Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer 
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as 
operating leases.

The Club as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the 
term of the relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern 
in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under 
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are 
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental 
expense on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of 
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

The Club as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which 
use benefit derived from the leased asset is diminished. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating 
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 
recognised as an expense over the lease term on same basis as the lease income.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import 
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to 
its working condition and location for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted 
in arriving at the purchase price.

Depreciation is computed utilising the straight-line method to write-off the cost of these assets over 
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land - Clubhouse 30 years
Leasehold office properties 27 to 36 years
Clubhouse Over the period of the lease (Until 2026)
Kitchen, restaurant and bar equipment 1 to 5 years
Clubhouse renovations 5 years
Air-conditioning systems 5 years
Sports and ground equipment 5 years
Furniture and fittings 5 years
Fruit machines and accessories 4 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Other office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicle 10 years
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The cost of leasehold office properties include a land component which has a useful life of 999 years 
and is treated as a freehold land and not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end 
to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of 
economic benefits from fixed assets. The effect of any changes in estimate is accounted for on a 
prospective basis.

Construction-in-progress is stated at cost. The accumulated costs will be reclassified to the 
appropriate property, plant and equipment account when the construction is substantially 
completed. Depreciation of the asset commences when the asset is ready for its intended use.

For acquisitions and disposals during the financial year, depreciation is provided from the month of 
acquisition to the month before disposal respectively. Fully depreciated assets still in use are 
retained in the financial statements. An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon 
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference 
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amounts of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE ASSETS - At the end of each reporting period, the Club reviews the 
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those 
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of 
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is 
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Club estimates the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value 
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying 
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss 
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset 
(cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the 
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

SINKING FUND - The Club has created a sinking fund which shall only be used for the lease renewal 
for the Club in 2026 and for capital expenditure specifically authorised by the general body of 
members. An initial sum of $10.8 million from retained earnings and subsequent payments received 
as transfer fees and conversion fees are paid to the sinking fund. The sinking fund is placed with 
fixed deposit and earns interest income on the fixed deposit placement. 
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PROVISIONS - Provisions are recognised when the Club has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Club will be required to settle the 
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the 
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties 
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle 
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be 
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that 
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

REVENUE RECOGNITION - Revenue includes subscription fees, food and beverage revenue, sports 
and recreation, revenue from fruit machines and other revenue.

Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to 
the members and the amount of revenue and the costs of the transaction can be measured reliably.  
Revenue excludes goods and services taxes and is arrived at after deduction of trade discounts. No 
revenue is recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration 
due, associated costs or the possible returns of subscription fees.

The basis of recognition of revenue is as follows:

(i) Subscription fees

Subscription fees are billed one month in advance and recognised as revenue in the following 
month.

(ii) Food and beverage

Food and beverage are recognised as revenue when the food and beverage are consumed or 
services performed.

(iii) Sports and recreation 

Sports and recreation are recognised as revenue when events are organised or services are 
rendered. 

(iv) Member transfer fees

Member transfer fees are recognised as revenue in the year in which the transfer of 
membership is affected upon approval of the member by the General Committee. 
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Club’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, the General
Committee is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

(a) Critical judgements in applying the Club’s accounting policies

There are no critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (see below), that the
General Committee has made in the process of applying the Club's accounting policies.

(b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The General Committee estimates the useful lives of these property, plant and
equipment to be within 1 to 36 years. The carrying amount of the Club’s property, plant and
equipment at December 31, 2016 was $22,240,210 (2015 : $23,962,790). Changes in the
expected level of usage could impact the economic useful lives and the residual values of
these assets and therefore future depreciation charges could be revised.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
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(b) Financial risk management policies and objectives

The Club’s overall financial risk management programme seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects of the financial performance of the Club.

There has been no significant change to the manner in which it manages and measures the
risk.

(i) Interest rate risk management

The Club’s exposure to changes in interest risk relates primarily to the short-term fixed
deposits with financial institutions. The interest rates for fixed deposits are disclosed in
Note 5 to the financial statements.

No sensitivity analysis is prepared as the Club does not expect any material effect on the
Club’s profit or loss arising from the effects of reasonably possible changes to interest
rates on fixed deposits with financial institutions at the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Credit risk management

The Club’s principal financial assets are cash and bank balances, members’ accounts and
other receivables.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements represents
the Club’s maximum exposure to credit risk.

Further details of credit risks on members’ accounts are disclosed in Note 6.

Cash and fixed deposits are placed with creditworthy banks and financial institutions
which are regulated.

(iii) Liquidity risk management

The Club maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents and internally generated cash
flows to finance its activities.

The Club ensures that there are adequate funds to meet all its obligations in a timely and
cost-effective manner.

(iv) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, amount due from members and
other current receivables and payables, provisions and other liabilities approximate their
respective fair values due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial
instruments.
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(c) Capital risk management policies and objectives

The Club reviews its capital structure at least annually to ensure that the Club will be able to
continue as a going concern. The capital structure of the Club comprises only of accumulated
fund. The Club’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2015.

5 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
2016 2015

$ $

Cash at bank 4,365,098 3,991,203 
Fixed deposits 15,495,210 12,860,942 
Cash on hand 254,050 434,658 

20,114,358 17,286,803 

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Club and short-term bank deposits with an 
original maturity of 1 year or less. The carrying amounts of these assets approximate their fair 
values.

Fixed deposits bear effective interest rate range from 0.05% to 1.9% (2015 : range from 0.05% 
to 1.55%) per annum and for a tenure of approximately 30 to 365 days (2015 : 30 to 365 days).

The fixed deposits include $12,342,047 (2015 : Nil) which is being held for the sinking fund (Note 
14).

6 MEMBERS’ ACCOUNTS
2016 2015

$ $

Members’ accounts 1,988,400 1,951,501 
Allowance for doubtful debts (11,189) (30,434)

1,977,211 1,921,067 

The average credit period is 30 days (2015 : 30 days).

The table below is an analysis of members’ accounts during the year:

2016 2015
$ $

Not past due and not impaired 1,739,680 1,701,764 
Past due but not impaired (i) 194,223 178,654 
Impaired receivables - collectively assessed (ii) 54,497 71,083 
Less: Allowance for impairment (11,189) (30,434)

1,977,211 1,921,067 
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(i) Aging of members' accounts that are past due but not impaired:

2016 2015
$ $

< 3 months 194,223 178,654 

(ii) These amounts are stated before any deduction for impairment losses.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts:
2016 2015

$ $

Balance at beginning of the year 30,434 14,892 
Utilised in current year (21,733) -
Increase in allowance recognised in profit or loss 2,488 15,542 
Balance at end of the year 11,189 30,434 

 
7 OTHER RECEIVABLES

2016 2015
$ $

Advertising and sponsorship receivables 330,123 634,337 
Government receivables - 1,356,420 
Prepayments 65,229 107,415 
Deposits 50,191 23,702 
Interest receivable 118,059 67,418 
Other 14,002 122,892

577,604 2,312,184

Advertising and sponsorship receivables were not past due and not impaired and are with 
creditworthy counterparties.

 
8 INVENTORIES

2016 2015
$ $

Kitchen stock 85,104 125,202 
Bar stocks 219,980 217,613 
Sports goods and accessories 128,788 127,415 

433,872 470,230 
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(a) The cost of the leasehold office properties relates to the 2 units at #09-06 and #09-07
(2015 : 2 units at #09-06 and #09-07) at The Adelphi Office Complex and has been allocated 
to the cost of land and buildings at $6.1 million and $1.4 million (2015 : $6.1 million and 
$1.4 million) respectively. As disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements, the cost of the 
land is treated as freehold land and not depreciated.

10 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2016 2015

$ $

Trade payables 1,448,588 2,233,564 
Accrued operating expenses 2,100,575 2,574,449 
Advanced billings for subscriptions fee 610,408 594,317 
Other payables 203,863 54,273 

4,363,434 5,456,603 

 
11 MEMBERS’ DEPOSITS

These represent non-interest bearing deposits received from members. These deposits are
refundable upon sale of membership or resignation.

12 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

This represents timing differences in respect of interest receivable.

The movement for the year in the deferred tax liability was as follows:
2016 2015

$ $

At beginning of the year 11,461 7,713 
Charge to profit or loss (Note 24)              8,609 3,748 
At end of the year 20,070 11,461 

 
13 ACCUMULATED FUND

In accordance with Club Rule 62(b), in the event of the Club being dissolved, all debts and liabilities
shall be fully discharged and the remaining funds divided equally among the Ordinary and
Life Members except those portions of such remaining funds which are monies earned or identified
as income or profit from the use of fruit machines and/or from any other approved private lottery as
defined under the Private Lotteries Act, Chapter 250, 1985 Ed, which shall be donated to approved
charities in Singapore.

Based on available records, it has been ascertained that as at December 31, 2016, the cumulative
surplus derived from the operation of fruit machines and other approved private lotteries is
$15.878 million (2015 : $15.754 million) before taking into account cumulative capital expenditure
of $1.559 million (2015 : $1.509 million) incurred in generating this surplus, and the allocation of
the Club’s general overheads.
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14 SINKING FUND

At the Annual General Meeting of the members of the Club held on April 28, 2016, the following
resolutions were passed by the members:

(a) To create a sinking fund which shall only be used for the lease renewal for the Club and for
capital expenditure specifically authorised by the general body of members,

(b) To pay into the sinking fund all payments received as transfer or conversion fees, and

(c) To immediately transfer the sum of $10,800,000 into such sinking fund.

In compliance with the above resolutions, a Sinking Fund was established in the Club’s accounting
records and the following amounts were credited to the Fund.

2016 2015
$ $

At beginning of the year - -
Transfer, comprising of:
- Initial transfer from Accumulated Fund 10,800,000 -
- Membership transfer and conversion fees received 1,372,029 -
- Interest received on fixed deposits attributed to the sinking fund      170,018 -

At end of the year 12,342,047 -

15 FOOD AND BEVERAGE
2016 2015

$ $
(restated)

Sales      8,966,649 8,615,360 
Cost of sales (3,877,983) (3,800,486)
Gross profit 5,088,666 4,814,874 

Less:
Staff costs
- Salaries, wages, allowances and CPF contributions 4,295,783 4,404,696 
- Other staff costs         258,872 264,784 
- Government grants - Wage Credit and Special Employment

Credit Scheme, offset against staff costs (146,147) (113,433)

4,408,508 4,556,047 
Utilities, maintenance and expenses       1,014,501 1,041,078 
Depreciation of kitchen, restaurant and bar equipment 59,736 58,227
Operating deficit for the year (394,079) (840,478)

 

SINGAPORE CRICKET CLUB

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2016

27

16 SOCIAL EVENTS
2016 2015

$ $

Ticket sales/Participation Fees       60,017 95,875 
Less:

Staff costs
- Salaries, wages, allowances and CPF contributions 81,708 81,864 
- Other staff costs        4,916 425
- Government grants - Wage Credit and Special Employment

Credit Scheme, offset against staff costs (4,076) (2,791)

82,548 79,498 
Operating expenses 203,802 305,384 
Operating deficit for the year (226,333) (289,007)

17 SPORTS AND RECREATION
2016 2015

$ $
(restated)

Tournament income 507,163 673,722
Sports sections income 716,935 671,179
Sports membership fees 360,500 342,000 
Booking fees 16,032 11,564 
Rental of facilities and other income 651,433 870,106 
Total income 2,252,063 2,568,571

Less:
Tournament expenditure 578,073 895,887 
Sports sections expenditure 819,259 718,887 
Games expenditure 419,188 415,965 
Rental of facility - Dempsey field 203,827 204,528 
Staff costs
- Salaries, wages, allowances and CPF contributions 817,916 848,800 
- Other staff costs 43,339 39,965 
- Government grants - Wage Credit and Special

Employment Credit Scheme, offset against staff costs (33,720) (33,262)

827,535 855,503 
Utilities, maintenance and expenses 313,947 334,861 
Depreciation of sports and ground equipment 125,896 183,980
Operating deficit for the year (1,035,662) (1,041,040)
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20 PROPERTY MAINTENANCE
2016 2015

$ $

Facilities maintenance and equipment rental 29,450 31,853 
Repairs and replacements 264,060 372,054 
Utilities and related expenses 431,099 492,723 
Security expenses 140,534 132,000 
Maintenance fees and sinking fund 37,144 37,393 

902,287 1,066,023 

 
21 PROPERTY TAX EXPENSE

2016 2015
$ $

The Clubhouse and Padang Field at Connaught Drive 215,600 211,783 
Office Unit #09-07 at The Adelphi Office Complex 17,500 18,550 
Office Unit #09-06 at The Adelphi Office Complex 12,500 13,225 

245,600 243,558 
Less: Property Tax Reduction - (76,700)

245,600 166,858 

In 2015, the Inland Revenue Authority of Singapore reviewed the Club’s appeal against the annual 
value of leasehold land of the Clubhouse and Padang Field at Connaught Drive and revised the 
assessments for 2014 and 2015, resulting in a reduction in Property Tax of $76,700.

 
22 OFFICE AND ADMINISTRATION

2016 2015
$ $

(restated)

Telephone and postage 43,631 49,307 
Printing and stationery 38,554 38,832 
Computer expenses and lease rental of office equipment 173,745 133,891 
Allowance for doubtful debts 2,488 15,542
Professional fees 62,716 125,210

321,134 362,782
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18 OTHER INCOME 
  2016 2015 
  $ $ 
   (restated) 
    
 SCC Night Race Fiesta Event 656,226  705,443  
 Office rental income 42,000  33,250  
 Others 122,834  222,252  
  821,060 960,945  
 
 
 The majority portion of unit #09-06 is used for the Club’s daily operations and only a small portion 

of the unit is rented out to external tenant from January 2016 to December 2016. 
 
  
19 MANAGEMENT AND OTHER STAFF COSTS 
  2016 2015 
  $ $ 
    
 Salaries, wages, allowances and CPF contributions 2,889,157  2,850,914  
 Other staff costs 168,182  164,006  
 Government grants - Wage Credit and Special Employment   
 Credit Scheme, offset against staff costs (135,113)  (110,648) 
  2,922,226  2,904,272  
    
    
 Total staff costs included in Notes 15, 16, 17 and 19 comprise:   
  2016 2015 
  $ $ 
    
 Salaries, wages, allowances and CPF contributions 8,084,564  8,186,274  
 Other staff costs 475,309  469,180  
 Government grants - Wage Credit and Special Employment   
 Credit Scheme, offset against staff costs (319,056)  (260,134) 
  8,240,817  8,395,320  
 
 
 The number of employees as at December 31, 2016 of 167 (2015 : 161) includes full time staff 

whose costs of $60,063 (2015 : $72,896) were included under the fruit machine expenses. 
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23 GENERAL EXPENSES
2016 2015

$ $
(restated)

Audit fees 23,004 22,000 
Annual report 24,000 24,000 
Insurance 82,471 92,663 
Newspaper and periodicals 13,597 20,921 
Padang magazine publication 32,285 39,687 
Bank charges 68,375 71,976 
Meeting and election nights 26,635 128,203 
SCC night race fiesta event costs 294,470 361,261 
Minor items of capital expenditure expensed 49,888 44,465 
Write off of property, plant and equipment 21,181 254,103 
Other expenses 28,629 102,455 

664,535 1,161,734 

  

24 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
2016 2015

$ $

Current taxation 14,437 16,715 
Overprovision in prior year (2,827) (18,086)
Deferred tax (Note 12) 8,609 3,748 

20,219 2,377 

Domestic income tax is calculated at 17% (2015 : 17%) of the estimated assessable income for the 
year.

The total charge for the year can be reconciled to the accounting deficit as follows:

2016 2015
$ $

(restated)

Surplus (Deficit) for the year before income tax 485,279 (349,741)

Tax expense (benefit) at income tax rate 82,497 (59,456)
(Non-taxable items) Non-deductible items (85,376) 62,354
Exempt income 25,925 17,565 
Overprovision in prior year (2,827) (18,086)

20,219 2,377 
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The Club is exempted from income tax in accordance with Section 11(1) of the Income Tax Act 
Chapter 134 as more than 50% of the Club’s gross takings are from its voting members. The income 
tax expense in 2016 and 2015 relate to income tax payable on income received by the Club which is 
not related to the operating activities of the Club.

25 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
2016 2015

$ $
Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised

as an expense during the year 232,980 231,708 

At the end of the reporting period, the Club was committed to making the following lease rental 
payments as follows:

2016 2015
$ $

Within one year 164,804 232,980 
In the second to fifth years inclusive 84,305 249,109 

249,109 482,089 

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for the Dempsey Field and Office Equipment 
and are negotiated for an average term of 3 to 5 years (2015 : 3 to 5 years).

26 RECLASSIFICATIONS AND COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain reclassifications have been made to the prior year’s financial statements to correct the 
classification of expenses and reflect changes in accounting estimates.

As a result, certain items have been amended on the face of the statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income. 

These items were reclassified as follows: 
After

Previously Restatement reclassification
reported Reclassification December 31, and restatement

December 31, December 31, 2015 December 31,
2015 2015 (Note 27) 2015

$ $ $ $

Operating revenue
Sports and recreation 2,590,723 (22,152) - 2,568,571
Other income 874,588 86,357 - 960,945

Operating expenditure
Office and administration (313,581) (49,201) - (362,782)
General expenses (941,874) (15,004) (204,856) (1,161,734)

Total 2,209,856 - (204,856) 2,005,000
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After
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Sports and recreation 2,590,723 (22,152) - 2,568,571
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27 PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENTS

For the financial year ended December 31, 2015, certain correcting prior year adjustments relating 
to the Club have been recorded in the statement of financial position, statement of profit or loss and 
other comprehensive income and statement of changes in funds.

Management has performed a review of the estimated useful lives and residual values of plant and 
equipment to ensure that these are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits.
Adjustments have also been made to remove from the carrying value of plant and equipment certain 
items which had been replaced in the Clubhouse renovation works that were completed in 2015. 
The effects of these adjustments have been accounted for on a retrospective basis from the year 
2015.

After
Previously Reclassification reclassification
reported December 31, Restatement and restatement

December 31, 2015 December 31, December 31,
2015 (Note 26) 2015 2015

$ $ $ $
Statement of
financial position
Property, plant and equipment 24,197,402 - (234,612) 23,962,790
Accumulated fund 39,445,967 - (234,612) 39,211,355

Operating expenditure
Depreciation (2,036,321) - (29,756) (2,066,077)
General expenses (941,874) (15,004) (204,856) (1,161,734)
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AUSTRALIA

Adelaide

The Adelaide Club
165 North Terrace, Adelaide, South 
Australia 5000, Australia

Naval, Military and Air Force Club of 
South Australia
111 Hutt Street, Adelaide, South Australia 
5000, Australia

Brisbane

Queensland Cricketers’ Club
Ground Floor Gabba Towers, 411 Vulture 
Street, East Brisbane Qld 4169, Australia

Tattersall’s Club Brisbane
215 Queen Street Brisbane Q 4001, 
Australia

United Service Club Queensland
183 Wickham Terrace Brisbane 
Queensland 4000, Australia

Melbourne

Athenaeum Club
87 Collins Street Melbourne Victoria 3000, 
Australia

Kooyong Lawn Tennis Club Inc.
489 Glenferrie Road, Kooyong Victoria 
3144, Australia

Melbourne Club
36 Collins Street Melbourne VIC 3000, 
Australia

Melbourne Cricket Club
Melbourne Cricket Ground, 2 Brunton 
Avenue, East Melbourne, Victoria 3002, 
Australia

Melbourne Savage Club
12 Bank Place, Melbourne, Victoria 3000, 
Australia

Royal South Yarra Lawn Tennis Club
310 Williams Road North, Toorak Victoria 
3142, Australia

Sydney

City Tattersalls’ Club
194-204 Pitt Street Sydney NSW 2000, 
Australia

Cricketers’ Club of New South Wales
31 Killarney Drive Killarney Heights NSW 
2087, Australia

Royal Automobile Club of Australia
89 Macquarie Street, Sydney NSW 2000, 
Australia

Tattersalls Club
181 Elizabeth Street, Sydney NSW 2000, 
Australia

The Rugby Club
Rugby Place, Off 31 Pitt St Sydney 2000, 
Australia

Western Australia

Perth & Tattersalls Bowling 
& Recreation Club
2 Plain Street, East Perth WA 6004, 
Australia

Royal King’s Park Tennis Club (Inc)
King’s Park Road, West Perth, WA 6005, 
Australia

Rugby Union Club (Rugby WA – Western 
Australian Rugby Union (Inc))
203 Underwood Ave, Floreat WA 6014, 
Australia

Scarborough Sportsmen’s Club
75 Deanmore Road Scarborough WA, 
Australia

The Western Australian Club (Inc.)
The Penthouse, Level 11, 12 St George’s 
Terrace PERTH WA 6000, Australia

Western Australian Cricket 
Association (Inc.)
WACA Administration WACA Ground, 
Nelson Crescent, East Perth, Gate 2, 
Australia

AUSTRIA

St. Johanns Club 
A-1010 Wein, Schubertring 4, Vienna, 
Austria 

BANGLADESH

Dhaka Club Ltd
Ramna Dhaka-1000 Bangladesh

BRUNEI DARUSSALAM

Royal Brunei Yacht Club
Simpang 664, Km 7, Jalan Kota Batu, 
Bandar Seri Begawan, Brunei Darussalam

Panaga Club
c/o Brunei Shell Petroleum Co. Sdn. Bhd. 
Seria KB3534, Brunei Darussalam

CANADA

The National Club
303 Bay Street Toronto, Ontario M5H 2R1, 
Canada

Toronto Cricket Skating 
and Curling Club
141 Wilson Avenue Toronto, Ontario M5M 
3A3, Canada

Hollyburn Country Club
950 Cross Creek Road, West Vancouver, 
BC V7S2S5, Canada

FRANCE

Automobile Club de France
6-8 Place De La Concorde 75008 Paris, 
France

GERMANY

Hamburg

The Anglo German Club
Harvestehuder Weg 44 20149 Hamburg, 
Germany

HONG KONG

Craigengower Cricket Club
188 Wong Nai Chung Road, Happy Valley, 
Hong Kong

Hong Kong Cricket Club
137 Wong Nai Chung Gap Road, Hong 
Kong

Hong Kong Football Club
3 Sports Road, Happy Valley, Hong Kong

The American Club Hong Kong 
(Country Club)
28 Tai Tam Road, Tai Tam, Hong Kong

RECIPROCAL
CLUBS
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The American Club Hong Kong 
(Town Club)
Floors 48-49, Two Exchange Square, 
Central, Hong Kong

The Foreign Correspondents’ Club, 
Hong Kong
2 Lower Albert Road Central, Hong Kong

Kowloon Bowling Green Club
123 Austin Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Kowloon Cricket Club
10 Cox’s Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong

INDIA

Bangalore

Bangalore Club
Field Marshal K.M. Cariappa Road, 
Bangalore 560025, India

Chennai

Madras Cricket Club
1 Bells Road, Chepauk, Chennai, Tamil 
Nadu 600005

Jodhpur

Umed Club
Old Public Park Road, Near Gaushala 
Grounds, Jodhpur (Rajasthan) 342006, 
India

Kolkata

The Bengal Rowing Club
13/2, Baroj Road Rabindra Sarobar, 
Kolkata 700 029, India

The Calcutta Racket Club
95, Jawahar Lal Nehru Road, 
Kolkata-700071 India

Calcutta Cricket & Football Club
19/1 Gurusaday Road, Kolkata 700019, 
India

Madhya Pradesh

Yeshwant Club
Race Course Road, Indore (M.P.), India

Mumbai

Bombay Gymkhana Club
M G Road, Fort, Mumbai 400 001, India

Cricket Club of India
J N Tata Pavilion, Brabourne Stadium 
Dinshaw Vachha Road Mumbai 400 020, 
India

New Delhi

Delhi Gymkhana Club
2 Safdarjung Road New Delhi 110 011, 
India

The Palms Town & Country Club
B Block, Sushant Lok, Phase I, Gurgaon – 
122001, India

Pune

Poona Club Ltd
6 Bund Garden Road, Pune 411001 India

Deccan Gymkhana
Talim Pavilion, 759/2 Deccan Gymkhana, 
Pune 411004, India

Rajasthan

Jaisal Club
Jethwai Road, Jaisalmer – 345 001 
Rajasthan, India

INDONESIA
International Sport Club of Indonesia 
(ISCI)
Jl. Ciputat Raya No. 2 Tangerang 15419, 
Indonesia

Mercantile Athletic Club
Jl. Jenderal Sudirman Kav 29-31 Jakarta 
12920, Indonesia

ITALY

Circolo Canottieri Aniene A.S.D
Lungotevere dell’Acqua Acetosa, 119, 
Roma, Italy

JAPAN

Kobe Regatta and Athletic Club
1-20, 2-chome, Hachiman-dori 
2-Chuo-ku, Kobe 651-0085, Japan

Yokohama Country and Athletic Club
11-1 Yaguchidai, Naka-ku, Yokohama, 
231-8684, Japan

KENYA (EAST AFRICA)

Nairobi Gymkhana Club
P.O.BOX 30171-00100 GPO, Nairobi, 
Kenya

MALAYSIA

Johor

Johor Cultural & Sports Club
JKR623, Jalan Sungai Chat, 80100 Johor 
Bahru, Malaysia

Kluang Country Club
Jalan Mengkibol 86000 Kluang, Johor, 
Malaysia

Kelantan

Kelantan Golf & Country Club 
Pengkalan Chepa 16100 Kota Bharu, 
Kelantan, Malaysia

Kuala Lumpur

Royal Lake Club
Jalan Cenderamulia, Tasik Perdana
50480 Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekuan 
Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
 
The Royal Commonwealth Society
4, Jalan Birah, Bukit Damansara, 50490 
Kuala Lumpur, Wilayah Persekuan Kuala 
Lumpur, Malaysia
 
Royal Selangor Club
1, Jalan Raja, City Centre, 52100 Kuala 
Lumpur, Selangor, Malaysia

Melaka

The Malacca Club
No.18, 5th Floor, Jalan Syed Abdul Aziz, 
75000 Melaka, Malaysia

Negeri Sembilan

Royal Port Dickson Yacht Club
Batu 4 ½ Mile Jalan Pantai, 71050 Sirusa, 
Negeri Sembilan, Malaysia

Royal Sungei Ujong Club
2A Jalan Dato’ Klana Ma’amor, Malaysia

Pahang

Kelab Kuantan (Kuantan Club)
Jalan Merdeka 25000 Kuantan, Pahang, 
Malaysia

Penang

Penang Club
42B, Jalan Sultan Ahmad Shah, 10050 
Penang, Malaysia

Kelab Sukan Pulau Pinang (Penang 
Sports Club)
Jalan Utama 10450 Penang, Malaysia

Kelab Renang Pulau Pinang (Penang 
Swimming Club)
517 Tanjung Bungah 11200 Penang, 
Malaysia

Perak

Royal Ipoh Club
Jalan Panglima Bukit Gantang Wahab, 
30700 Ipoh, Perak, Malaysia

Sabah

The Kinabalu Club
1 Jalan Padang, Peti Surat No.10318, 
88803 Kota Kinabalu, Sabah, Malaysia

Sandakan Recreation Club
Ground Floor, Block 60, Jalan Singapore 
90000 Sandakan, Malaysia
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Sarawak

The Island Club
Jalan Airport 96000 Sibu, Sarawak, 
Malaysia

The Sarawak Club
Jalan Taman Budaya, 93000 Kuching 
Sarawak, Malaysia

Selangor

Royal Klang Club
No. 7, Jalan Istana, 41000 Klang, Selangor, 
Malaysia

MIDDLE EAST

The British Club, Bahrain
Building 41, Ahmed Ali Kanoo Avenue, 
Manama 337, Bahrain

MAURITIUS

Mauritius Gymkhana Club
Suffolk Road, Vacoas, Republic of 
Mauritius

THE NETHERLANDS

Nieuwe of Litteraire Societeit De Witte
Plein 24, 2511 CS The Hague, Netherlands

NEW ZEALAND

Auckland

The Northern Club
19 Princess Street, Auckland, New Zealand

Wellington

The Wellington Club
Level 4, 88 The Terrace, Wellington 6011, 
New Zealand

PAPUA NEW GUINEA

Aviat Social and Sporting Club
Aviat Street Konedobu Port Moresby, PNG

PHILIPPINES

The Manila Club
7th Floor Corinthian Plaza, Paseo De 
Roxas, Cnr Legazpi Street, Legaspi Village, 
Makati

SOUTH AFRICA

Bryanston

Bryanston Country Club
62 Bryanston Drive Bryanston Sandton 
Gauteng 2021, South Africa

Cape Town

Kelvin Grove Club
144 Campground Road, Newlands, 7700, 
South Africa

Durban

Durban Country Club
Isaiah Ntshangase Road Durban, South 
Africa

Johannesburg

The Wanderers Club
21 North Street, Illovo, Johannesburg 
2196, South Africa

SPAIN
Real Club de Polo de Barcelona
Avda. Dr. Marañón 17-31 08028-Barcelona, 
Spain

SRI LANKA

Colombo Swimming Club
148, Storm Lodge, Galle Road, Colombo 
03, Sri Lanka

Gymkhana Club
31 Maitland Crescent, Colombo 7, 
Sri Lanka

Singhalese Sports Club
No. 35 Maitland Place Colombo 7, 
Sri Lanka

SWEDEN

Sallskapet
Arsenalsgatan 7 SE-111 47 Stockholm, 
Sweden

THAILAND

Bangkok

The British Club
189 Suriwongse Road Bangrak Bangkok 
10500, Thailand

Royal Bangkok Sports Club
1 Henri Dunant Street, Pathumwan 
Bangkok 10330, Thailand

Chiangmai

Chiangmai Gymkhana Club
349 Chiang Mai – Lamphun Road, 
Chiang Mai 50000, Thailand

UNITED ARAB EMIRATES

The Club
PO Box 658, Abu Dhabi, UAE

UNITED KINGDOM

Army and Navy Club
36-39 Pall Mall, London, SW1Y 5JN, 
United Kingdom

City University Club
50 Cornhill, London EC3V 3PD, United 
Kingdom

Marylebone Cricket Club
Lord’s Cricket Ground, St John’s Wood, 
London NW8 8QN, United Kingdom

National Liberal Club
Whitehall Place London SW1A 2HE, 
United Kingdom

Oriental Club
Stratford House, Stratford Place, London 
W1C 1ES, United Kingdom

Royal Overseas League
Over-Seas House, Park Place, St. James’s 
Street, London Sw1A 1LR, United 
Kingdom

St James’s Club
7-8 Park Place, St. James’s London, SW1A 
1LS, United Kingdom

The Cardiff And County Club
Westgate Street, Cardiff CF10 1DA, 
United Kingdom

United Club
3 Church Street Saint Helier Jersey JE2 
3NN, United Kingdom

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

Massachusetts

Algonquin Club of Boston
217 Commonwealth Avenue Boston, MA 
02116, USA

California

The Balboa Bay Club
1221 Coast Highway, Newport Beach, CA 
92663, USA

New York

Down Town Association
60 Pine Street, New York, NY 10005, USA

Florida

Fisher Island Club
One Fisher Island Drive/Fisher Island 
Florida 33109, USA

RECIPROCAL CLUBS



PAST
PRESIDENTS
Although the Singapore Cricket Club was founded in 1852, until 1880 the principal office was that of Captain.

1880 – 1881 Louis J R Glass 

1882 Charles Stringer 

1883 Sir Cecil Clementi Smith, CMG 

1884 - 1887 Sir John Anderson 

1888 A P Talbot 

1889 – 1891 Charles Stringer 

1892 A P Talbot 

1893 – 1895 Major Sir Henry E McCallum, CMG 

1896 J J H Orman 

1897 – 1898 Justice Andrew John Leach 

1899 – 1900 Charles Stringer 

1901 Sir Hugh Fort 

1902 – 1903 Sir Frank Athelstane Swettenham, KCMG 

1904 Sir Hugh Fort 

1905 Lieutenant-Colonel E G Broadrick 

1906 Sir Hugh Fort 

1907 – 1908 Sir John Anderson 

1909 – 1910 Sir Arthur Henderson Young, KCMG 

1911 Lieutenant-Colonel E G Broadrick 

1912 – 1914 Cedric I Carver 

1915 Charles William Darbishire 

1916 – 1918 Cedric I Carver 

1919 D Y Perkins 

1920 William Langham-Carter 

1921 – 1922 Sir William Murison, KTB 

1923 – 1929 Ron John Farrer, CMG 

1930 Oswald Phillips Griffith-Jones 

1931 – 1932 Charles Salter 

1933 – 1934 Oswald Phillips Griffith-Jones 

1935 – 1937 John Middleton Sime 

1938 – 1939 Bernard E Ablitt 

1940 – 1941 John Athelstan Dean 

1942 / 1945 Club Closed (Pacific War) 

1946 Oswald W Gilmour 

1947 – 1948 Andrew Gilmour 

1949 Andrew Gilmour, CMG 

1950 Robert Donald Stewart 

1951 Peter M B C Frend 

1952 – 1953 H F Clements 

1954 – 1955 L A Williams 

1956 L L Cooper 

1957 John S Kirkham 

1958 John S Kirkham / H K Franklin 

1959 Joseph W Cashin 

1960 David I Price 

1961 O H R Beadles, OBE 

1962 – 1967 Andrew Gilmour, CMG 

1968 Derek R Reid, MC 

1969 Derek R Reid, MC / Alistair B McPherson 

1970 – 1972 Alistair B McPherson 

1973 – 1975 Tom Eames Hughes, CBE 

1976 – 1977 Justice T S Sinnathuray 

1978 Justice T S Sinnathuray / Neill B Aitken 

1979 – 1980 Neill B Aitken 

1981 – 1985 Haider M Sithawalla 

1986 – 1990 Len F Foster 

1991 – 2000 Charlie K P Phua 

2001 – 2008 Anwarul Haque 

2008 Abu Omar

2008 – 2010 Teh Leong 

2011 Mohan J Bhojwani

2012 – 2013 Col (Retd) Gurcharan Singh

Apr – Aug 2014 A. Michael Grice

Sep 2014 – Apr 2015 Mohan J Bhojwani

2015 – 2016 Capt. Baldev Singh

2016 Mohan J Bhojwani




